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GLOSSARY

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalised terms M X E R A ATIEIN - RRIER  MHBHE - TFEHE - 5
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, EEHEST EFLHRE * DEBA®RS  RE
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and &REARHRE EERSRTEECZEEFHE  WEHE
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, NYWZEAESFAREREEGUTIHNSERE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial

Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2021 AGM”
—E—FREBFAE

“AGM(s)”
[RERBEF K]

“ASP”
[FHEE]

“Audit Committee”
[EZ%EEE]

“Board”
[EEg]

“business day”
[Z2H]

“Bye-Laws”
EEN
“Chairman” or “Mr. Wong”

[E 7R DESRE]

“Chief Executive Officer”

[BAFENTE]

“close associate(s)”
[EZHEA

“CMA”
[CMA]

“CMC”
MEE ~ EEMEH )

“CNAS”
[CNAS]

“Company” or “Sino Harbour”

[ARRR] BRI

“Company Secretary”
[RElMmE]

AGM to be held on Friday, 20 August 2021
R -_ZE-—F ) \A-TREPDRTHNRRBFKE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRBRRBFERE

average selling price

FHHEER

audit committee of the Board

EFEQERRES

board of Directors
=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEAEWRAETHRE

bye-laws of the Company
PN FE]

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the ED, chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and general manager of the Company

EMKEE - BARRMITES EFELF  BERUTERELE

the chief executive officer of the Company
RRAREREHITE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmARAMETERE

China Metrology Accreditation
BEREBAKEEERTE

an important section in drug development process

EpmBERETN—EEEID

China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment
PRESETERRRAATEZES

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)
EEEREEERAR  —MREBFEIMK I 2BRAR - HBE %
TR B R FTEMR LT R A5 (RS - 1663)

company secretary of the Company

ARABZARME
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“Consolidated Financial Statements

[#R & B 5K

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
e

“Corporate Governance Code”
[T ER~FA

“COVID-19”
Eiibs sl

“Deputy Chairman”
EIES

“Director(s)”

S

“EIT”
[T RAEHL

“ESG Report”
[ESG#R ]

“Executive Director(s)”

[FITEE]

“Extra Good”
[Extra Good

“Fenghuang Jincheng”

B2 %5

“Final Dividend”

[ R EARR &

“FVOCI”
[BAREREM2EWRZEYIER]
“FVTPL”

(B AR BEREZETIER]
“FY2020”

[ZE_ZTEF]

“FY2021” or “Year”
[ — 0 F |k AFE ]

“Ganghua Dentistry”

O
“GFA”

2R

»

GLOSSARY

audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEBARFENREZRE P BRER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWARRIATE T HRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

LR RIS+ A Rz R EER TR

novel coronavirus disease 2019
“E-AFFATHRES

deputy chairman of the Board
EFEgRIER

director(s) of the Company

ARAES

enterprise income tax

EEMEHR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HgkERAWE

executive Director(s)

WITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

Leiping City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. (4 BlE & 5
FE AR A7), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect subsidiary of the Company
LIYMEECHREEERAT  —HARPEAMKAILZEREER
Al BARRARZEEHEB ARG

payment of a final dividend for FY2021
R -UFEIRNREARE

fair value through other comprehensive income

BAnEREMEEKESIER

fair value through profit and loss
BARERERIIR

year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZF=-A=+—RHIFE

year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_T-—F=A=1+—ALFE

Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry Hospital Company Limited (488 %
Mg ft A R A F)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect subsidiary of the Company
HHBEORBRAERAR  —ERPEFEMKZZBRART - &K
RAZAERE AR

gross floor area
EEEE




GLOSSARY

“Group”
[R&EE]

“Hangzhou Ganglian”
[0 78 B

“HK$11

[T

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Huzhou Runhe”

AN

3

“Independent Auditor’
[ 7 7% B

“INED(s)”
(B IETEE]

“JX Asia City”
PANieEEb Bl
(AT

[ 3R EHK]

“Listing Rules”
[ EmARAl

“Model Code”
25

“Ms. Chan”
[FRZz 1]

“NED”
[FERITESR]

“Nomination Committee”

Er==F 3=k

“Pan Hong Holdings”

PRSI

arbour

Company and its subsidiaries

ARAREMBAE

Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Company Limited (58 & 2 AR
‘A7A]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MNEBBMEEERAR » —ERPEFIMEALZBRAR - REARA
ZEEEEME AR

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BEEEEHY

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EE B R RITTH R

Huzhou Pan Hong Runhe Property Development Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Pan Hong Holdings

MM EBEMEHERBEERAA - —HARFEIMXZLZERA
Al ANABEROEEEZENRE AR

independent auditor of the Company
ZN/NCIE RV 2 S €l

independent non-executive Director(s)
B IEITES

Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (T 7ae /N8 B ithE
FEHBR A 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IAEMEEEREZEERAR  —MRPEGZEMKI2ERAFR -
RARNFNREEEZENREAF

land appreciation tax

TR AR

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B2 PR AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRRAIMSE TR ETEITAZESETIE SRR HNIELESTR

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the wife of Mr. WONG
R+ REREZE

non-executive Director

FHITES

nomination committee of the Board

ExgiRe%Be

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability whose issued shares are listed on the main board of
the SGX-ST

NABEREEBRAR RAREIMRINERARF - AEETK
RRFRZZ P ER £
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“PRC” or “China”

[

“Register of Members”

[ AR % i

“Remuneration Committee’

[(FHEEE]

“RMB”
[AREE]

“SFO”
[E %5 KR RA]

“SGD”
[N ]

“SGX-ST”
[ #7132 Ffr ]

“Share(s)”
[B&1n

“Shareholder(s)”
&S

nsq-m.u

EFEY

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 32 P ]

“subsidiary(ies)”
HipEEPNGIR

“substantial shareholder(s)”

[EZRR]

“Us$”
EXd

“Zhejiang IPS”

Bziipa= il

ll%”
[%]ek B oL

GLOSSARY

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Taiwan

REAREME - EAERME - TEESS  RFIFIITHRERSE

register of members of the Company

RRRR A

remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMEEe

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR hBEEEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
BHRBABGO(BAEEFETE)

Singapore dollar(s), the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore
Fong o - FnE A REDEE B

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

IR EZZ 5 AR QR

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
R RRAFFI0.018 T 2 EilAk

holder(s) of the Share(s)
L SGESEEUN

square metre(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERIAERATR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmRRAMETERE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AA LR T RHE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of United States of America
XL ENBERBEEER

Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited (3751 38
B &R B AR AR, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IERBERFEERAR  —MRPEFMAZ2ERRAR @ AR
REEEIEEEWE QR

per cent. or percentage

ANt




CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager) (Appointed on 1 April 2020)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Resigned on 1 April 2020)
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (Appointed on 1 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. LEE Man To (Resigned on 22 May 2020)

Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Appointed on 1 June 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sir KWOK Siu Man KR (Resigned on 26 January 2021)
Ms. YUE Sau Lan (Appointed on 26 January 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Sir KWOK Siu Man KR (Resigned on 26 January 2021)
Ms. YUE Sau Lan (Appointed on 26 January 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEE Man To (Resigned on 22 May 2020)

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Chairman)
(Appointed on 1 June 2020)

Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. HE Dingding

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Resigned on 1 April 2020)
Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Appointed on 1 April 2020)
Mr. LEE Man To (Resigned on 22 May 2020)

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Appointed on 1 June 2020)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Man To (Resigned on 22 May 2020)

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Appointed on 1 June 2020)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang.(Appointed on 1 April 2020)
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SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 15668 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

Bfn £
BEABMERZAIBRAREIR
&1 5% © 01663

AR 484
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BBRPEETEE LR
B
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EB S EP 025268
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BEE1215%
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25 : (852) 2764 2160

EERE Y

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FERNBFELE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®TFT) (AR#TFT)
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(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(gs5)) (&55)) (K55)) (KS5)) Profit Attributable to Owners of
Revenue the Company
KA RATEE AEGER
(RMB’000)
(ARFT)

1,507,254 1,602,106 1,602,182 1,619,349 1,656,415

2016/17  2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Net Assets
REE
(RMB’000)
(AR®FT)
50.9% 61.7%
264,392 '
" 222147 215320 216,274
2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Cash and Cash Equivalents Gearing Ratio:
ReRRESEEY Total Borrowings Less
Related Deposit Collateral/Total Equity
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual report
of the Company for FY2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

In FY2021, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB426.9 million. Gross profit margin for FY2021 was
39.7%, representing a decrease of 3.3% compared with
that of FY2020. Meanwhile, profit attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to approximately RMB57.5
million in FY2021. The Board has resolved to recommend
the payment of Final Dividend of HK1 cent per Share for
FY2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

As people around the world begin to receive vaccinations
under the impact of COVID-19, the pandemic is getting
contained gradually, leading to a limited resumption of
global economic activities. Moreover, the outbreak in China
was brought under control earlier than the rest of the world.
Thanks to the tight preventive and control measures of
the Chinese government, its domestic economic activities
are generally recovered and the real estate market is rising
steadily. According to the statistics, the real estate sector
in China experienced a V-shaped turnaround throughout
2020, with both recovery and divergence occurring in the
market. The real estate sales grew sharply from the second
quarter onwards, but with the gradual tightening of credit
policies in the second half, there was a gradual weakening
of the market in September. As “housing is for living
in, not for speculation” remained the main tone of the
Central Government, the “Three Red Lines” of mortgage
management continued to be in force, resulting in tighter
lines of credit and longer loan origination cycles. Despite the
tighter policies all over the country, the buying sentiment in
the market has further recovered and even surpassed the
pre-COVID-19 level.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

BURR :
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS (CONTINUED)

According to the statistics, the global pharmaceutical
expenditure was nearly US$1.4 trillion in 2020, and the
size of China’s pharmaceutical market was approximately
RMB931.2 billion, making it the world’s second largest
pharmaceutical market. Coupled with the “13th Five-
Year Plan” policy, the new policy for the reform of drug
review and approval has changed the pharmaceutical
research and development (“R&D”) ecology, resulting
in the comprehensive promotion of the pharmaceutical
R&D industry across the country in the past two years.
The Company considers that, the CMC is an important
part of pharmaceutical R&D process, and the business
of Zhejiang IPS has covered its related services provided
to pharmaceutical companies, including R&D services for
quality research, quality control, synthesis process and
preparation process of small molecule chemical drugs.
We believe that the pharmaceutical R&D services will
be one of the Company’s development segments in the
future. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to spare no
effort in making Zhejiang IPS become a leading contract
pharmaceutical R&D organization in the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

To ensure diversified development of the Group and
enhance its competitiveness, we will continue to innovate
and actively expand the pharmaceutical R&D and other
medical related businesses.

Zhejiang IPS, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, obtained the CMA accreditation from the
Zhejiang Administration for Market Regulation of PRC
and the laboratory CNAS accreditation certificate from
China National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment, respectively in the first quarter of the Year
for its pharmaceutical R&D related business. Furthermore,
Zhejiang IPS was included in the list of high-tech enterprises
in Zhejiang Province in 2020. In recent years, the
Company has been developing its R&D related business in
pharmaceutical technology and winning the recognition and
acknowledgement of Zhejiang government for Zhejiang IPS.

Fiﬁ%(%ﬁ)
2020 BRR B S IR 1 4B BT
¢I 1ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@9m2EﬁAE%IWﬁ REZK
BEMS - MEMT=ZEINEEK  ERBHABRRESN
K 2k Eiﬁ%&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%DE%'AI%ﬁﬁi
PEHEBEMBITE - AR %mE‘EFﬁTﬂ
(TCMC ) = 2 Hff 3 ﬁ&$m*ﬂ§% » AT A
B AR E E MR - @%h“%%imggﬁﬁ g8
EH - AR T2 RGIE TEOMERY - RABEEDH
BRBEERARBARKEP —EANERRE - AEEXR
KA HEETEER S (AT SR A A5 o B 4B 5t O BE an BT 3%
SMEB TS

e 0]

AEERERAEEAS T LERLREAEBEF N - &M
1 BN FR R RIRT - 45 A8 T8 15 18 R 55 an A 3 e EL A B8 AR A
EL

AR RIER AT BB A BT 3008 A B2 ST B AR R ZEAS A AR
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead into the second half of 2021, the global
economy is expected to stabilise and rebound. However,
“housing is for living in, not for speculation” is still the
central government’s main theme for the real estate
sector. Housing sales will rebound and pick up due to the
containment of the pandemic, but will not remain robust in
the long run. In view of this, the Group still needs to strive
for stability and take a wait-and-see approach.

In the first quarter of 2021, the commercial residential
sector in first- to fourth-tier cities outperformed slightly
in tandem. Looking ahead into the second half of 2021,
the government’s tightening policies to stabilise land
prices, housing prices and expectations are the real estate
regulatory objectives for the next five years. In the first-
tier cities, the market was very active due to the effect of
“Staying Put During Spring Festival”, with price inflation at its
highest point in the past four years, up 0.78% cumulatively.
In the second-tier cities, prices were generally stabilised,
with an accumulative increase of 0.76% in the first quarter,
as policy regulation continued to deepen and the market
became less heated. However, the highest amount of
land sales in China was in Hangzhou City and reached
RMB117.8 billion, raising expectations for the future of its
real estate market. In the third- and fourth- tier cities, the
market was hotter and boosted sales in other cities, with
prices turning from a decline to a rise in the first quarter, up
0.76% cumulatively. The Group is confident in the future
of real estate market and believes that real estate as its
main business will bring stable and substantial return to
its investors. During the Year, revenue from CMC related
services amounted to approximately RMB5.73 million,
which was an impressive result. The Group maintains its
position on the development of “big health” business and is
confident in the future development of pharmaceutical R&D
and dental business in the PRC.

In addition, Ganghua Dentistry of the Group has been
granted the Medical Institution Practicing License by the
Health Commission of Pingxiang, Jiangxi Province, the PRC
with a validity period of five years. The Directors believe
that the Group’s clear direction of developing “healthcare
business”, namely, not only to develop the pharmaceutical
inspection business, but also to explore the domestic
dentistry market in the PRC, has been recognised in a short
period and will have a positive impact on the Group’s future
business development.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

REREE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

Looking ahead, the Group believes that the pharmaceutical
R&D services and “big health” business can create synergy
with the Group’s other business, and can make progress
while keeping stable in the current year. Above all, the Board
will remain duly cautious in the ever-changing environment.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
Shareholders, business partners and customers of the
Group for their support and trust over the past year and
express my sincere gratitude to the Directors, management
team and all employees for their hard work and contribution
to the Group.

Wong Lam Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2021
COMPARED TO FY2020

Revenue

In FY2021, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB426.9 million, representing a decrease of 4.8% from
approximately RMB448.4 million in FY2020.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in FY2021
was primarily derived from the delivery of residential units
of apartment and commercial units of Sino Harbour © Wu
Lin Hui (2% e E &) in Hangzhou, the PRC. In FY2020,
revenue was mainly attributable to the delivery of residential
units of apartment and commercial units of Sino Harbour e
Wu Lin Hui and residential units of town house in Nanchang
Sino Harbour Kaixuan City (73 &% & $liE#) Zone 2.

CMC is an important section in drug development process.
Revenue from CMC related services in FY2021 and FY2020

EERENWES T

CEC-UEHE_SCRUFEIUBRELRREE

L'ON

m:z:—am REBBEEBRAHDARKELI26.98E
B CECEUFEHAREA48 AT ETTH A 4.8% o

”_*ﬁﬁEZHjE?—ir’%mizl&)\?ExXE A R B
NZBeRMEABEETEMLMNEREM - R_ZT_Z8
FRAZTBERERNZEE. T%E’A%E*“h&?ﬂ%
BAARREEEBIEH —AREERREETEN
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mainly included small molecule chemical drugs quality ®¥E/)\HDFLENESHE - GEIFH - A TE K& HIE
research and control, and synthesis process R&D services T ZEHFEERTE o
provided to pharmaceutical companies.
2021 2020
:g:— ﬂi — 7 — i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
(Restated)
(&)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEBUEREEAE
under HKFRS 15 155 REATFEHNZBA
Sales of properties held for sale HEFEYE 385,059 416,462
CMC related service income CMC*H 78 AR 75 WA 5,730 4,040
Consultancy service income B RARR TS WA 1,151 1,129
391,940 421,631
Revenue from other source REEMBFEZWA
Rental income el A 34,944 26,789
426,884 448,420
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2021 TR -MEFHE-BCEWFEHBEELRERE(E)

COMPARED TO FY2020 (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue from
sale of properties held for sale for (i) residential properties,
(i) commercial properties, and (i) car parking spaces during

TR -_ZF-_-—MFRARBLEONEEDE  (IBED
K ELL A F EW R Z WAL -

FY2021:
Percentage
2021 2020 change
—R=—F —T-TF BYEHLL
0] Residential =
- GFA sold (in sq.m.) -BERERE
(WA F 7 oREE) 13,944 12,743 9.4%
- ASP (RMB per sq.m.) -FHEE
(BEFFRARE) 26,135 25,531 2.4%
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — WA (4IA B & Fr) 364,425 325,337 12.0%
(ii) Commercial [SES
- GFA sold (in sq.m.) -BERERE
(LA -FF72KET) 733 3,417 (78.5)%
— ASP (RMB per sq.m.) -FHEE
(BFFFTRARKE) 27,464 26,498 3.6%
— Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — WA (FIA B Fr) 20,131 90,543 (77.8)%
(i) Car parking spaces BB
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — WA (ZIA BT ) 503 582 (13.6)%
Revenue from sales of properties held for ~— HE&EFEWE 2
sale (approximately RMB’000) WARIAEETFT) 385,059 416,462 (7.5)%
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin HERAREFN=E

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB255.4
million in FY2020 to approximately RMB257.5 million
in FY2021. Gross profit margin decreased from 43.0%
(restated) in FY2020 to 39.7% in FY2021. In respect of
gross profit margin from sales of properties held for sale, as
a lower portion of the revenue of the Group was attributable
to the delivery of commercial units in FY2021 as compared
with FY2020, which had higher gross profit margin
compared with residential units.

HERAR T _TYUFHARB254FE THENE—
T —BEHAREI75AETL e EMER T -8
Fa43.0% (KEBIN)BLEZZT = —BF39.7% - L ELF
EMEMBNEFNEMmS  HEB-S-_ZHF - AR
T —UFERNFINAEBRARREEBMHRZNS
mEREESBMMALEFERS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2021
COMPARED TO FY2020 (CONTINUED)

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses decreased from
approximately RMB27.4 million (restated) in FY2020 to
approximately RMB21.9 million in FY2021, which was
mainly attributable to the net effect of the increase of
exchange loss and the decrease in interest income from
bank deposits.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB22.2 million in FY2020 to approximately
RMB17.4 million in FY2021. The lower selling and
distribution expenses in FY2021 were mainly due to a
decrease in the marketing expenses incurred for Sino
Harbour e Wu Lin Hui.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased to approximately
RMB52.5 million in FY2021 from approximately RMB52.3
million in FY2020. The increase was mainly attributable to
net effect of increase in depreciation and the absence of
impairment loss on intangibles in FY2021.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB4.0 million non-
capitalised finance costs in FY2021, which had decreased
from approximately RMB5.2 million in FY2020. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decreases of
the average bank and other loans balances in FY2021
compared to those in FY2020.

Profit before Income Tax

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB117.4 million in FY2021, compared to approximately
RMB140.7 million in FY2020, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB23.3 million.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased to approximately RMB66.5
million in FY2021 from approximately RMB84.7 million
in FY2020. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decreases in profit before income tax for FY2021.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB50.9 million in FY2021, compared to
approximately RMB55.9 million in FY2020.

EERE WD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2021

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB79.3 million, compared to
approximately RMB67.3 million as at 31 March 2020. The
increase was mainly attributable to addition of equipment
during FY2021.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB1,127.3 million, compared
to approximately RMB849.2 million as at 31 March 2020.
The increase was mainly attributable to the transfer from
properties held for sale.

Intangibles

Intangible assets represented copyright and customer
relationships, amounting to approximately RMB4.6 million
as at 31 March 2021, compared to approximately RMB5.1
million as at 31 March 2020. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the amortisation.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

It represented equity interests in a number of entities
incorporated in the PRC and Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited, on which the Group does not have control
nor significant influence. It increased from approximately
RMB7.7 million as at 31 March 2020 to approximately
RMB10.3 million as at 31 March 2021 which was mainly
attributable to the fair value changes on equity interests.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits decreased
from approximately RMB229.6 million as at 31 March 2020
to approximately RMB40.1 million as at 31 March 2021. The
decrease was mainly due to a decrease in deposits pledged
for bank loans.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,9083.3
million from approximately RMB1,458.7 million as at 31
March 2020. The increase was due to the construction-in-
o EH).

progress of Sino Harbour ® Guanlan (&8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2021 (CONTINUED)

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately
RMB1,064.6 million as at 31 March 2020 to approximately
RMB542.8 million as at 31 March 2021, which was mainly
due to handover of completed property units and transfer to
investment properties for Sino Harbour ¢ Wu Lin Hui.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB1,081.6 million as at 31 March 2021,
compared to approximately RMB199.8 million as at 31
March 2020.

Prepayments and other receivables increased, which was
mainly due to the deposit paid for land use rights of four
land parcels located in Leping City, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC.

Tax Recoverable

Tax recoverable increased to approximately RMB44.3
million as at 31 March 2021 from approximately RMB28.2
million as at 31 March 2020, which was mainly attributable
to an increase in prepayments of income tax during FY2021.

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB33.2
million as at 31 March 2021 from approximately RMB35.2
million as at 31 March 2020 due to a decrease in amounts
payable to the contractors for construction costs incurred in
respect of Sino Harbour © Wu Lin Hui and Sino Harbour e
Guanlan.

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that were
based on the progress of project development but were not
due for payment.

EERE WD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2021 (CONTINUED)

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Accruals and other payables increased to approximately
RMB667.0 million as at 31 March 2021 from approximately
RMB373.5 million as at 31 March 2020, which was due to
an increase in accrued construction cost for Sino Harbour
e Guanlan and the other payable due to receipt of land
resumption consideration of RMB222.8 million from Leping
City Natural Resources and Planning Bureau in FY2021.

Contract liabilities which comprises sales deposits and
installments received from customers increased from
approximately RMB1,513.5 million as at 31 March 2020 to
approximately RMB2,000.3 million as at 31 March 2021.
The increase was mainly due to an increase in pre-sale
proceeds from the launch of Sino Harbour ¢ Guanlan.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB91.0 million as at 31 March 2020 to approximately
RMB96.9 million as at 31 March 2021, mainly attributable to
the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair value
gain on investment properties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2021, the Group had recorded a net cash outflow of
approximately RMB318.7 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to an increase in prepayments and other
receivables.

Net cash inflow from investing activities in FY2021 was
approximately RMB170.2 million, which was mainly due to a
decrease in pledged deposit.

Net cash inflow from financing activities in FY2021
was approximately RMB23.6 million, which was mainly
attributable to receipts from new loans, which were partially
offset by repayments of loan principals and interests.

18| | Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

Cash Position (Continued)
Cash and Bank Balances (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB299.4 million (31 March
2020: RMB367.3 million), which consisted of cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB92.2 million (31 March
2020: RMB216.3 million) and bank balances restricted
for construction work of approximately RMB207.2 million
(31 March 2020: RMB151.0 million), and were mostly
denominated in RMB.

Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB592.0 million, compared to
approximately RMB523.4 million as at 31 March 2020. The
Group’s bank and other loans were denominated in RMB
(31 March 2020: RMB and HK$). In FY2021, the effective
interest rates of the bank and other loans were ranging from
7.5% to 10.55% (FY2020: 2.72% to 9.35% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank and other loans) less related deposit collateral over
total equity and then multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March
2021, the Group’s gearing ratio was 35.4% (31 March
2020: 20.4%). The Group has implemented certain loan
management policies which include close monitoring of the
gearing ratio and any changes in interest rates.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital
and other liquidity requirements principally from cash
generated from our operations and bank and other loans.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from our operations, bank and other loans
as well as other external equity and debt financing. The
Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

EERE WD

ESRBMRMBEER(E

BE (&)

B RRITHRE(E)

RZEBEZ—F=A=+—H AXEBRELNBETHEH
HBARE2004BEBT(ZE_TEF=_A=+—"H8: AR
¥367.3HEL) EFBEEREARSEEVMHAARE
WoEBT(CE-EF=A=1+—0: AR¥216.305
T NMBERIRERZRITESROBARK20726ET(Z
EZ-ZTHFE=A=+—H: ARB151.06887T) ' EF K
DUAARBEE -

BITREMER

R-ZE-—F=ZA=Z+—H AEENREEHDARE
502 0B8L MR- TE-_TZF=ZA=Z+—HHARKE
5234EBIL c AEBEZBITREMEFTAARE(ZZ =
EF=ZA=Z1+—08  ARERBILFE R-ZZE=-—§
FRITEHEAEFTNERMENT7.5%E10.55% (=
“THF  BE2.72%E9.35%) ©

ErHEEEER

ERERAFELRRERRITREMERZESH) RAIAR
FEEARGETGRUAEERBRM00%TE - R-T-—
FZA=ZT—R AREZEFRRBELERIE.4%(=F
“EF=A=1—H :204%) - AEBECHTETENRE

BRR R EREVEREAEB AL R LM Z(EM
BEERMBBOR

AEEREBEXGLERMEENES MY HER - B
= BRAX2EERMANZEMSRERRTEEMER
MREARAX BEESREMRBESHFR - KK
HPMEHREBESLHER(BEETNRREMNEE
SR E  RITKEMERARE MM A MBS E
B)RBMANEEES  BEAMXREMESHTHREHRE
T AKEAREEAR HEENTBRRE - NER
MBESLULEEENARRRE A FEREXATE
NHERAEEFEREREARECERBDESTRK -

ARERENARAT

pog0/e4 e 1]




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD T

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash
and bank balances, other receivables and other payables
which are denominated in HK$ and United States dollars.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 26 March 2021, Fenghuang Jincheng, an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a land resumption agreement with Leping City Natural
Resources and Planning Bureau (the “Local Authority”)
which Fenghuang Jincheng shall surrender its land parcel
located at the Hushan Meiyan Reclamation Farm, Leping
City, Jingdezhen City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC to the Local
Authority at a consideration by way of cash compensation
of RMB222,760,000 (the “Land Resumption”) (details of
which are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 26 March 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 30 April 2021).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios set out
in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Land
Resumption exceed 75%, the Land Resumption constitutes
a very substantial disposal transaction for the Company and
is therefore subject to reporting, announcement, circular
and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules.

0| || sino Harbdur Holdings Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2021

On 21 May 2021, the approval, confirmation and ratification
of the abovementioned Land Resumption agreement were
duly passed as an ordinary resolution of the Company by
the Shareholders in a special general meeting.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in FY2021
(FY2020: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2020: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 240 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2021 (31 March 2020: 250). Staff’'s remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions, the
Group’s results as well as the experience and performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from
time to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits,
including medical insurance, and grants of discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance
and contributions to the Group. Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
RMB37.2 million in FY2021 (FY2020: approximately
RMB38.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

COMPANY UPDATE AEBRFHER
Property Pre-sales MI¥ERE
The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of BHZE-_ZT-—FXAZ+=-H ' SEBEZYEEELEXZM
properties under each project up to 22 June 2021 are 2 Z2FtE&E#LMMT ¢
summarised as follows:
Yichun Yichun
Sino Harbour ¢ Sino Harbour ¢
Guanlan - Guanlan -
Residential Units Phase 1 Phase 2
(EBFEE o (EEEE -
BR—H) BR =)
HEEBEHR HEEBBW
(E2=23-—R 2 —H g
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 285,219 sq.m. 102,015 sg.m.
(2,512 units) (872 units)
REtHEL AT I E 2 AR EmE 285,219 75 K 102,015 75K
(BEMHE) (2,5121@ B L) (8721E B8 1)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 284,387 sg.m. 77,823 sq.m.
(2,504 units) (664 units)
HAEREZREEEBE(RBEMHE) 284,387F 75 K 77,823F K
(2,504 @ B A1) (6641E BEA1)
Percentage of pre-sale 99% 76%
TEELLE
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed 283,636 sg.m. 38,047 sg.m.
over to buyers as at 31 March 2021/ (2,500 units) (316 units)
RZE-Z—F=A=+t—HHRABREX 283,636 77 K 38,047F 5K
ZEeTREREEmE(ETEEELEE)" (2,5001# & f7) (31616 B8 fi7)

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers
as at 31 March 2021/

RZZEZ—F=ZA=+—HHABRER
ZBEFEEEE"

ASP per sq.m.*

BFHAKFHEE

Expected completion date

FREATEAK B Hf

ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not
handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed over
to buyers.

N Pre-sale GFA and value not handed over to buyers is computed
as follows: Pre-sales at the beginning of FY2021 plus new pre-
sales during FY2021 less those handed over to buyers during
FY2021, which was recognised as sales during FY2021.
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RMB1,810.0 million

RMB318.2 million
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead into the second half of 2021, the global
economy is expected to stabilise and rebound. As people
around the world begin to receive vaccinations under the
impact of COVID-19, the pandemic is getting contained
gradually, leading to a limited resumption of global economic
activities. Moreover, the outbreak in China was brought
under control earlier than the rest of the world. Thanks to
the tight preventive and control measures of the Chinese
government, its domestic economic activities are generally
recovered and the real estate market is rising steadily.
According to the statistics, the real estate sector in China
experienced a V-shaped turnaround throughout 2020, with
both recovery and divergence occurring in the market. The
real estate sales grew sharply from the second quarter
onwards, but with the gradual tightening of credit policies
in the second half of 2020, there was a gradual weakening
of the market in September. As “housing is for living in,
not for speculation” remained the main tone of the Central
Government of China, the “Three Red Lines” of mortgage
management continued to be in force, resulting in tighter
lines of credit and longer loan origination cycles. Despite the
tighter policies all over the country, the buying sentiment in
the market has further recovered and even surpassed the
pre-COVID-19 level. However, the Group still needs to strive
for stability and take a wait-and-see approach.

In the first quarter of 2021, the commercial residential
sector in first- to fourth-tier cities outperformed slightly
in tandem. Looking ahead into the second half of 2021,
the government’s tightening policies to stabilise land
prices, housing prices and expectations are the real estate
regulatory objectives for the next five years. In the first-tier
cities, the market was very active due to the effect of “Stay
Put During Spring Festival”, with price inflation at its highest
point in the past four years, up 0.78% cumulatively. In the
second-tier cities, prices were generally stabilised, with an
accumulative increase of 0.76% in the first quarter, as policy
regulation continued to deepen and the market became
less heated. However, the highest amount of land sales
in China was in Hangzhou and reached RMB117.8 billion,
raising expectations for the future of its real estate market.
In the third- and fourth-tier cities, the market was hotter
and boosted sales in other cities, with prices turning from a
decline to a rise in the first quarter, up 0.76% cumulatively.
The Group is confident in the future of real estate market
and believes that real estate as its main business will bring
stable and substantial return to its investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD T

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

In addition, Zhejiang IPS, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, obtained certification from CMA by the
Zhejiang Administration for Market Regulation of PRC
and laboratory accreditation certificate from the CNAS,
respectively in the first quarter of 2021 for its pharmaceutical
inspection business. Furthermore, Zhejiang IPS was included
in the list of high-tech enterprises in Zhejiang Province,
the PRC in 2020. In recent years, the Company has been
developing its business in pharmaceutical technology and
winning the recognition and acknowledgement of Zhejiang
government for Zhejiang IPS. Looking ahead, the Group
believes that the pharmaceutical inspection business can
create synergy with the Group’s other business, and can
make progress while keeping stable together with the real
estate business in the current year. Above all, the Board will
remain duly cautious in the ever-changing environment.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
111 and 112 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of
the Final Dividend of HK1 cent per Share (equivalent to
0.173 in SGD cent per Share at the exchange rate of
HK$1:SGDO0.173) for FY2021 (FY2020: HK1 cent per
Share).

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the 2021 AGM to
be held on Friday, 20 August 2021, the proposed Final
Dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 20 October 2021 to
Shareholders whose names will appear on the Register of
Members on Tuesday, 31 August 2021.

If the proposed Final Dividend is approved by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming 2021 AGM, it will be
payable in cash in HK$ or SGD, at the exchange rate
of HK$ to SGD as published by Monetary Authority of
Singapore on Friday, 25 June 2021 and Shareholders will
be given the option of electing to receive the Final Dividend
in either HK$ or SGD.

To make the dividend election, Shareholders should
complete the Dividend Election Form (if applicable) and
return it to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room
2108B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 24 September 2021.
If no dividend election is made by a Shareholder, such
Shareholder will receive the Final Dividend in HK$.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2021 AGM will be held at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong at 10:00
a.m. on Friday, 20 August 2021. The notice of the 2021
AGM will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by
the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2021 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
17 August 2021 to Friday, 20 August 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2021 AGM to be held on Friday, 20 August 2021, non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed and
signed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 16 August 2021.

Proposed Final Dividend

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving
the Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM,
the Register of Members will be closed for determining
the Shareholders’ entitlement to the Final Dividend from
Thursday, 26 August 2021 to Tuesday, 31 August 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the Final
Dividend, non-registered Shareholders must lodge all duly
completed and signed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 August 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9
to 12 and pages 13 to 24 of this annual report, respectively.
The above sections form part of this report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies.
Our Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 233 and 234 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects in the PRC before the commencement
of construction and obtained approval from the relevant
environmental protection bureau after completion of each of
the projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 233 and 234 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021 are set out on pages 111 to 232 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

all
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for FY2021
of RMB57,544,000 (FY2020: RMB56,958,000) has been
transferred to retained profits. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 115 and 116 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2021, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB31,611,000 (FY2020:
RMB26,852,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2021, the Company did not redeem any of
its listed securities; nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue of
new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 1.7% and
approximately 3.7%, respectively of the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 22% and 67%, respectively of the Group’s
total payment under construction contracts for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager) (Appointed on 1 April 2020)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Resigned on 1 April 2020)
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (Appointed on 1 April 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. LEE Man To (Resigned on 22 May 2020)

Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Appointed on 1 June 2020)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye- laws, Mr. SHI
Feng (an Executive Director), Mr. WONG Lui (an Executive
Director) and Mr. HE Dingding (an INED) will retire from
office and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the 2021 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations and
not aware of any unfavourably reported incidents, as at the
date of this report, the Company considers that all of them
are independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 94 to 101
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan,
the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10 June
2020; while Mr. WONG Lam Ping, an Executive Director,
has a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 1 April 2020. Each of these service
contracts is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than six months’ written notice to the other and each
of the above Executive Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the AGMs in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.

Each of the NED and the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year, which shall thereafter continue year to year subject to
termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other and each of them is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account the Group’s operations, earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability and
other factors as it may deem relevant at such time. Any
declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends
will be subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of
Bermuda, including the approval of the Shareholders. Future
declarations of dividends may or may not be reflected from
the Company’s historical declarations of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and the Board’s approval.
The emoluments are determined by the Board by reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, recorded in the register referred therein; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares
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EERERTRABZHES

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—RH BEFRARFAIETHRAE
RARRREBEEE(E&RE 5 LB GIIEXVEDH
Befn - B K& EEE T EA N REES L RAEED
SEXVEFSET N B850 BRABAN AN B Ko Bt X P e g8 SOR B
(BRRIEES LS ROEB RN E A SR
MR FORR) ¢ (O)RIEREZ R E RPIE 352 AE R
ARG E RS SR(OMRIBIRE T RIZA B AR R =) K B
RFrHEm SRR

i) RERHBzZEHEE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
Chief executive Nature of interest interested Total issued Shares*
RN
B Fits/ ®A ERITROZ
TETHASHSR 55 EEHE ERzROHE st BRED
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 162,517,643
pas it EnEAA
Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120
(Note (a))
XA RER (K it(a)
Interest of spouse (Note (a)) 50,746,390 1,225,149,153 49.72%
fe @t (Hit(a)
Mr. SHI Feng Beneficial owner 1,665,042 1,665,042 0.06%
AEEE EnlEAA
Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b)) 5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%
AR A B tE s (fit ()
Notes: Btet -

(@) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
the issue share capital of which is owned as to 52% and
48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, respectively.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares held by Extra Good and Ms. Chan
(whether by herself or through her controlled corporation)
under the SFO.

(@  1,011,885,1200% /%% A Extra Good# A * Extra Good &
REABEZESFMRIHAE - HEBITRASRIE
EREZTFREZTDRIEB2%K48% ° FHltt - RIEF
HREIEIEG] - T R EWAR B Extra Good KR+ (F
RSB REEHEEE) A 2B — SRR HEEE
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

() Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun, who
is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE Gang is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the SFO.

N The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares, if any, interested divided by
the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at 31
March 2021.

(ii) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

EERERITHRAR Z#R ()

(i) RERHBzZHEEGE
Hist : ()

(b) 5,902,663 K1) FAWong Man Bunz & (Rl 54 ~ )
BAE - Bt - RIBEFHRBAEGRE - BALAERR AR
Wong Man BunZ T35 8 2 B — 8L 5 P B s o

. B ER AR ARG KA (A) BRI
T —F= A=+ HEBTREE2,464,000,0008
Betn

(i) REBEEIZERAPZFE

Number, class and
percentage of issued

Name of shares in associated
Name of Director/ associated Capacity/ corporation held/
Chief executive corporation Nature of interest interested Total
i AR
94 HEZENERTRE
ETHRABHSR B EZEER i/ @Y #E - EARBEAL st
Mr. Wong Extra Good Beneficial owner 52 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares
(52%) (100%)
ERE Extra Good EnlEAA SRR EmAR(52%) 1008 @AX(100%)
Interest of spouse 48 ordinary shares
(Note) (48%)
P B e (W at) A8J% E i % (48%)
Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as to BfaE : Extra Good®WBBITRARIREREZFREL
52% and 48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, DRIEES2% K% 48% o RIBFFESH REERA - Tk
respectively. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to be A8 AR BR L £ Extra Good# A FY AP i A 1
interested in the shares held by Ms. Chan in Extra Good. 25 o SE S A4 BExtra GoodE—E F o
Mr. Wong is a sole director of Extra Good.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of B EXFIHEZEIN R-E-_—F=A=+—H HE=E
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had B AR R EZITHRA B8R AR A EEMFE AE (E

any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, recorded
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

ERBFLHABEIEXVED) 2kt - ARG R EEE
B ERO)REREF R AEGROIFEXVE R R8n B A A
AK AR Rz SRR (BRREFRER 7 M
BIRPIBRGREFEXRAEEE) © K)RIEZH LB
B &P 35215 2/\DE/\EZ1I>RFer Mz ERIKR K
(iR BRETRIMANE AR S FTZ ERSOR R ©
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entity or person other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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RZZEZ—F=A=+—8 BEFHAA UTEERA
T(EERARAEETRABRINKB N KA G
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MR ERIOXE ¢

RERGOZ2HR

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest held/interested Total issued Shares*
Fi/ B BARDRE BT

BRREEEB 55 HEEHE ERzROHE et B 2 B E 2 b
Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good ExEBA
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
R+ EREAA

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note) 1,011,885,120

RIEREE R (W)

Interest of spouse (Note) 162,517,643 1,225,149,153 49.72%

AoiBes (Het)

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 48% by Ms. Chan, the wife of Mr.
Wong, and 52% by Mr. Wong. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held by
Extra Good and Mr. Wong (whether by himself or through his
controlled corporation).

The percentage represents the number of the Shares interested
divided by the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at
31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
entity or person (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.

HfiE - Extra Good AL EZEFRE T REIXEDRIHEE48% K
52% % o RIBFEFRBE KD - FRZ TR AR Extra Good
BT R A (T B S BBEZH OB FE 2R — itk +
AR ©

. BALESERENEONBERN-_F-_—F=A=+—AE
TR 2 H 2,464,000,0008% 8% 13
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of car park rental agreement,
office rental agreement and decoration service agreement
as disclosed in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements also fell under the definition of “continuing
connected transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the aggregate annual amount involved in
these continuing connected transactions was less than
HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected transactions
qualify as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The “Other loan — guaranteed” balance as disclosed in
note 25 together with the interest expense as disclosed in
note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements also fell
under the definition of “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details are set out as
below:

On 10 January, 2020, Hangzhou Ganglian, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
entered into a revolving loan facility agreement of RMB150
million with Huzhou Runhe as lender, of which Mr. Wong is
a beneficial owner. As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding
balance of RMB142,490,000 was guaranteed by Mr. Wong,
and was bearing a fixed interest rate of 9.35% per annum,
repayable within two years after the reporting date and
subject to a repayment on demand clause.

The INEDs have reviewed, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules, the continuing connected transaction as
set out above and have confirmed that such continuing
connected transaction had been entered into by the Group (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (i) the loan facility is not secured by any
assets of the Group and is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no arrangements,
transactions or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected
with a Director has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted-at.the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year. = I
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for Executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 March 2018, the Company and Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan
and Extra Good entered into a non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Group and Mr.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good that each of
them had complied with the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking during the Year. The INEDs have also reviewed
the said confirmation and are of the view that Mr. Wong,
Ms. Chan and Extra Good had complied with the terms of
the Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duties. In addition, the
Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation
amounting to approximately RMB108,000 (FY2020:
RMBO0.3 million).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes on the Directors’ information pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follows:

- Mr. CHAN Kin Sang has resigned as a director of
Guanghe Landscape Culture Communication Co.,
Ltd., Shanxi (Shanghai Stock Exchange stock code:
600234) with effect from 16 October 2020.

- Mr. HE Dingding has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of each of Beaver
Group (Holding) Company Limited (stock code: 8275)
and Crown International Corporation Limited (stock
code: 727) with effect from 14 and 20 May 2021,
respectively.

- Mr. SHI Feng has ceased to be a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Donghu District of Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC and the standmg director of the
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment
as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2021
AGM. There has been no change in the Independent Auditor
since the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board

WONG Lam Ping
Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
General Manager

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EREBHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code during the
Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual report
(collectively, the “Period”) except as disclosed in this report.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets the
Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. Currently,
the Board comprises eight Directors, including
four Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam Ping (the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and General
Manager), Mr. SHI Feng (the Deputy Chairman), Mr.
WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED, Mr. Chan
Kin Sang and three INEDs, Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE
Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen. Mr. WONG Lui
is the son of Mr. WONG. Save as disclosed above,
there is no family or other material relationship among
the members of the Board. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 94 to 101 of this
annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
merits while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

All Executive Directors have entered into service
contracts with the Company for a specific term of
three years. All NED and INEDs have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year.

Mr. LEE Man To (“Mr. Lee”) resigned as an INED
and ceased to be a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, all with effect from 22 May
2020. Following the resignation and cessations of Mr.
Lee,

(A)  the Board fails to (1) include at least three INEDs
as required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules; (2) have at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (3) have at least one-third of the Board
members being INEDs under Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules;

(B) pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
Audit Committee fails (1) to comprise a minimum
of three members, at least one of whom is an
INED with the required professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10 (2) of the
Listing Rules; and (2) to be chaired by an INED;

(C) the Remuneration Committee fails to comprise a
majority of INEDs under Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRE

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A E=20

(D) the Nomination Committee fails to comprise a
majority of INEDs under Code Provision A.5.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code.

With effect from 1 June 2020, Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
(“Mr. Ricky Wong”) has been appointed as an
INED, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee. Immediately following
the appointments of Mr. Ricky Wong, the Company
is in compliance with Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10A,
3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules as well as Code
Provision A.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

As at the date of this report, the Company has
appointed three INEDs, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. Each of the INEDs has confirmed his
independence of the Company and the Company
considers each of them to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal
vacancy or, subject to authorisation by the
Shareholders in general meeting, as an additional
Director. Where vacancies exist, the Board shall
carry out selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, qualification, integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each
AGM provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The
INEDs have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between the Executive
Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses
and affairs as well as unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with
Board papers and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. Al
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
had received for the Period to the Company.

(A)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Appointed on 1 June 2020)

During the Year, the Board held four meetings and
meetings on 26 April and 25 June 2021 and, amongst
other matters, approved the Consolidated Financial

(R_F_FTF A HBZL)

REEAN  EFFRITOAGHE -
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TEERWE
(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A EE=GE)
The individual training record of each Director received REBERFE  FEFEZEI2EAZESI 0
for the Year is set out below: N
Reading materials and/
or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,
operations and corporate
governance matters
HEEEEY  EER
TCEEREERTENR
Name of Directors EEHR RNHEEEHEE EHR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong (Chairman, TESEE (FE - BEHNTTE FEICTE) v
Chief Executive Officer and (R-_FE-_FFPH— HEZE)
General Manager)
(Appointed on 1 April 2020)
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman) &% 4 (B E ) v
Mr. WONG Lui AZEEE v
Ms. GAO Lan SRZET v
NEDs FHITES
Ms. Chan (Resigned on 1 April 2020) Bzt (R=-F=—FFmH—HEHT) v
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang BRI &4 v
(Appointed on 1 April 2020) (R=ZFE=—FFPYA—HEZ)
INEDs BYFYITES
Mr. XIE Gang I 5 A v
Mr. LEE Man To $iﬁzi‘é’5‘a$ v
(Resigned on 22 May 2020) (R=ZF=ZFFHHA=+=HFF)
Mr. HE Dingding BTTxAE v
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen ENOL: s v

WHR—ZE=——F
+HH %?TQE&

EUMBBRLREEHES - KX

Statements and the appointment of new Directors.
At these Board meetings, the Directors discussed
and exchanged their views on significant issues and
general operations of the Group, reviewed the financial
performance and reviewed and approved the interim
and final results as well as approved a very substantial
disposal transaction for the Shareholders’ approval at
a special general meeting.

FEFEERL EFHAKENEZREL MK
LEETHRMERRER  REMBRER - URE
BRI R RKAREARBEFFTERNLER
SHBRANBRS IR S EHLE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. He also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. This deviates from Code Provision A.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code, which stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. In view of the present composition
of the Board as well as the in-depth knowledge and
experience of Mr. Wong in relation to the operation
and business of the Company and in the industry, the
Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the
best interest of the Company at the present stage to
vest the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person as it helps to facilitate the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and
maximize the effectiveness of its operation. In addition,
Mr. SHI Feng (“Mr. Shi”), the Executive Director, is the
Deputy Chairman, and hence, there will be a balance
of power and authority for Mr. Wong as both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

(A)

(B)
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(B) CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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(D)

46|

(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wong, being the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. He would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage the Directors
to actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. Shi, being the Deputy Chairman, is responsible
for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a specific
enquiry by the Company with each of the Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2021
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended and are properly prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their reporting
responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s report of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
(the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Mr. HE Dingding.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

o reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

(E)

(F)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the Year and a meeting on 25 June 2021 and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved (i)
for presentation to the Board for consideration and
approval the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and (i) audit-related matters. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the Year,
amongst others, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited (“BDO”), Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent
Auditor, in respect of the Year amounted to
HK$1,040,000 and total fees paid/payable in relation
to non-audit service provided by BDO for the Year
amounted to HK$120,000.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO as the
Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the 2021
AGM.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(G) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG
Ping Kuen , two Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year and a meeting on 25 June 2021 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration certain remuneration-
related matters of the Directors and senior
management as well as the proposed Directors.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
During the Year, amongst others, the Remuneration
Committee (i) evaluated and reviewed the performance
of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company in respect of FY2020;
and (i) recommended to the Board for consideration
on the discretionary bonus for FY2020 of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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(H NOMINATION COMMITTEE R

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding
and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen, one NED Mr. CHAN Kin
Sang and two Executive Directors Mr. WONG Lui and
Ms. GAO Lan.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year and a meeting on 25 June 2021 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2021 AGM as well as the
nomination of new Directors. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst
others, the Nomination Committee (i) assessed the
independence of the INEDs; (i) reviewed the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and the board diversity
policy; and (iii) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the 2020 AGM.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship(s) to the Board by giving
due consideration to the criteria, including but not
limited to Board diversity, qualifications, experience,
independence, reputation for integrity and potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the
Board before making recommendation to the Board.
The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the
candidate(s) by interviews, background checks etc.
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(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and
process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include
but are not limited to the following (collectively
the “Criteria”):

(@) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others,
of gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the
Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(c)  Qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Group’s business is involved;

(d)  Independence;

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

® Potential contributions that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession
of the Board;
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(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Vi
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Viil.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside of
the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment, and where a NED
is considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected
candidate to be interviewed by the members
of the Board, who are not members of the
Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment
as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as Director of
the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities,
if required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June 2016
delegated such responsibilities to the Audit Committee
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised and adopted on 17 June 2016 to include
the responsibilities on reviewing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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EXREBRE

(J) ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORSAND (J)) ESRZEEHENSRHELTHE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board TREISZESHERAFERT L EETLEHE
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general EXZZERERENRARRRREAS AL -

meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
HREBNEERETNY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpg Ezg EREEE FMzES REZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. Wong ARE 2/4 N/A 0 N/A 11
TER TER
Mr. SHI Feng RELE 3/4 N/A 11 N/A 11
NEMA NEA
Mr. WONG Lui pispied 3/4 N/A N/A 1N 11
TER TER
Ms. GAO Lan BELL 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
TER TER
NEDs FUTES
Ms. Chan Bzt N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER TER TER
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang PR 3/4 N/A N/A 11 11
TER TER
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. XIE Gang AR A 3/4 2/2 11 11 1N
Mr. LEE Man To FHBERE N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TER NER NEH
Mr. HE Dingding ETTHE 4/4 2/2 11 11 11

Mr.WONG Ping Kuen ~ =/WigL4: 4/4 2/2 11 il il
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control framework. The controls are
to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
The systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting the
tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRE

(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EpsEER AP (E)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions set
out in code provision C.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code by having adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle
risks. The Group has developed and adopted a
strategic planning and risk management policy, which
is designed to enhance risk management of the Group
by identifying, analyzing and evaluating the possible
material risks which shall have adverse impact on
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, including
strategic risks, financial risks, market risks, operational
risks and legal and regulatory risks. Divisions and
department heads are responsible for the first line
of defence. They oversee the daily operations of
their own business units and are accountable for the
conduct and performance of their own operations.
Any incidents regarding non-compliance of their
operations with regulations and laws, failure to identify
or properly manage the risks associated with their
business units, which might lead to financial or non-
financial losses to the Group, shall be reported to the
legal and compliance department and the internal
audit department of the Group (the “Internal Audit
Function”). As the second line of defence, the Internal
Audit Function defines rule sets and models, provides
professional advices, develops work plans of internal
audit, as well as monitor and review the processes,
practices and procedures of internal controls for
all business units on a regular basis. It annually
prepares internal audit report containing findings and
recommendations for improvements in respect of the
risk management and internal controls and submits
such report to the Audit Committee for review. It also
ensures that risks are within the acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line
of defence, the Audit Committee, with the professional
advices and opinions from the Internal Audit Function,
ensures that the first and second lines of defence are
effective through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to
the Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable. _

AEERAFERMN=_ERRERITEASR - 5F
i~ EERERERRE  CEEEEERTAIAST
AR C.215R P8 oY LR & 38 S IR BB BE 1 <7 H‘JMK ¢
$¢I5%mﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬁﬂ&ﬂAaﬁﬁ%

EHA - ﬁ&%ﬁﬂLﬁﬁ%lH%ﬁ?ﬂéé
WT%EKHF@ﬁﬁWHA PR - mIHE
@ EERRARERIERRAR) - Mﬁﬂ$il

mHME “%&%WIEQEM EE
LREEKBEMNNEEEE - MﬁEMME
LT?&%EE cAMEMBREEEEREZER

ER KRB HEERBREEXBELAFARR
(AJREBHAKEHIRM B IFMBRRNER - A
) AN 55 [ B A 12 Ko & AR BB P A B A BR 2 A B P9 R e
(TABELBEE] - AEXBEFERIE _EHR
RERGRIINLBRE  REZXEZH  BREER
HELIEETE - AR EREERBHMAEEEMN
MAREERRF - B RIE - EE8FnRRER

MABEERHEABEZRE (HEATER EZ

HEER) ARNEZZEQRXAMBEARE
B - AnERERERRAEIKY - BE—EH

BRBEW BERZRESE/RKNK  ABAAME
IMEXRZNER  BREEAMRERBERE -
BRE_BHRTZER

ARBABEREES KRR EXIVARE L EH
MAIZEE - WRARRERHEBHEBK EAE
W BEFATHER  BREEMAAREMERE
RAREE ©

= [0 il Y = =t
56/ /l!l/sino: arbourlHoldings!Groupllimited < ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



(K)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

o establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

o restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession of
inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

° disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;
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(K)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;

° provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such
policy;

° document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation up
to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before the
inside information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company shall take reasonable measures to preserve
the confidentiality of the information. In the opinion of
the Board, where the information has not been kept
confidential or there has been a leak, the Company
must issue a public announcement by way of the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange as soon as reasonably practicable. If the
Board needs time to clarify details of, and the impact
arising from, an event or a set of circumstances
before it is in a position to issue a full announcement
to properly inform the public, the Board shall
consider issuing a “holding announcement”. There
are circumstances where confidentiality has not
been maintained and the Board is not able to make
a full announcement or a holding announcement,
the Board shall consider applying for a trading halt
in its securities until disclosure can be made. All
announcements in relation to inside information
disclosure should be properly approved by the Board
and issued to the public without delay.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EREERAIDEE(E)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of BUZBMERFEEZRERFERENEEZEE
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant NEAEBRREGSVBMRBEIATEE - B
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated AFEEECCLERERZECRFRIAEER
financial statements within the scope of their audit. REBENAMEERS 2 MEE - WERFTARAE
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit i AREF LM BERBRESFENER - BT
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness MERRKES  UWEKEEMEINENIREREH
of the risk management and internal control systems REREGRH EFSHERAARERE RN
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of BERETRERBR -

resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the

Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions, and their training programmes

and budget. The Board believes that the existing

risk management and internal control systems are

adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND (L) EERESREEESHH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate RIBREEATASFANEEB. 1.5 - FHBEHRAE
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members FRIEERAVERBECBRFARI —H2AFE
of the senior management (other than the Directors) ARERETBEREES) N EFTMRERFINWT -
whose particulars are contained in the section headed

“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior

Management” in this annual report for the Year by

band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$) Number of individuals
e E Gl AE”
Nil to 1,000,000

£ 21,000,000 4
1,000,001 to 2,000,000

1,000,00122,000,000 1
COMPANY SECRETARY (M) REWE

The Company has appointed Ms. YUE Sau Lan (“Ms.
Yue”) as the Company Secretary with effect from 26
January 2021.

Ms. Yue was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as
the Company Secretary and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the
Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered
into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Yue
has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Billy, the Group’s financial
controller.

ARRIBZZE-_—F A+ RAREERFHLK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRE

(M) COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

(N)

(0)

ol

Ms. Yue attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during the Year
pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
has been/will be subject to the Board’s approval at its
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the meeting.
Vote results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting (Continued)

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2153 1688
Facsimile: (852) 3020 5058

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

(P)

Procedures for Making Proposals at the
Meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has posted its constitutional documents on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

(0)

(P)

R R AEF ()
RBRRASLREBRZERF

MR RAEEREZR  REAMQAGMEEZR
ZEBRCEARANBRFABEER - it AR
NARBBZETEEEMBI (I AT ENELMS
SHIE|B37-305 AL IR =R L BEE1215E) - B EK
BHEARABIZEEROBFELDERZE  WAF
EHRAZEXENRER  RANEEANEETLIRLY
BEBARENAREASHENA -

HEEEXH
ARBEBERXMRAFEAL EEREE -

RiE EMHRAIF13.901F - RABERBRARAR
A& BOETIEHEBRERE T -

JIANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited is pleased to publish
the Environmental, Social, and Governance (the “ESG”)
report, highlighting its ESG performance, with disclosure
reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “HKex”).

The Group principally engaged in the property development
in the second and third tire cities in China. The head office
is located in Hong Kong. The property project included
residential properties, detached housing, apartments, retails
as well as commercial properties.

The Group, since the previous reporting period, has actively
expanding the pharmaceutical inspection and other medical
related business. The scope of this report has hence
included the pharmaceutical inspection subsidiary named
Zhejiang IPS which was not included in the scope last year.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in
two subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the
business operations in China and Hong Kong from 1 April
2020 to 31 March 2021, unless otherwise stated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERWE

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The sustainable development of the Group consists not
only of establishing and environmental, health and safety
stewardship, but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The Group strive to provide different
kinds of properties with cozy amenity and lifestyles of health
and sustainability to the society.

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders and enhances
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting
for its shareholders with a highly transparent and open
attitude.

The Group’s business sustainability strategy is based on
integrity, ethics, green innovation, originality, quality and
safety and shareholders’ value. With such strategy, green
property for sustainable future will be achieved. The Group
is fully committed to resource-efficiency innovations,
environmental and social friendly operations. Such
engagement enables the Group to operate its business
with greater transparency and effective risk management
framework. The Board oversees the process to engage
stakeholders, identifies material topics, and oversee the risk
management framework.

The Group also holds a high standard in business ethics
and invest in sustainable businesses. It is committed to
improving quality of the communities and the environment,
whilst providing long-term returns to its shareholders.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION
(CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

The Group communicates with key stakeholders through
daily interaction to understand their concerns and
expectations on ESG issues. Through regular engagement
sessions, the Group obtains valuable feedback and reviews
areas of attention which will help the business to meet its
potential growth and be prepared for future ESG challenges.
Communication channels are as follows:

RR - HEBRERBHRE
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Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
FHE AR EE BBERE
Shareholders and investors o Corporate governance system o Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
RERIEES e  DEER/RER other shareholder meeting
e Business strategies and e RKREBFRGLRHEMBRRAE
performance ° Annual Reports and Interim Reports

o EBRBEERR

° Corporate transparency and °

reputation

s DLXREPAREBE

o  FEWMERPHRE
Announcements and Circulars
o ALERBH

° Company website and email

. A48k K B E

Customers and business partners ° Property and service quality ° Customer Satisfaction Survey

° Delivery time
o RfTEE

° Pricing
e EfE
Employees ° Rights and benefits

(=1 o FEFIEAEF

° Remuneration and compensation °

o HrEMEEwm(E

o Career development and training °

o RBEFBTREE
° Working hours
U T e

o Progress Meetings

. EEEH

° Communication with staff and
management

e HETKEERENES

° Trainings, Seminars, and Briefing
Sessions

gl - g kENE

° Performance Reviews

EE

° Intranet

. B A

° Employee communication meetings

e Occupational health and safety e [EBEEBE

o MEfFEHAZR . Employee handbook
e Working environment e [EEFM

o  I{EIRIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION
(CONTINUED)

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality (Continued)

IHEEREREER®

FOESEREEM @

Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
BoE T RERAE R R RE BERE
Suppliers and subcontractors ° Supplier management ° Supplier Management Meetings and
HEF RS BEH HEFER Events
e Customer service e (HEMEBEGREEH
o  EPIR®% e Supplier Review
s MHEBED
° Site visits
o  EMIR
Media, NGOs, and the public o Community environment o ESG Report
HEE - FEBFEBE AR o HEIRIE e IRIE - HERERWE
o Employment and community ° Community activities
development o  HMEEH

e EREITEER
° Social welfare
o iEEF

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk.

A. Environmental

Types of emissions the Group contributed towards
in the reporting period were mainly due to petrol,
electricity, water and paper consumption. The
business does not involve in consumption of
packaging materials, production-related air, water,
and land pollutions which are regulated under national
laws and regulations.

° Employee voluntary activities
e [EEEIEH

° Community welfare subsidies
o tHRIBHFHAL

° Charitable donations

o KEEIRE

EHESRRE
AEEBRALAFEDEHRMANRE HekERE
BMERRREEREER - HF HTEBEHRE

B ETHEZI»E BTHER  EHiiu A
enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk °

A. BE
RBREHE AEBELENBERDEZIERARA
B OKREEROER c DETHRBETEEE
BMELNBEMERER  AEMRBOER  KER
TEFE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

Since the Group’s operations consist mainly of
property development with construction work
outsourced, it does not have a material consumption
of natural resources and the production of hazardous
wastes. However, sales office and administration
office may inevitably produce non-hazardous
waste and consume fuels. Therefore, the Group
places the highest priority on reduction of the non-
hazardous wastes and limitation of gas consumption
by vehicles. Currently, the Group is not aware of
actual environmental risks on the Group’s business,
strategies and financial performance. Since the scope
of report this year has involved the pharmaceutical
inspection operation, increase of electricity
consumption and GHG emission is inevitable
compares to the last year.

The Group understands that electricity and water
consumed, as well as medical wastes generated in
its business operation, contribute to the consumption
of natural resources and poses a minor risk to public
health and the environment. Therefore, electricity
and water saving initiatives were highly promoted
and implemented in its workplace, medical wastes
were treated cautiously according to the Integrated
wastewater discharge standard (GB8978) of China
and the Group’s guidelines during the reporting
period. Details of electricity and water saving initiatives
and handling of medical wastes are discussed below
in the corresponding sections.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was
15,801.77m>.

RR - HEBRERBHRE

FOERRRBRGER
A. BRE@E

AEENEBEIERMERE  BETREEI2INE
TEMG A AFREBRERORNERBIARE
EEEVNEL - BHEREMTBRAZETAE R
WeELEEREZYRERMRE - Bt - AEEH
WA EERZY LR EHO TREREIRESD
ZE - BE ARERRARINBEES - KRR
BREMNTAERRERR - ARAFENRE S
ERREmlE% AUEEERIEEREDH
MEREFIEL NFEABERMAPMER -

AEEEHZNFEANERKAREBLETELERN
BREEZRVEENARERBRLLERRERENIR
BEREMER - Bt - AEEERSHRAEE
TSR RN ETEEEUKIER - REBETENS
IKERE HERR 4 (GBBI78) R A S H mY 2 A FEAE iR 38
BEERY - HEA/KERARBRERYEEDN
AHBRN T XMEEERF -

g M M iE S E B EUA15,801.77F 7K »

ARERENARAT

sozo/4 %1116




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. RE@E
1.  Greenhouse Gas Emission 1. BEREHH
() Greenhouse Gas Emissions ) BREREEHM
Scope of Greenhouse Emission Total Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tCO.€) (in percentage)
HEHE
(LAmE — & (b ik wEEmE
BERBHEREE BERRRIR E=25) (LB e
Scope 1
=1
Direct Emission Combustion of LPG and natural 42.68 7%
BEHNR gas in stationary sources
B ERMBRIEAHARKAR
HRIEE
Combustion of petrol in mobile
sources
B EIRE )T
Scope 2
HiE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 549.99 91%
HEEEz 35 SN )
Scope 3
E3
Other Indirect Emission Paper waste disposed at landfills 11.6 2%
H b R B HIEEREENAREREED
Total 604.27
st
Note1:  Emission factors were made reference to MaE1 . BRBBEHBAN  BERUREB2REERS
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing REEMAERARGIEANER TR A
Rules and their referred documentation Mgk =+ R ERMA S -
as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, unless stated
otherwise.
Note 2:  Electricity consumed in Hong Kong was WeE2: REBOAESEHEAPEENEGRA
provided by CLP, with latest emission AR —ETFHNENERERA
factor of 0.57 in 2020. 0.57
Note 3:  Emission factor for South China is MaE3 . EEmEOBRESEATEELRES
0.8042 issued by Ministry of Ecology RZZE—NFAMRI0.8042 °
and Environment of the PRC 2019.
There was 604.27 tonnes of carbon REHE  AEEMHEELEMN
dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases B4 27THE — LI EEMNAERE(EE
(mainly carbon dioxide, methane and Btk  FRE—E1R) FEH
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s BEE A0V —RILIREE,FHKE
eperation in the reporting period. The COME—SE(LMESE A °

- annual emission intensity was 0.04 tCO.e/
m?and 2.91 tCOQe/employee

([ :Hoia’i"ﬁgs“Gfrdup: =5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Greenhouse Gas Emission (Continued)

()

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

The Group strives to continually improve
its sustainability practices and reduce
its overall emissions and impacts on the
environment. Regarding air emissions,
due to the Group’s business nature,
it considers the relevant air emissions
generated as insignificant. However, it still
pays attention to the limited air emissions
that are generated by their electricity
consumption and vehicles. The Group
strives to mitigate the energy consumption
as much as possible.

Consequently, the Group is not aware
of any significant issues on energy
consumption and disposal.

Additionally, in the aspect of GHG
emissions, the Group is aware that the
principal GHG are generated from the
petrol consumption of vehicles (Scope
1) and purchased electricity (Scope 2).
Hence, the Group has adopted the various
measures to mitigate the direct GHG
emissions from petrol consumption and
electricity used in its daily operation.

The Group has developed preventive
measures for contractors to better
manage the emission on sites.
Contractors are also required to set up
on-site preventive measures for emissions
control. For property management, the
Group has installed a mechanical exhaust
system in underground parking lots. The
system measures the concentrations
of the gaseous emission to ensure the
concentrations are maintained within the
safety range stipulated in the standard that
required by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR - HEBRERBHRE

FOERRRBRGER
A. BRE@E

1. BEREHME)
()

ARERENARAT

SR RE B ()
AEBERINFEERTRELERE
B ROEBRBANERBREENNE
£ - EERKYRITE  EERIEHOMNE
g AEERRAELNHEBERER
EFR BENEe@IYEERENRER
EEXHERFR AKEBEENG6
RHERERERE -

At - AERE A FHEIMEREEERER
KERENEAHE o

AN ERERBERSTE  AREE
B TBERERBELABER VAR
(BERINEEN (HE2) - FHt - A&
BB ZEERRDURERELENE
ZRERBHN - URERELERR
PENER e

AEBEAEBEHTEBEE - UE
IS IR T MMM - RBRMASE
TH B i - SRR - B EE
B AEEDRETESERER
MR RS - RRGUEREH R
B OARGEERRBAENEEERET
MIEEFRENR 2 BER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. RE@E
1.  Greenhouse Gas Emission (Continued) 1. BEREHMGE)
(i) Direct Emission (i)  EEHN
A total of 12,969 litres of petrol, 696.46 REmEHE FEEEBENERAUAR
cubic meter of town gas and 2,237.5 kg EMEENEELFER12,9697 7
of LPG was used for the Group-owned 696.4637 FoRRAME KX 2,237.5F =&
vehicles and canteen of different offices {tEHBR - EE60.56F = —SE({tRA
during the reporting period, contributing 019F ZH ALY - 1.68F mER YA Bt
to 60.56 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.19 kg MK 426808 —EbiixE S HEM
of sulphur oxides, 1.68 kg of particulate
matter emissions and 42.68 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent emission.
(i) Electricity (i) &

ol

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

Totally seven office operation in China
and one office operation in Hong Kong is
included in the scope of this report. The
electricity consumption by the eight offices
of the Group was 687,286.8 kWh, with
11,640 kWh consumed in Hong Kong
Office and 675,646.8 kWh consumed in
the seven offices in China account for an
energy intensity of 43.49 kWh/m? and
3,304.26 kWh/employee. The Group
encourages staff to adopt energy saving
measures through reminders and email.
For example, switching off unnecessary
lighting and electronic appliances.

ERENEEREEARES SN —E
WEREEBINALRENSRE - XEH
NEHERHAEE H687,286.8FT 1
B Hf BEREEAE=/11,640
TEE AENLENEENAEE A
675,646.8 T FLE : REIREE AB43.49F R
B 7K %3,304.26F FLB /A o A&
ERBREEENENHEBHE TRITEH
BEHEME WA T MNENEARE TR
[EE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Greenhouse Gas Emission (Continued)

(iv)

Water

Water consumption by the Group was
7,845.96 m?, with water intensity of 0.5
ms/m? and 37.72 m3%/employee. It is
noteworthy that the water consumption
figures of two out of the eight offices was
unavailable as it was managed by the
management company of the office. The
consumption of the said two location was
insignificant. Nevertheless, the Group
reminds its staff to reduce water usage
whenever possible.

Hazardous Waste

The Group generates 3,120 kg hazardous
waste in the pharmaceutical inspection
unit, Zhejiang IPS. The hazardous wastes
generated is mainly in liquid state. The
Zhejiang University of Technology is
appointed by the group to collect and
treat the related waste monthly with due
care. Zhejiang University of Technology is
a licensed third-party qualified in handling
those medical waste.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s waste was mainly generated
from its construction sites and office,
including non-hazardous waste types
such as construction waste, food waste
in the canteen and paper in the office.
All the construction work of the Group
are outsourced to contractors but the
Group by no means to turn a blind eye
on their operation. The Group has set
up monitoring system to identify areas
of improvements. A transparent and
verifiable waste recording system is set up
on each property to enable performance
monitoring.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RR - HEBRERBHRE

BFHERRREE
A BIR@
1. BERBEHHE)
(v) 7K

ARERENARAT

NEBBAKE A7,845.9637 7K - KB
fER0.55 K, FRHKRI7.725 F K,
A BEFSEIEMNE  \EAHREREFHE
MEAREREHRMESENTNEE  BEitt
EFESHEMENERNAKEERE -
HREREENBKETK  BEXEH
NHEREE TEM MR D AKE -

EEEZEY

ANEE R B RRBETITE R E A
3120F R BEEEY - MEANBERE
EMETLRE - AEBZENTITE
AEGAZEREYRERBEEEY -
T ITERELREERGEIEEREREY
HFEEE=F -

BEEEEY
AEBNERMIEELRNEZETH R
WAE BREEEERY WEEEZR

Y EBRNER  BHAENHRERE K
SEMERETRBINETREH A
EHEEPAEERTENEIARE=Z
BHOR - AEBEEVEBERS &5l
FRENIE  SEMEHRLEH
AERNBEMCTHERAREESEAR
i o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
A. Environmental (Continued) A. RE@E
1.  Greenhouse Gas Emission (Continued) 1. BEREHMGE)
(iv)  Water (Continued) (v) K(#E&)
Non-hazardous Waste (Continued) mERZEY(E)
To promote waste separation at source, RIBERELNEEDSE - RMET
waste streams are made readily available. TEMR DM o N BB ER D RERE
Procedure for reduction of construction EYMRBRAEEREYMNRET - BIEET
waste and office waste is in place by BERBARAEEEYEELH -
implementing arrangement of recycling of
office waste management.
A total of 16,075 kg of non-hazardous REmEHE  AEENEEAELERE
waste mainly food waste from the canteen BEEM16,075F % - T ERBEEH °
of the Group’s operation was generated XHTH s RN BREAETRAEE
in the reporting period. A total 2,416.5 EHF A MKR2,416.5F 5% - XEBEKS
kg of paper has been used for daily HHEAERRER  CEZEFERERB
office operations such as documents BN A O54.8 T mREAR o
printing and deliverables packaging. With
the Group’s effort in enhancing paper
recycling, 54.8 kg of waste paper has
been collected by licensed recycling
company.
(v)  Business Air Travels ()  AiZEE

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any business air travel
because of Covid-19 pandemic. No
GHG emission has contributed by air
travel. However, the Group will strive to
reduce business air travel in the future by
using teleconference meetings and other
electronic communication.

RIERE T ERBEFE  AEH
EAAMEZER  fEl A EREEEM
BERBBEEN - BERK  AEEBHE
BEmexlEtETRATNRDM
ZEER o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HRERRE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. RE@E
2. Use of Resources 2 EEFREH
Energy BEJR

The Group aims to minimise environmental
impacts in its operations by identifying and
adopting appropriate measures in its operations.
All Contractors are notified to implement
such policies and measures on resource
utilisation. Regular review is conducted on
its energy objectives and targets to seek
continuous improvement in the Group’s energy
performance. During designing and planning
phases of its properties, preference is given to
energy saving building materials and equipment.

Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption by the Group was
841,429.9 Kilowatt-hour (“kWh”), with an overall
energy intensity of 4,045.33 kWh per employee
during the reporting period.

Direct/indirect

AEBELETHRNRFEREZRE - B

HEEMIR

BREERER/

C WIBAMATE AR

BRITEHERERANER RER - AEEE
MBI EH R B R EER - RRERKIRNE
BIE - EYMENRGTERIEER  AKEE

JEfE P ERRE

BEJFIHFE

SERTRL B RR A o

REHE AEBENBEREREE AR
841,429 9 F L ([T EREF]) - BERREEER
4,045.33T R B,/ A ©

Consumption

Consumption

energy sources Usage (unit) (kWh) Energy intensity
HEE HFEE
B BERRRR A& (1) (FEE) HREE
Petrol For vehicles 12,969 Litre 115,424.1
i B 12,9697t
LPG For canteen 2,237.5 kg 31,367.5
BALAHR g 2,2375T %
Town Gas For canteen 696.46 m?® 7,351.5
RARE g 696.4637 77 K
Electricity For office 687,286.8 kWh 687,286.8
operations
- MAREE 687,286.8F FLEF
Total 841,429.9 4,045.33 kWh/
employee
et 841,429.9 4,045.33
FEEA

Note: Conversion factors were made reference to IEA
Energy Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

HaE -

BREREUTD2ZBBERBERSAFMR S

TEAERHHARE L EMEERARES
REEEEEmHE -

ARERENARAT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

||Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

ElrZ |

Use of Resources (Continued)
Water

Freshwater consumed for the Group’s daily
business operations is supplied by municipal
freshwater supplier. The Group did not consume
significant amount of water through business
activities and the water consumption was
considered minimal. The Group has set up
procedures for water conservation measures.

There is a monitoring system for overlooking
the water consumption in the construction site.
The Group has incorporated various water
conservation apparatus in its building designs,
including central water reuse facilities and water-
saving toiletries to efficiency manage water
consumption from cradle to grave.

Packaging Material

The Group’s businesses did not involve any
use of packaging materials; hence no data nor
information is being presented in this report.

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

The Group strictly complied with all national
and local laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection and the use of natural
resources during the year under review. To
alleviate its impact on the environment and
natural resources, the Group has followed
green building concept in the development of
real estate. The Group will continue to adhere
to the safety, harmony and green development
concept and make unremitting efforts to create
a resource-saving and eco-friendly corporation
in the future.

The Group has established and implemented
various controlling and mitigation schemes. In
particular, the Group’s real estate development.
All projects are required to demonstrate
environmentally responsible building practices.

FOERRRBRGER

RiE ()

2.

BRERH &)

7K

RNEE A KL EF AR KK BT BRKE
FERSMLIE - TEBEEP  AREVEFAK
EMKER  ALAKERABG/) - KEEE
i E TR P B AR K IR e o

BERTHRLEEZRENAKE - AEEE
RERFTRMAZREKERE - anhRKkEA
RN EKRI AR A - WRBRIRKIERE
MEBKERER °

BEMH
AEBHEBTSRAEFOETHGER B
AR ET 2 BIERMBE R AR -

EXBEBHRENEAZE

REEFE  AEEERETERARERER
BARABERERNMAAEBRRK M TERER -
BOHBRBEARERNTE - AREEF
ERETEEGERERS  RRMGEER
FHZ: NHEEGEERRER U THHE
N ATE-FKEREERE R IR -

AEECRUYYBETZHREERATERE - L
HEFMERES  MAERBARTHRER
AEHREEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

Use of Resources (Continued)

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment (Continued)

By committing to green concept, the project
demonstrates a comprehensive improvement
on various environmental criteria including
site plan, water efficiency, energy and
atmosphere, material and resources, and indoor
environmental quality.

Noise Mitigation

The Group strive to reduce noise pollution
at every construction site. For short-
term impacts caused by the works during
construction, the Group controls noise to
within established standards and guidelines
through implementation of mitigation measures
such as the use of temporary noise barriers
and silenced construction equipment to
reduce noise generation. The contractors are
required to implement noise control measures
in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

Climate Change

To echo with international concerns on climate
change, the Group will begin assessing the
short-, medium- and long-term materiality of
climate-related risks and opportunities for the
Group. Currently, the Group has introduced
green design and building process for the real
estate development projects to mitigate the
effects of environmental and other destructive
hazards. The Group will continue to monitor the
impact of climate change that will potentially
bring to the Group in the coming year and react
in a responsible manner.

RR - HEBRERBHRE

FOEERREGE
A RRE
2. EBRER#E

RETDHRENEAZE (E)

AAHTRERSE  2HEESERREE

FHEGRERE - REREDET0HE
RAHE « REAR - A REERARER
BHEE -
FEERE

AEBNFRLBEZETHNRE TR - Y
REEEEPRBIREKNEHRTE - A&
ERBEARRREERERFTEERBEED
REEBOBRENESL - BRIEHEDRM
MIRERIESIRENRER - ABBHAREN
AR ERBRZEFIEG -

AR

AERERY EHRTRE O - AEE
0083 S IR AR BELR VG 2] - P R A
EEUURAEETHEORE - BA - A%
EEARMERRIEA S AKBRT RRET
g RS HBRENYEREMEEES -
R —4F - A B B R IR L AT e
AEBERNTE IR R A AT
Y -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
B. Social B. #®g
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREIEHR
() Employment 0 1EE
The Group had a total number of 240 BHE_ZT-_—F=HA=+—H ' A5H
employees as of 31 March 2021, in which HE240%EE  FIEREREHRZBIE
all of them are full time employees. g o
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER TOTAL WORKFORCE BY CATEGORY
EHRE s NEEREE RERESTNESRAY
Senior
Management
BREEE

Male

-1 -..~‘\é?9’12D9@
(121, 50.0%) Illlll">
Middle
Management

PAREEE
(33, 14.0%)

Female c Frontline and
P Other Employees

(119, 50.0%) —BREMET
(178, 74.0%)

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY CATEGORY

EFRETHEERY

56 or above 18-25
563k A (29, 12.0%)
(15, 6.0%)

46-55
(29, 12.0%)

26-35
(107, 45.0%)

36-45
(60, 25.0%)

il 1 H | E | |: 10—
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

()

Employment (Continued)
Work Policies

The Group has formulated policies in
determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees in accordance
with local employment laws. Apart from
the basic leaves, such as annual leaves,
employees are also entitled to additional
leaves, such as maternity leave, childcare
leave, marriage leave, and compassionate
leave, if such leave periods are granted in
accordance with the relevant employment
laws, and leaves are in accordance with
the provision of the local employment
regulations.

The Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance in relation to
employment during the reporting period.

Competitive Compensation and Benefits
Package

Employees are entitled to basic salary
with various allowance as per their job
positions, age and extra work hours, year-
end bonus on performance. Basic social
insurance including pension, medical,
work-related injury, unemployment
compensation and maternity. Various
types of leave are provided including
annual, sick, work-related injury, marriage,
maternity and compassionate leave. The
Group regularly reviews employees’ salary
together with business growth and market
price.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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B. #E(#)

1. FERERETERGE)

()
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TYEBR

AEBERBM T BELZEZHEARE
ETHRERKESRMNEE - BT F
BREEARY  RETEEER BR
B BERAKRRMEREEIIMRE - AT
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RBERRE - ~AEEBEEMEHEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) 0 1EFEGE)
Internal Promotion NERE T

78| Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

Internal promotion and job opportunities
are offered to existing employees and
selection is based on the monthly reviewed
work capability, attitude, and quality of
work of the employees on a point scoring
system. Employees are encouraged to
discuss their goals in job advancement
and career development.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

A diverse and skilled workforce is
crucial for its business. The Group is
committed to create and maintain an
inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture. It is dedicated to providing equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment
and maintaining workplace that are free
from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual based
on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.
The Group also strives to ensure that
complaints, grievances and concerns,
including whistleblowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group
has zero tolerance on sexual harassment
or abuse in the workplace of any form.

Employee Communication

No major activities were carried out due
to the pandemic. However, the Company
does occasional packed catering for its
workers and carry out mini activities for
workers to interact.

AEBAREREREREAMEARIE
e - ERNERE AU AR
BETNIEESD RBERTIEEERF
- AREZEREREECE —EAR
WEBENTHEEFEREEROBRE -

FEHERZ T

SRR EMARNE TROHREE
MEEREER - AEEZR IR EERE
ERRBEAENEEXL  NFHERER
MAABTEEEFERELRETIFS
PR NSt ERARER - % B
& Mh - FRNOERE - Fi B
B BRI RERA R AR - S
AERE - NRERE DR LE AR
B ARERG - TRREINEE
(BHREHR) - AEREYH TIESHMHPERTY
ANERBREGRHTRREE -

BEAR

EHERBERE  ARAAFREME
RES EERESERRETHE
R HARNMUESEESTS -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(i) Employment (Continued)

Turnover

A total number of 54 employees left the
Group in 2020/21, contributing to overall
turnover rate of 25.96%. The annual
turnover rates (categorized by gender and
age groups) in the reporting period are as
follows:

Staff Turnove Rate by Gender
RUBIE S EERK LR

T _

pogid

Male

St

254% 25.5% 25.6% 25.7% 25.8% 25.9% 26.0% 26.1% 26.2% 26.3%

RR - HEBRERBHRE

FOERRRBRGER
B. &)

1. FERERETESRGE)

0 EREGE)
BEmALE
M-oE-—E /- —EF HE54LE
E\%’Eﬁﬁﬁﬁé ! %ﬁ%1@§um%tt$ﬁ
25.96% - R EHEMNFERE R KL

KRR R FRARB )T

Staff Turnover Rate by Category
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R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety () EERFHELZE

0| || sino Harbdur Holdings Group Limited

The Group is committed to provide
and maintain a safe and healthy
working environment for the benefit of
our employees, subcontractors, and
suppliers. It has set out clear terms for
project management approaches and
commitments to health and safety. The
Group reviews the policy annually, or
when incidents arising determine a need
to review, to ensure that the procedure
remains relevant and appropriate.

The Health and Safety system includes
main-contractor and subcontractor
responsibilities, and the management’s
commitments to safety and health. The
policy also states the requirement of
sub-contractor to provide sufficient and
appropriate resources at the site. The
system is reviewed at intervals, or when
there is a change of operations that
requires other sources and personnel
management.

In addition, the Group has monitored the
contractors to ensure if enough various
occupational health training programmes
which aim to protect workers from health
hazards relevant to the construction
industry such as noise, dust, toxic gases
and vapours has provided.

The Group haven’t collected any work
injury figure from the contractors.
The Group is not aware of any non-
compliances during the year.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety (Continued) (i) (EERFHELE(E)
For the internal management during the R ERENABERR - REBERE
reporting period, the Group did not note REMNBAREREZEZEEHANERKR
any cases of material non-compliance ERED - WEREETER MG EE
in relation to health and safety laws and ER o BREATBERUATSE :

regulations, and strictly complied with
national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the followings:

Occupational health and safety laws and regulations complied in different regions
TR ENBERREREERER

Hong Kong The PRC

&8 il

° Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ° Law of the PRC on the Protection of

o BEZEREREED Production Safety

e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance o  HFEAETEHEERE

o [EEFEKD e Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
of the PRC

o FEITERRIGH

Occupational Health and Safety Data

BEREHEZ2HIE
2020/21

—B-% /——%
Work related fatality 0
ETERMEMILTH AR
Work injury cases >3 days 0
T{5>3R
Work injury cases <3 days 0
T{5<3H
Lost days due to work injury 0
EAITGIEETHERE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) FHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Labour Standard (i) ZTER

-182 | |lIsino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

The Group strictly complies with local
laws and does not provide employment
to children before they reach the legal age
to work as defined by the International
Labour Organisation (“ILO”) Convention
and local regulations in Hong Kong and
China.

The Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Group strictly complies
with local laws and conducts recruitment
based on all the employment requirements
in each respective. Personal data will
be collected during the recruitment
process to assist in the selection
of suitable candidates. The Human
Resources Department will also ensure
the compliance at all operations and
facilities by checking original identification
cards upon recruitment. If violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of
circumstances. The Group also sources
its candidates through legal and legitimate
sources. The HR department reviews each
applicant’s resumes to ensure they are
of appropriate legal age before engaging
them for interview.

AEEEEETHERE - T2RER
ZIEETEFROZE(WNERS THE
B(EMRE TASD RO RFE LT E
I ERFSE) ©

AEBEWANERRITHREBERE T
TERER  EETERBFAARRBR
EETHRE - ERBBEET  A5EE
WERBAER  ALEERSER
BA ANNERBTEHRBRBRZES
MERME - AERABEHREBFANEG
MR- WERERFMH  BREERB
MEBEZEN - AEETEBAEZAR
REVEREAN - ANERBEESM
KBENGE  EBFEEAZ AR
R E HATE Fik

JIANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

2.  Operating Practices

()

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a vendor
performance assessment and monitoring
system to provide the Purchasing
Department with a structured and
systematic way to assess suppliers and
sub-contractors. A comprehensive,
impartial and transparent bidding
procedure has been developed for
selecting building materials, equipment
and services from contractors or suppliers.
All contractors and suppliers are expected
to meet environmental and occupational
health and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during
the tendering procedure. Supplier and
sub-contractor evaluations are based
on product quality, ability in meeting
contractual requirements, previous project
references and delivery capability. Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

Suppliers and sub-contractors’
assessments will be conducted
periodically, and the results of the
evaluations, both positive and those
needing improvement, will be promptly
shared with the vendors. Suppliers who
consistently fail to meet the Group’s
requirements may be subjected to
suspension for future supply.
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R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices (Continued) 2. EEBEHGE)
(i) Product Responsibility (i)  EmEIF
Service Quality Assurance AR7%E ERF

-184 || ||Isino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

In order to ensure service quality is being
maintained, the Group has implemented
the quality policy and code of conduct
as internal guide for quality control. The
Group is dedicated to deliver quality
products and services which satisfy the
needs and requirements of our customers
and interested parties by continually
improving the effectiveness of the quality
management system.

The Group has also established a set
of procedures in handling customers’
feedbacks or complaints in a professional
manner. Upon receiving product or
service-related enquiries or complaints,
reviews will be conducted immediately.
After complaints are settled, customers’
satisfaction will be evaluated. The Group
has received no complaints about the
products with regards to health and
safety, advertising, labelling or any privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and method of redress during
the reporting period.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

Social (Continued)

2.

Operating Practices (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Consumer Data Protection

The Group respects the values and rights
of customers’ information assets, and
strictly complies with the customers’
information security management systems
and standards. In order to provide high-
quality services, we are determined to
strengthen the protection of customers’
privacy. In addition, the Group adheres
to the PRC Cyber Security Law. It has
implemented firewall, anti-virus, and anti-
spam solutions for our IT systems to
prevent leakage of confidential information,
which are upgraded constantly.

There has been no complaints on the
Group’s services regarding the areas of
Data Protection.

Anti-corruption

The Group has zero toleration on
any corruptions, frauds and all other
behaviours violating work ethics. It values
and upholds integrity, honesty and
fairness in the way it conducts businesses.
As spelt out in the internal control manual
and project bidding management system,
the Group has formulated related policies
on the control and prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in
each business operation and trade activity.

All employees should be alert for
occurrences of fraud and be aware that
unusual transactions or behaviours could
be indications of fraud. Employees will be
subjected to disciplinary actions if they
are found being engaged in fraudulent
activities. Disciplinary actions include
termination of an individual, or prosecution
to the appropriate law enforcement and/
or regulatory agencies for independent
investigation, depending on the situation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices (Continued) 2. EEBEHGE)
(i) Anti-corruption (Continued) (i)  RET(#E)
Whistleblowing Mechanism: Bk

6| || Sino Harbdur Holdings Group Limited

In order to further maintain and achieve
the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group
has formulated a reporting procedure.
While management is responsible for
detecting irregularities, employees are also
encouraged to report fraudulent activity
immediately to the Head of Department, or
where that is not possible, to the Director
when they discover or suspect such
activity. Whistle-blowing policies were
implemented to all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct, malpractices
or fraudulent activities. Reported cases
shall be investigated by the Group’s Audit
Committee and executive management.

During the year, the Group did not note
any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering,
including but not limited to the “Prevention
of Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap
201)”. The Group did not work with any
contractors or suppliers who failed to
comply with the laws, regulations and the
Group’s policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

3.

Community Investment

As the business continues to evolve and
develop, the group has remained steadfast in its
commitment to make a positive change in the
communities. The Group firmly believes in its role
in invigorating the communities through sharing
its prosperity. Understanding that different
segments of the communities all have their own
distinct challenges, the outreach programs have
been developed to address the particular needs
of each group.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

Looking forward to the coming years, the Group is fully
engaged in promoting sustainability culture into its business
operation, practice and daily behaviour to its employees
and contractors. Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable development
management approach that values stakeholder’s
expectations.
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  [f{#% - B{ X FTIRIR - H @ RERHmEIESI R

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page
—REBERBARENERS it BR

Environmental
RIB

Aspect A1: Emissions

[EEAT : HERY
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws P. 66
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRIKEE BHBERORERBHN - KR THOEES - BERESEEYH 668
EEEN : @BK: & O)BTFTHETAREATZENEBER LR
ESk=g
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. p. 68
RASEAE DR IRAL A PR R A R ARRA R B - £685
KPI'A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. P. 68
BASEE IR IRAL.2 BERBREMER(WMER)ZE - #6858
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. P. 71
RASEAE IR 1IRA1.3 FEXEEREYREER (MER)EE - EE
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. P. 71
BASEAE I IRA .4 FEAEEEZEYEER (WEREE - FT1H
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. p. 73
RBAE BURIRA1.5 R AUBE PE R E VIR M R PG AR o 738
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, P. 71
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BASEE IEIRA1.6 MAEEREELBEEERZEMN T L  BEEEENERKIAFHR FT1H
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  H{# - B{ X FTIRIR - L@ RERHEIESI Rl ()
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBHEA2 . ERER

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and pP.73
other raw materials.

— MR BRERER(BIBIR - K EEA R R BB 738

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. P.73

RASRAE DR IRA2.1 REAESHMERERLHEEREEEREE 738

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. P. 71

BSEE IR IRA2.2 BREKEREE - FT1H

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. P. 70

RASEAE IR 1RA2.3 i g2 R AR a5 B R PG AR o FE708

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for P. 71
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

BB E IERA2.4 i HUKEGE AR LR A ERIERE - AREAHRKREET S RATEK E1E
% o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, P.74
with reference to per unit produced.

BSEE B IRA2.5 LR MFTAEEMANEE R (WER) BEEEMGE - FT48

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[EEA3 : BIERRXAREIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment p.74
and natural resources.

— R EE BMIEBETABRBERRREREXNERTZENBE ET74H

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment P.74
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BB E 1R A3 X RSHHRERRAERNEAZERERRERBEEZEN FE748
178 -
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  H{# - B{ X FTIRIR - L@ RERHEIESI Rl ()
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Social

e

Employment and Labor Practices

EBREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws pP.77
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
—MRIKEE EAFMEARE BEREA TERKE - BRH TEHE ST EI7TH
It~ RBEBAREMEFERENE - @BX : ROETHETABR
T ENBBER MR DI ER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and P. 76
geographical region.

RS E R 1RB1 .1 RUER - EBERE - FRAR KRS S HIESEE - E76H

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. P. 79

RARAERUIEIEBI.2 RIER - FicdR RbRESHNEERKLE - E798

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2: REHEZ2

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws P. 81
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

—MRAREE FHARHZ2TERERREREEHEBELEEN : @BX : Xb) F81H
BIHBITABEAZENHBEELRONER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. P. 81

B A IR EB2.1 ETERRMIE T ABREL R o £81H

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. P. 81

RS A UIR1IRB2.2 ETEEEATERS - F818

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how P. 81
= they are implemented and monitored.

FASRAB IR R B2.35) || i — R PTER AV B R R B 2 28 it - ARIBRARIT REER % » F81H
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  H{# - B{ X FTIRIR - L@ RERHEIESI Rl ()
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : &R EE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging p. 78
duties at work. Description of training activities.

— R EE BEARTEERTTLIERE OB M RREHBR - fdFIINEE - F78H

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee N/A
category.

RS 4E 1R B3.1 BRI REESERIBISNXIEEB DL © TiE

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and N/A
employee category.

RS E R 1EB3.2 RIERREEERIED - BREETKIIINFIIRE - TiE A

Aspect B4: Labor Standards
[EEB4 : ¥ T XA

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws p. 82
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labor.

—MRIKEE BEADIEETHEEISTH - @QBK : RO)ETHEITABEATE 828
EVAERRE R MR BINE KL -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child P. 82
and forced labor.

RS 4G I 15B4. 1 g R Ef N EEAR R ET REH ST - 828

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. p. 82

BSEE M IE1EB4.2 RMEEIRERENRERE BIE N PTERER A 28K - E828
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  H{# - B{ X FTIRIR - L@ RERHEIESI Rl ()
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page
—REBERBRENER it BR

Operating Practices

&EEM

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS5 : ftrEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply p. 83
chain.

— PR ER EIREEENIRE R G RARBUE 835

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. N/A

RS AR 5 1EB5. 1 RiE S S e HEEEE - iE A

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of N/A

supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB E 5 1RB5.2 M EEEAHERNED  MERTEBENNHEEREE - AR N iE B
BRABHNMITRERTEA -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws P. 84
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

— PRI ER FRMEMHEMRRENRERREEZ S BS  SERILEEEURE E848
FED © (K - RO)ETHEITABERZENEBERER
HEE

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for N/A
safety and health reasons.

RASE 45 W5 15B6. 1 PERCEXEMBHEPEL 2 RERIEHMARKNED T - i

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how P. 85
they are dealt with.

BB E 5 1EB6.2 BEEMANEmMRGHIRFEE U REH X - %858

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual N/A
property rights.

RASRAE IE1RB6.3 Rt B RRFE A B EREE EER - TiE A
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

(CONTINUED)

Bfs - BERFTIRIE - A EREBRSESI RS (&)

General Disclosures and KPls Description Page

—REBERBRENES it =/

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. N/A

RS A NI 1EB6.4 HE S E BR REmEKRER i

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they P. 85
are implemented and monitored.

BSEE 5 1EB6.5 HIUE B EERMRERLEBER - ARBBRITRERTE - %858

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

BEB7 : KESS

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws p. 85
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—MRAREE ERAMTILERER - IR - HGFRERER © @BK © RbO)ETHETA £858
BERZENHEBERIOERNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought N/A
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

A IR EBT A RERAANEZETASIEREREVEELENE THARGNEAE K i B
FFARAESR ©

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, N/A
how they are implemented and monitored.

BB E IR 1EBT .2 P EE e R R RIE Ty - ARBEMITRERGE - AN B

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #tEHRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the p. 87
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

—MRAREE BN ESERTHRETASEMELENT ENBRRELERK D F87H
SEZEBHERNEMER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. N/A
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KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. N/A
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG Lam Ping ((X#K), aged 66, has been appointed
as Chairman and an Executive Director since 1 April
2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and the General
Manager since 22 May 2020. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He has over 30 years of
property development experience since he established Pan
Hong Co., Ltd. in 1983. He was an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Pan Hong Holdings,
a sister company of the Company and the issued shares
of which are listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: P36),
from 3 January 2006 to 31 March 2020. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. and Jiangxi
Ganghua Medical Management Co,. Limited. Mr. Wong also
sits on the boards of several investment holding companies.
He was a director of Chaozhou Jinaote Sanitary Ware Ltd.

Mr. Wong completed a post-graduate course in Economics
of Science and Technology and Management from Zhejiang
University of Technology in the PRC in 2000. He holds an
honorary degree of a Doctor of Business Management from
Armstrong University in the United States of America.

Mr. Wong is one of the Controlling Shareholders. He is the
father of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director and an uncle
of Mr. Chan Kin Sang, the Non-Executive Director.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (G 1#), aged 63, became the Deputy Chairman,
and an Executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SHI is responsible
for the management of project plans, quality control,
coordination with contractors, and the management of the
Company’s subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in September 2002 and was an executive director of Pan
Hong Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC (FF £ A K H BT ¥ T 2 &F) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department of
Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under the
Ministry of Metallurgy (8 & TEZE -+ A EXAQ A
(5 T T BZ)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an engineer
at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of Light
Industry (& T % 3& D% from 1983 to 1992, where
he specialised in the structural design of buildings. Mr. SHI
subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province (BEREBMMEESEBRAF) in
the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general manager,
responsible for real estate development and technical
construction management. Between 1999 and 2002, he
was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co., Ltd. (4
STEHIN=BFFAHMRAR) in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

WONG Lui (£%), aged 38, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (F§ & 4L A 8ljiE) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#EJNZE# EEFT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of JX Asia City
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan
Hong Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou
Pan Hong”, #EN BB E HEZE AR A 7)), Hangzhou
Ganglian (f /& E: B ¥ BB A 7)) and Jiangxi Hanyun
Incubator Limited (“Hanyun Incubator”, /T 75 % 5 fiZ (L 22
AR E]) in 2009, 2014 and 2015 respectively and was
mainly responsible for the formulation of business strategy
and the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou
Ganglian and Hanyun Incubator.

EERGREEB2EBEFE

BITEEE)

EMARNEBERZA - ARER-—NAN_FE-NAN=F
HERASIXRBE -T2 ERAFGELEME)E
BEEL AT - FR—NAN=ZFE-NNA-_FHREE
ERTEARDRA TR  ZEBTHEBRT - A%
ERERMAPEEREENMEREEEFRELRR - R—N
NZFE-NNANFHERTREKEE  aEFBEME
REMERER R-ANNEFE_ZTT_FHH - KA
REMIE AN =FEFAERAF 2 HLKHE -

FIE 38m R E——FL-ANBETHRITES I
ERBZEBENE - BNMARRAETHBRAGZES -
ATRAEFTZEEVRTENREELALNNIE REMNER
e EBEBENERERE - HR_ZZEZLF+ANMANE
TRE  EEABIEREEDE B BESTEBRRB K
EINBLR - HR T )N\ FEZT AT MR ZE
HELERBEKE T EaFREETEETE - B9 H
NR-ETNF T NER T AFEZITALRRA
MEB A e NS EREARA A ((HMAB] Kt
M KT IER B SaR AR (EMFEEE]) 28K
B EZEEHTEMLE - SUNEE RZRE S ¥
ERERAEEE -

ARERENARAT

sozo/e4 &%/




BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. Chan and Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and a cousin of Mr. Chan King Sang, the Non-
Executive Director.

GAO Lan (5/&), aged 55, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as an
Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(TPE T KXE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (B & AX£2), in 1987 with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 20083.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department
of Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development
Co., Ltd. (FETM MW IEMZEGR A R]) from 1987 to
1993. She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/&
IR (M E)EE]) in 1993, acting as the director of the
chief executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (BFEIRY EHERZEBMR A F]). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (F/E8&EREERE HA
PR A &) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was
the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (Fg B EHEER AR A 7). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (I8 B EXBRET
‘A \]) as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before
joining the Group.

rbour Holdings Group Limited <
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang ((Rf#), aged 69, became the NED
on 1 April 2020. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is currently a senior partner of Messrs. Peter
K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 1979 and a post-graduate certificate in Laws from the
same university in 1980. He has been a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong since April 1982 and has been admitted as
a Notary Public since April 1997 and a China-appointed
Attesting Officer since January 2000. Mr. Chan has also
been a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since August 2004 and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings Ordinance, Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) since February 2007.

Currently, Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive
director of China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 290) and Pak Tak International Limited (stock code:
2668), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8622), which is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He was a director of Guanghe Landscape
Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi (stock code:
600234) between June 2016 to October 2020, which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In the past three years, Mr. Chan held directorships in a
number of Hong Kong and Singapore listed companies,
namely as an independent non-executive director of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873) from
November 2009 to September 2017, which was delisted
from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 February
2019; Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619)
from June 2014 to September 2019, which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and Luxking Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: BKK) from June 2005 to
October 2019, which is listed on the SGX-ST. He also acted
as a non-executive director of China Healthcare Enterprise
Group Limited (stock code: 1143) from October 2016 to
July 2017, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; Combest Holdings Limited (stock code: 8190)
from September 2004 to January 2017, which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange; and Pan Hong Holdings from
14 August 2006 to 31 March 2020.

Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan and a
cousin of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (#Ml), aged 56, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

HE Dingding (27T T), aged 44, became an INED on 1
August 2018. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. He has more than 15 years of extensive
experiences in capital markets, corporate finance,
investment and finance, and corporate management
through working in investment banks, advisory firms and
listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since 2005.
Mr. He is also an independent non-executive director of
each of Crown International Corporation Limited (stock
code: 727) and Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited
(stock code: 8275) since May 2021, the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and GEM of the Stock Exchange, respectively. Mr. He was
an independent non-executive director of China Kangda
Food Company Limited, the issued shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of both the Stock Exchange and
the SGX-ST (stock codes: 834 and P74, respectively)
between August 2012 and June 2015. Mr. He was a non-
executive director of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited, the issued shares of which were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3326) between
March 2017 and February 2018.

Mr. He graduated from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.
He was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.

8| | sino Harbdur Holdings Group Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

WONG Ping Kuen (E{#), aged 34, became an INED
on 1 June 2020. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 10 years of experience in the accounting, finance and
investment industry. He founded Credito Capital group in
September 2015 and is currently the managing director of
each of Credito Capital Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Beijing
Credito Capital Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.,
a private company incorporated in the PRC. Between
December 2011 and July 2014, Mr. Wong worked in latia
Ltd, a company previously listed on Australian Securities
Exchange and he was responsible for its restructuring
as financial controller. He also worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to November
2011,

Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree
in accounting and information system (double major).
He obtained a master of business administration degree
from Peking University, the PRC and a master of business
administration degree from National University of Singapore
in 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN Heung Ling (BR@%), aged 62, is one of the
founders of the Group. She is the director and general
manager of the subsidiary, Sino Harbour Limited. She has
engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011 and chairlady of
the Group from July 2011 to March 2020. Ms. CHAN is the
wife of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui, one
of the Executive Directors.

LI Ming Yuan (Z87t), aged 58, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in 2004 as deputy general manager of JX Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (TFAELEEER A7) in
the same year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University (LFAEEER KE) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and
civil construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (FAEm B LR EFRAF]). Mr
LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.

QIU Si Yuan (58 2JF), aged 61, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (#
WMTERDTIEAR AR (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T 2%
ZPEA F&ETBT) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (#iF
ARG RET AR AR as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.

LIU Lin Yu (818 %), aged 69, is the Group’s director of
project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2000,
and had been responsible for costs management of the
development projects of Pan Hong Holdings. Since joining
Pan Hong Holdings, he has served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. (#8577
& EHbEHBR A 5]) and on-site engineer of Huzhou Liyang
Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. (4 EEF5
FEHER AR A A)). He had also served as the budget
forecast manager and the deputy general manager of JX
Asia City.

Mr. LIU was certified as an assistant engineer by
Chaozhou City Science and Technology Committee (%
MR IITZ 8€) in the PRC in 1989. He graduated
from an intermediate level professional civil engineering
correspondence learning course (P& REETRER
¥ KR PT) from the Sichuan International Technical and
Economic Management Training Centre (7911 B B+ i £2 4%
EEERZREFHIF L) in the PRC in 1990. In 1991, he was
qualified as a budget forecaster and worked for Chaozhou
City Qiao Dong Construction Company (i i 5 H &L
A A]). The said quahﬂcahon was granted by Guangdong
Province Construgtion Standard Authority (BR & ERIZAE
%EZ@AE) in the P C
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LAU Ka Ho, Billy (2| %), aged 36, has been the Group’s
financial controller since 1 August 2018.

Mr. LAU joined Pan Hong Holdings as the group financial
controller and company secretary on 31 July 2017 and
was responsible for the finance and accounting functions,
statutory compliance and corporate governance.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to
September 2012, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP
(Beijing Branch, China) from October 2012 to November
2014 and Deloitte Touche Financial Advisory Service Limited
(Shenzhen, China) from December 2014 to June 2017. Mr.
Lau is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in commence majoring in accounting, finance and
financial planning from the Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
5% : +852 2218 8288 EHTSER1115E
8K : +852 2815 2239 K& 2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
111 to 232, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HEREREEERLF
B3R
(REFRZEZMA L BRAE])

il

R

RZEE A TEBBMDESEAIHNFEI1AEEF232
AZZRERERERARUATHEEXR]) REWE
REATHEERE]) ZHRAMBRE - ZEKAMB
BRBERZZ—F=A=+—B2HEEMBHRREK
RBEZRALFEZGFAEEKAR  KAEREHRR
HAERTRER  URKEAMBHRRME  BREIESS
BERME -

BFIRR  ZERAVBBRRCREEESHINAS(E
BEFTMAE)RONBTEMBREEN(ERUBRE
EADEEMTEBRKRT SXRER-_FT-_-—F=A=
T—HZGEEMBRRBBREZALFREZFEEMERA
MigtBeng  YEERBEARKIZHEERZR
B o

RRzER
BACREBSGTMASEMIBAEFLEN(ERE
FHERDEITER c RMEXFENTAEZEEEER
BEZBERET S EMBMRAE ZEE] 8RS
— A -  REFESFAMAGRMZ[EXEEBRE
SRR - BB BEEE - YEETTAFHE
BEEE - RAIMEE - RAMESZRTREETER
BEMASRMAZBERIEHER -

-1102Sin6 Harbour Holdings Group Limited < ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Refer to notes 3.6, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties held
for sale of approximately RMB385 million for the year ended
31 March 2021. Revenue from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised at a point in time when customers
accept the properties, unless at the time of entering into the
contract, the sales and purchase agreement satisfied the
criteria for recognising revenue over time by containing an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date and the performance of the Group does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group. Revenue
from sale of properties held for sale is recognised upon
the transfer of control of ownership of these properties
held for sale to the customers. The revenue recognition is
dependent on the contractual arrangements for the sale
and the laws in the relevant jurisdiction and may require
significant audit effort and management judgement.

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Reviewing the legal advice provided by the
Group’s legal advisor, including the legal advisor’s
interpretation of the applicable laws and the
implication on the assessment of the enforceability of
the right to payment;

- Assessing the competency, experience and objectivity
of the legal advisor engaged by the Group;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Our response (Continued)

- Assessing the management’s control over the point
of time at which revenue from sales of properties held
for sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding
of the management‘s control process and testing the
control on a sampling basis; and

- Reading the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, and obtaining evidence regarding the
completion and the delivery of properties, including
checking to completion certificates and delivery
notices on a sampling basis, to assess whether the
criteria for revenue recognition set out in note 3.6 to
the consolidated financial statements have been met.

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.12, 3.13, 4, 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) which together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately RMB2,446 million as at
31 March 2021.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and their
net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Assessing the calculations of net realisable values
of properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness and
consistency of the assumptions used by management;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sampling basis,
by comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 22% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2021.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied including, discount, discount rate, and
yield rates i.e. a small change in the assumptions can have
a significant impact to the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P04092

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

E-F_——

FZHA=1+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TF T AREFT
(Restated)
Cc=vl)
Revenue PN 6 426,884 448,420
Cost of sales SHE A (257,459) (255,443)
Gross profit EF 169,425 192,977
Other income and other gains and losses £ U A A Kz H Ath U 25 7 &5 18 6 21,893 27,426
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (17,423) (22,236)
Administrative expenses EREMA (52,535) (52,289)
Operating profit BERER 121,360 145,878
Finance costs BhE AN 7 (4,008) (5,180)
Share of result of an associate BB E R AR - (7)
Profit before income tax BR AT 18 B4 Az R 8 117,352 140,691
Income tax expense et = 9 (66,468) (84,749)
Profit for the year F R A 50,884 55,942
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 MW= (B NRTFIE)
(net of tax)
Item that will not be reclassified to BrEEfsEEBE2ER
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of equity instruments 1% 2 £ (B E 2 [ W 25 51 BR
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ Z ¥ LB 7 A A EEH)
income 2,632 (25,757)
Item that may be reclassified HETHRENIEZEERY
subsequently to profit or loss HE
Exchange differences on translation of BRERINEBI BT 2
financial statements of foreign operations & i = %8 691 (12,518)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEKE
the year 3,323 (38,275)
Total comprehensive income for FAZHEHWEAE
the year 54,207 17,667
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LA T A £ FEG&E REF,
(E18) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZE DN 57,544 56,958
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR = (6,660) (1,016)
55,942

50,884

EmeRemaRAR 200024 4| AF =



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TFT ARKF T
(Restated)
Cc=vl)
Total comprehensive income RTATEEEZERREE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N 60,867 18,683
Non-controlling interests FEPERR = (6,660) (1,016)
54,207 17,667
Earnings per share (in RMB cents) BEREMNARES)
- Basic and diluted -ERREE 11 2.34 2.31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E MBI &

As at 31 March 2021 R=F-—4#=/A=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TF T ARBF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BE REE 13 79,281 67,343
Investment properties LB 14 1,127,324 849,218
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 15,155 =
Intangibles mEE 16 4,592 5,058
Interest in a joint venture REEPEIES 18 = =
Financial assets at fair value through BEAnBEREMER KSR
other comprehensive income ZERMEE 19 10,297 7,665
Pledged deposits BERFR 23 5,500 5,500
Deferred tax assets EIERIEE B 26 11,538 12,348
1,253,687 947,132
Current assets REEE
Properties held under development R ES 20 1,903,272 1,458,670
Properties held for sale FEME 21 542,785 1,064,645
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT B0 IA B H b B IR TR 22 1,081,562 199,812
Tax recoverable AR B I8 44,297 28,230
Contract cost assets BRNAEE 6 10,509 5,570
Pledged deposits EHEBER 23 34,574 224,093
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTA RS 23 299,378 367,253
3,916,377 3,348,273
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FETBR X 24 33,182 35,154
Accruals and other payables FE AT FRIE M E b A 5RI8 24 667,014 373,545
Contract liabilities BHAE 6 2,000,323 1,513,538
Provision for tax MR 108,954 139,475
Bank and other loans RITREME K 25 240,690 273,834
Lease liabilities HEAE 30 2,465 =
3,052,628 2,335,546
Net current assets RBEEZRE 863,749 1,012,727
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 2,117,436 1,959,859
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E MBI R

As at 31 March 2021 R=F-—F=F=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kz3 AR¥T T AREFr
Non-current liabilities FRBER
Bank loans IRITER 25 351,350 249,550
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 12,808 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEF 26 96,863 90,960
461,021 340,510
Net assets BEE 1,656,415 1,619,349
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ARAEEE AELER
the Company
Share capital A& A 27 20,735 20,735
Reserves e 28 1,386,795 1,348,459
1,407,530 1,369,194
Non-controlling interests FERER 248,885 250,155
Total equity SR 1,656,415 1,619,349

These consolidated financial statements on page 111 to R E1I1EEF 2B ZGRAUBHRERER T - —F <
232 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of A -+ R HESEESHERRET R  THATESEAR

directors on 25 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: #=E
Wong Lam Ping Shi Feng
SERRIK Aig
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z = F - —# = A=+—HIFFF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARAER NGRS
Fair value
through other Non-
Share Share Statutory  comprehensive Exchange Retained controling Total
capital premium® reserve”  income reserve® reserve” profits* Total interests equity
BRAER
A2 Ek
ke RGEE  EeRE  #BEE  EXEE  BREN B koRER  EREE
RMB000 RMB000 AMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000
ANEETR  AEETT  ARETZ  ARETr  ARETr  AREFr  AREFT  AREFT AREFx
(Note 26()  (Note 28/ij) (Note 26(ii)
(Wetoap)  (Wetosh) (2280

At1 Aprl 2019 R-E-NEmA-H 20,735 565,212 83,091 4,565 (1,482 678,390 1,350,511 251,671 1,602,182
Transactions with onrers BREAZS
Arising from deregistration of subsiciaries ~ RiF S BARIES - - = = = = = (100) (100)
Capital reduction by non-controling SRS
interests - - - - - - - (400) (400)
: : : : : - : 00 (00
Profitoss) for the year R/ (BE) - - - - - 56,958 56,058 (1,016) 55,042

Changes in fair value of equity nstruments ~ ZR 4 BREHEE
atfair value through other comprehensive  Wa7IERIET &

income LARERY = = = (25,757) = = (25,757) S (25,757)
Exchange difierences on translation of AERISBEBEE

financial statements of foreign operations 2[R 28 - - = = (12.518) = (12.518) = (12,518)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 EXZLE - = = (25,757) (12,518) 56,958 18,683 (1,016) 17,667
Transfer to statutory reserves ERTETEE - - 8418 = = (8418 = = =
At 31 March 2020 RZB-%£ZR

=1-H 20,785 565,212 91,509 (2119 (14,000 726,930 1,369,194 250,155 1,619,349




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARAREARLRS

Share Share
capital premium*

Ba  RiEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ABBTR  AREFR

Fair value
through other Non-
Statutory  comprehensive Exchange Retained controlling Total
reserve* income reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
BARER
Efr2ElE
EERE ikGE  EXRF BEER @t FERER  EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ABBTE  ARETT ARETT ARETL  ARETZ  ARETR

(Note 28(j)  (Note 28(ij) (Note 28iij)
(Hetosf)  (Witosfii) (Bt 2siiy)
At1 Aprl 2020 RZE-ZEMA-H 20,735 565,212 91,509 (21,192) (14,000) 726,930 1,369,194 250,155 1,619,349
Transactions with owners BEENIRS
Dividend paid to owners of the Company ~ ERALEEAA
2Be - - - - - @B @25 - @)
Capital contribution by non-controling FERERTE
interests - - - - - - - 5,390 5,390
- - - - - (22,531) (22,531) 5,390 (17,141)
Profit/oss) for the year FERl/ (B8 = 3 = = = 57,544 57,544 (6,660) 50,884
Changes in fair value of equity nstruments ~ ZAABREHEE
atfair value through other comprehensive ISR IRIET &
income LLREES - - - 2,632 - - 2,632 - 2,632
Exchange difierences on translation o~ A E§N EHEHEE
financial statements of foreign operations 2R EH - - - - 691 - 691 - 691
Total comprehensive income for the year — FAEEXZEE = = = 2,632 691 57,544 60,867 (6,660) 54,207
Transfer to statutory reserves ERELERE - - 6,941 o S (6,941) o o =
At 31 March 2021 RZB--%=R
=t-H 20,735 565,212 98,450 (18,560) (13,309) 755,002 1,407,530 248,885 1,656,415

. The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,386,795,000  * ZEBBEHE L ARKE,8386,795,000 L (ZZT=ZF : AR
in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated ¥1,348,459,00070) st \RZZE = —F=A=+—AZ&E&H
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021 BRARZEEA

(2020:RMB1,348,459,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ni(é?ﬂagﬁjnbgiéﬁ

for the year ended 31 March 2021 &

=—F—

=

—FZA=1—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARMTF T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELERERE
Profit before income tax B P15 15 1 g A 117,352 140,691
Adjustments for: MIYEBELFHE -
Interest income FEW A 6 (7,459) (12,127)
Interest expense FEMX 7 4,008 5,180
Amortisation of intangibles | EEEE 8 466 1,311
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - BEREETE
equipment 8 6,969 4,927
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 8 1,341 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BB R W
equipment 6 (23) (10)
Loss allowance of other receivables H b EU FRTE 2 B8 8 2,008 3,456
Share of result of an associate FEEG & AR A - 7
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE QR Z W 6 = (51)
Net fair value gain on investment properties &Y% 2 N A B ESFEE
6 (23,610) (24,753)
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries B AR BE 6 3,008 4,151
Impairment losses on intangibles BB ERERE 6 = 9,336
Operating profit before working capital LEESEBHR L EHT
changes 104,060 132,118
Increase in properties held under FE Y3 R A E Y EIE N
development and properties held for sale (154,215) (837,045)
Increase in prepayments and other TE A FRIR B E A FE R IE S AN
receivables (886,816) (22,245)
Increase in contract cost assets BRI EEG N (4,939) (5,570)
Increase in restricted bank balances SR B ERTT S BRI N (56,187) (86,458)
Decrease in accounts payable FETBRROR A (1,972 (2,973)
Increase in accruals, other payables and JERTRIE - EtERRIERE
contract liabilities KB EEm 780,258 1,077,100
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4% (FrA) /FrELIR & (219,811) 754,927
Interest received SR EPS) 7,459 12,127
Income tax paid BERATEH (106,343) (73,565)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KRB (BT PrESE
operating activities B FEE (318,695) 693,489

EremEEsRan 202000 | METES =



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n'\’éfﬁﬁblbiﬁ

for the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z —F - —F =A=+—HIFFF

2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARBTF T ARET T
Cash flows from investing activities RETEHMELRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E %% - &= &R (19,439) (2,066)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’%%i = M ETS
plant and equipment FKIE 169 21
Capital contribution to an associate ML REE = (9,127)
Proceeds from disposals of an associate ~ HEBE QAR RIZARE
and financial assets at fair value through RIEZREE - SREE
profit and loss P15 308 - 11,595
Receipts of contingent consideration BN A RAME = 9,905
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EIETEFOR L, (38 ) 189,519 (13,194)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing 1% & Z&NHTEL ()
activities W& HEE 170,249 (2,866)
Cash flows from financing activities METEHMELRERE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company Bt ARG #HE AKRE 35(c) (22,531) =
Proceeds from new bank and other loans #1877 & E R ATEFIAE 35(c) 280,490 68,000
Repayments of bank and other loans BERBITREMER 35(c) (211,834) (723,080)
Repayments of principal portion of lease EEHEEBEZASEH D
liabilities 35(c) (1,223) -
Capital contribution/(reduction) by non- FEIERRERSEE S (BRAAERD
controlling interests 5,390 (400)
Interest paid EAfTHE 35(c) (26,647) (34,949
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing & & & &N HTE L~ (BT )
activities B FEE 23,645 (690,429)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBESZEEYOHD)
cash equivalents EHNFEEE (124,801) 194
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net fER 7 L EFE 739 760
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#3E & RKIREEED
the year 216,274 215,320
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FERESRRESEEY
the year 23 92,212 216,274
Analysis of the balances of cashand HRERBSEEYERIT !
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITER 299,378 367,253
Less: restricted bank balances B R BIERITEEER (207,166) (150,979)
92,212 216,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries (together with the Company, known
as the “Group”) are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages
111 to 232 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2021 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 25
June 2021.

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

— &R
RBEREBERAR(RAANR-F——F—
HARBERE NN\ —FRaEEAFEETEMK
VREREBRETAF - ARAGFMFEEAR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda e R ARl Z2 E EEE M BN HE SLEEAL
T S SR8 37395 AL P 2 R BEE 1215 o

ARAZEBRBREAER - AREIMNE QR (2
RARRGE RRE]) 2 EBXBEHNEEMBER
RHFET -

HRFIEEF2RAZEAVBHRREREETE
GRS (FEREHAAGDRHBZEBM B RS
R ((ERMBHREE]) (BREMEERZE LY
BHREEL FESHEYN(EBEHEND K2
B)MAEE - G AMBRRTEREEERARIILE
BHARXIMERARRES LRI ERRADZ
ERBERE -

BHE T —F=-A=1+T—RAULFEZAKELESE
MBEBRRARBDMBRARECR T _—F <A
“tREREEES(ESSDIETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the
Group’s operations and effective for its consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 April 2020.
Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

Definition of Material

Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

None of these new HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period. The Group has not early
applied any new HKFRSs that is not yet effective for
the current accounting year.

The following new HKFRSs which are potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current®

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies®
HKFRS Practise
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates®

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction®

Bitze
RAEE - ARBEARANTEEBEHTLE
B SR R B R AR R — B B A — A
% 2 7 R MR 2 6 8 BHS R IR A0 2 97T RA 45
SRR EATARRR (T EEMBREER) -

BN HwE R FE35R B ER
CCHEN,
BRI EAFIRREEGT BEAZER
ZRI|F 85 (EF]A)
ARG EAFIN BAWE FREENRS
SREAETRREFBMBR
HEERFEISR (BFTA)

HEHTBEVMBREENEAKREENIBED
BORERMBERARNLBEATE - NEBELER
EERAEMRASHFEHRERNNET BB H

32528 -

ATENEEGEM BRI EERE TR
BHREEAEERMEFERRER - BARELER
B -

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Al == = | =
120/ sino Harbour Holdings|Group| Limited <

Proceeds before Intended
Use*
Amendments to HKAS 37,
Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfiling a Contract*
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®
Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions!

BRI EAE15 HRENBRREK
(EFTA) IR E®

EAGRAEIRR SEIBRZWES
AW HREER
BmEFE2R
(BET )

BRI EAE8% SRR E &S
(EFTA)

BEAGEAE 125 HE-RFELEZ
CHES, BERAEARN

EEHIR

ERGEE 165 FERE MR

(BRTA) S 30R

BRI ENE37H
(BT A)

BB IE E R B3
CHIES

BRMBRELRAF6HR
(EFTA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concession beyond 30 June
20212

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture’

Annual Amendments to HKFRS 1,
Improvements to HKFRS 9, lllustrative
HKFRSs 2018- Examples accompanying
2020 HKFRS 16, and HKAS 414

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

2020

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

2 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023
’ The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has concluded that the application of these
amendments will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

S EE ()

BRI B E R 165
(BET )

BT F=A=+—HIFE

—F-—FXRA=TA%
ZHBHAAEAS

Bse

BB G ERIFE39% -
BRWHEHREEAEAR -
BRMBEHRERAETHR -

|
|

RIS - E RS

BRI E ERIEIW R
BB RE LR E 165
(EFTA)

BEAMBHELAFEI0RK REFEABEQAR
BB ERIFE28% RELEZHEHER
CHES ENBET

ERARBRERR T\  BEUBHREER
FETTFIFE 1% - BERHRE
g3 RRIFR - R

e R 55 1657 BB
&P - REESEEL
FA1RIERTA)

g MN-ZB-—FNB— Ak 2 %2 FEBMER
J R-TE-—F—F— A2 EBRBZ FEBRMER
& R-ZE-—F—-F A2 BBz EFEHMAER

B HEBRARA T _—F - A - BRZERFABNERSF
EHRRRE R ROEBA I ER

° M-E-=F— ARl z&Aa 2 FEBRER

’ ZEEFABRIEMAREREE 2 BBk 2 RRRN
FEARMBFLEZBEERERLERA

ARELENEZEFETAEEREANRENRS
EEZEE BEEA AKEEAE  BRZF
BRSBTS HRAMBRRELBTATE -

TRETHRME

RAEGAMBERERARMA L ETEGTHRBART
XeoBEREER  TRAZFBEREREREAR
FIEE2MFE -

ABeEENERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.1 Basis of preparation 31 mEEE

3.2

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI") which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

3.2

REVBRREBRBEELKAEZRE - ERE
MERBAABEREME2EKSIIKR(RAR
EREMZEREIRD ZEMEERI - ®
FURAAEINR - FFEEEFRAN T X &5
BUR e

MBEBREAARETAREDZ > MAEE
EUNEAAZREOTL(ARE TR
WS BIERERIN

BEIE  ERERSGANBRAN SR
AR RBR - BERSHH PERSERE
WEAEHRTE 2 RERBRAB L -
BEEAERSATHEBRSHHAHTA -
R P RAEE Y R RS RBERS
M WE N BARB R 208 - R
A -

IR A B TRk B A A TR B A T2 8 R
KR - EEAATR 2 X5 REBERKE
%R N R A B IS BRI 2 B 3 -
SHEETT AL - BIESER B REHE
BEERBEYBE > ERERT - BENES
R o

RERBARLEZHB AR ZEXERAKER
HEFXEEHERARLEM@BERME) - 5tA
FEREKRERA - RUVEE  HEBARZHY
BHmERK T HBAEE G BOREAREE A
REARFERE B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEMEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEHEREKAHMGE

combination (Continued)

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition
of a business and control is transferred to the
Group. In determining whether a particular set
of activities and assets is a business, the Group
assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

BRBNEHREEANE —BEBNESE -
BEEHREEEAEER - ZEBAH UK
AN RETREEIREEHEE R —

HEBE - AREFEMKEEEANED R
BELBE-RBAREBERE  RAWREBE

Ba
ERREEERLED -

WEERADNIZMBREE  MELABERAE
(ERBBEN BT ZRERKEERZAA
BRETE - FIRE AR EERAAER
BRITERUBERZAREFE - AEEE
RIFAFRFIRMIE 7 2 A KB R A2 R A B
MEE MAELEZWANEERANERE
R AREARERRHEREAAENRILRE
HREE T AR EERE AT EBBA
R B AR AR 2 JFE g - FRAH
IR RIGR AR B E - BRIFF A
BELRES —HEEERERGR - IESE
Z W BB A FER S - BRIFER BT S
TABEARER® - RIEBRT - KA A
#zs AFNER -

WEL B TEZEZEARARBRIEBESRZ
NREER - HRHKEZHABERNHRRE
Rt 88 (&K AUE B BE 1218 A) RATER
SEERKERRZARBZHERBTNE
BHR - EoBREEXRABIAARREZM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEHEREKAHMGE

combination (Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control of
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between () the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

RURFEIR - SRR R MI B A R 2 IR A AT
B ZREBERN V) FHERE Z S
ZEE - ANMZFEBREREE 2 R E
B - TSR IR A M BN R R P
EARBEBAREEDDFHZE o MmN HE
BREMEmBEASAKED RE T ARA
BBEANSEZER R - EEREARIEBN
RIS - B @ B R SIS
HIR B A AR

AEBRMB AR Z RSB INY TEEHK
EMB ARG - ARSI SERRS - K
SEEERIHERES CREES T ARE -
NRBMEZERMB AR ZER 2 B8 - JFE
B AR EEMNKBRREAREZE
IE%  BEERNEDRTER  LRBRARA
BAN -

EASEREWMB R EHESER - HEMEL
W BERUTREZEZR  (IERREZ
NAEEEFAREE R 2 A2 EZBR M ()%
MEBARZEE(RERE) KA EREMAIFE
Wiz < BEREE - AERE M2 E T
REMBARAAccRUNEHMEBEENA
BEEHEMREZHRIEEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee; and (i) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the
Company has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee without holding
the majority of the voting rights. In determining
whether de-facto control exists, the Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

- the size of the Company’s voting rights
relative to both the size and dispersion of
other parties who hold voting rights;

- substantive potential voting rights held by
the Company and other parties who hold
voting rights;

- other contractual arrangements; and

- historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Joint arrangement

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities of
the arrangement to the Group and at least one
other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4

Joint arrangement (Continued)

The Group classifies its interest in a joint
arrangement as either:

- Joint venture: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

- Joint operation: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interest in a
joint arrangement, the Group considers:

- The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangement
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint
venture using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint venture’s net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in a joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way-as other non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESTHERBMEM@E
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.5 Foreign currency translation

35 SEBRE

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Group.

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.6 Revenue recognition 3.6 WARER

Revenue from contracts with customers is BEAHWAREREBRB 2 IEHERRIRF
recognised when control of goods or services is KiER  HelRBEASEBRARIBRZEER
transferred to the customers at an amount that MmEREMAEESZRE  ETEERERSE

reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

For revenue from sale of properties and pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties in the ordinary course of business,
customers obtain control of the properties when
the properties are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised when the
customers accept the properties. There is no
other goods or services agreed to be provided
in the contract and in practice. There is generally
only one performance obligation. Payments are
usually received in advance and recognised
as contract liabilities. Costs such as sales
commission directly attributable for obtaining a
pre-sale property contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract cost assets.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEMEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.6 Revenue recognition (Continued) 3.6 WARERGE)

Chemistry, manufacturing and control (“CMC”)
related service income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Consultancy service income is recognised when
the services are provided.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right
to consideration in exchange for services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(@  the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment 3.7 ¥ BERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other 20.0%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20.0%

Buildings 2.5%

Leasehold improvement 25.0%

or over the lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the consolidated financial
statements until they are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, intangibles, right-of-use assets,
and interests in subsidiaries and a joint venture
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset or cash-generating unit (“CGU”),
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing
its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases 3.10 &

The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases; and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date gave a lease term less
than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
land and buildings held for own use, they are
carried at depreciated cost.

The Group accounts for land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued)

FRETHEREGR)

3.10 HE(@#&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBERAEA (E)
Lease liability HEEE

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and

(i)~ remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modification, or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 #HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of
the lease liability to reflect the payments to make
over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when
the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except
the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining lease term. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, if the
renegotiation results in one or more additional
assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional
rights obtained, the modification is accounted
for as a separate lease, in all other cases, where
the renegotiation increases the scope of the
lease, the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. If the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both
the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over
the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on
the modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 AE (&)
Accounting as a lessor ERHBEAZ B EE
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever RESEBRFBHEEER G ENBARID R R
the terms of the lease transfer substantially FERER FTEABAAE  RZSEHESE AR
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the EHE - MEHMHEE D EAKCEHEE -

leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is KERE 2 S WARMBRBBRANRESRER
recognised in profit or loss on a straight- BHER  NBRARTHK2HERS B zE
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. REERATNEHEEE 2 REE - WikH
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and HUEHEER AR -

arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration HEREMHEEL TBRRBE G REMSE
for a lease that was not part of the original terms — BT R E B KERMEEBIIAR - A&
and conditions of the lease are accounted for BEFTEM ARG EHEBRTERHTE
as lease modifications. The Group accounts for EANE  HENZSBERSBR THBNRESE
a modification to an operating lease as a new HP— RGEEBRBA o

lease from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining

lease term.
3.11 Financial Instruments 3.11 €@ITH

(i)  Financial assets () =Z=HEE
A financial asset (unless it is a trade BRSEERBMENXD ZERBERFN - &
receivable without a significant financing A HERE  SHMEENAREE
component) is initially measured at EMEHLIEEARBERERIR(EA
fair value plus, for an item not at fair ARERERFIIRDCIEEmS) BHEWE
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), NBITEEBEBEIRIKAE - RBEEK
transaction costs that are directly BMEKD 2 BRERERT T ER 5 ERET
attributable to its acquisition or issue. 2o

A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The measurement category
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments is as follows:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

e MR
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3. FEEHBERHSEGE)

3.11 &I AE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

FRETHEREGR)

3.11 &I AE

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) () =Z=HEEGE)
Equity instruments RETA
On initial recognition of an equity RUITHERUIERFIEEE Ak 2 RER
investment that is not held for trading, the B ASEETATHEMREERNH
Group could irrevocably elect to present HEmEEFREINREAABEZEEE
subsequent changes in the investment’s B o ZBEEBDRZBIREEL - BAR
fair value in other comprehensive income. BEREMEERRIIEZREREEZA
This election is made on an investment- REFE REWARBEFER @ KB
by-investment basis. Equity investments FERR B WA RRBERKRIBDIRER A 2 I
at FVOCI are measured at fair value. B o bz R EBFRENE MK
Dividend income are recognised in =ER - BYEENHEEZE= - 18
profit or loss unless the dividend income HEtRETAESEAZAABERER
clearly represents a recovery of part R-mAnBEEE - REERMEBAR
of the cost of the investments. Other BB HER -
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (i) ZHEEZHEESE

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
contract cost assets and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

REBEREGONTEERCHEECTE
HrEsE(EHEEER ERER
B EHEEBBIRANTELES
() 12EAAEHEEEE : 508
B12E AN AT RE B A 2 BN EHFMER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for contract cost assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z = F = —

e MR
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3. FEEHBERHSEGE)

3.11 &I AE

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued) 311 €@MITEGE

(i) ZMEEZBEEEE)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a
default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
1 7rfinancial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including accounts payable, accruals
and other payables, lease liabilities and
bank and other loans. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.

e MR
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3. FEEHBERHSEGE)

3.11 &I AE

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out
in note 3.11; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.

3.

FRETHEREGR)

3.11 &I AE

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued) 3.11 €@MITEGE

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.12 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which
are held for future sale are included in current
assets and comprise land held under operating
lease (note 3.10) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon
the application of HKFRS 16. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties.
Fixed overheads are indirect costs which remain
relatively constant regardless of the size or
volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Properties held under development
(Continued)

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income tax.
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3.13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.14 FiEBi 2 gt EE ()

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, taxable temporary differences arising
on interests in subsidiaries and a joint venture
where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised, provided that the
deductible temporary differences are not arises
from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business
combination that affects neither taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income tax levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.15

An exception to the general requirement in
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term 3.16 EARBRRAREHESRF

employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which
is available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

FRETHEREGR)

317 BERIAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation,
if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

3.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure
for the asset is incurred, borrowing costs are
incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are completed.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared and consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —F = —F=HA=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Government grants (Continued)

3.21

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable and
are recognised as other revenue, rather than
reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a
below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.

Intangibles (other than goodwill)

(i) Intangibles acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangibles
acquired in a business combination
is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangibles with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows.
Intangibles with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Copyright
Customer relationships

15 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Intangibles (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment

Intangibles with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Intangibles
with indefinite useful lives and intangibles
not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they
may be impaired. Intangibles are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts
(see note 3.9).

If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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3. FEEHBERHSEGE)
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Related parties 3.22 BERL
(@ A person or a close member of that @ MW—BATATIER  AlZATZ
person’s family is related to the Group if AT ZERRBHERNEEGRHE

that person:

()  has control or joint control over the ()  HZNER[E 7 2 i ok HE [R5 4
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the (iy HEAEEEEATE: X
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management iy ABAREXARAFGRRIZEEE
personnel of the Group or the BEKE o

Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those persons BREEABARERNT B EEE N EZEE
having authority and responsibility for planning, B BERIESIAEBS A RREBZAE
directing, and controlling the activities of the BREASERARFEMES(THREL BT
Group or the Company, directly or indirectly, £%)-

including any directors (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Group or the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of b) W—KEBFRFE NIERGH - BIER
the following conditions apply: SEBRE -

()  The entity and the Group are () %EBEAKEBR—SBIKE
members of the same group (which NRI(BIEERF - [WBRARIKRAR
means that each parent, subsidiary WEBARHEEMF A BEE) -
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint iy, —REBAZ EEIZHBEAANK
venture of the other entity (or an GEPE(EHA—REEKNEARZ
associate or joint venture of a BERNRREELE ME—ZE
member of a group of which the RZEBZKERT]) -
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the iy MREBHRE -—F=F26%01
same third party. ¥o

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a vy —REBEFEF-FHERBZAED
third entity and the other entity is an X ME—EBERBREZFE=-SERZ
associate of the third entity. /NS I

(v  The entity is a post-employment V) ZREBALSEIEANEEEGHE
benefit plan for the benefit of the CEBRABEBMNGZRI ZBERER

- employees of the Group or an entity HE R

= related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 —F = —F =H=+—HI- FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Related parties (Continued) 3.22 BAES ()
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of () HW—XEBFAE TIEMGEH - BIEAK
the following conditions apply: (Continued) SBAF a@?fii  (88)

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly (Vi) ZEREX(@FTHEBIA T kR
controlled by a person identified in 2=l o
(@).

(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has (i) RE@OFFEMNALTHZERBAEEKR
significant influence over the entity HENNEBZERE(IZEBZEN
or is a member of key management AZEEEREKE -
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(i) the entity, or any member of a group (vii) ZEBIEMBEE 2 EMNKEA
of which it is a part, provides key AAAEB S AEERN A ARHEE
management personnel services to EEBABRY
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are —RATZERBE AT ETEN TR ETT

those family members who may be expected ROGBEBEFEZAATHZZBATEEZZ

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in LREKE  WEE:

their dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or () BBALZTEREBEHKEFRS
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or iy ZBRATZEBIRE#BZTL: K
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that (i) MBAALTHZBALTZEBHREMFE

person’s spouse or domestic partner. ZEEN-

',:e%ma%lﬁrsﬁf\a ot




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to investment
properties of the Group were stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy. The fair value
of the investment properties is determined by a firm of
independently qualified professional surveyors and the
fair value of investment properties as at the reporting
dates and properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties are set out in notes 14 and 21
respectively. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group’s management assesses the collectability
of other receivables by determining future cash flows.
This estimate is based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates. Management will reassess the
provision at the reporting date. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences
will affect the carrying value of receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development by using prevailing market data such
as most recent sale transactions and valuation of the
projects in its existing partially completed state of
construction taking into account cost of work done,
and cost to completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under development
(Continued)

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent sales
transactions in nearby locations, rate of new property
sales, marketing costs (including price discounts
required to stimulate sales) and the expected costs
of completion of properties, the legal and regulatory
framework and general market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s properties held under
development and properties held for sale as at 31
March 2021 were approximately RMB1,903,272,000
(2020: RMB1,458,670,000) and RMB542,785,000
(2020: RMB1,064,645,000) respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value
in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as the expected future cash inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The
key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount for the CGU under impairment testing, are
disclosed and further explained in note 16.

4.

EREFHE R R H B (&)

HEVMRRFABRDYRE 2 TSR FE )

WWEHEELXEMOWB 2 A PEERS - FY
XHEX HMEBR(RERHEMEERTE RY
FERTZHEFRAE  FEREERBULE KT
o HIEHEEELHE  AEERERYMERSF
EYERN S -_—F=ZA=1+—HBHZEEED 7
28 ANRH1,903,272,000 (T - F : AR
1,458,670,0007T) B A R#£542,785,000c(ZE = F
& . AR#1,064,645,0007T) °

FEMEERE

EEEYHCELAEUCRAEBREJKRESHE
EEAAEREEXRAREREE  UKEERE)
- AIFERE - AR EROERATDRERAF
FRAEITRABORINBUEEHER ST AISH
BAABRINCHERLEEEZIREKRAE -
EREEDREURREREBLFE - ReRE
BARARAFZAEFREE - B TBEAEE HARA
MET ERED AR ERRARARCELEME
ERAZERRKKE - ARESEARBRRE
MEBREER 2R EARIFBARRRSRA RS
EHEZREX LA - AREERERNRAET
ReELBMARESABRERNIEZ16HE
KHE— TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on sale of properties held
for sale

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a
point in time when the buyer obtains control of the
completed property; otherwise, revenue is recognised
over time when the Group’s performance do not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Due to the contractual restrictions with the customer,
the Group shall not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. However, it requires management
to exercise significant judgement to determine
whether there is an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date, which depends on
the terms of sales and purchase agreement and the
interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to
the contract. The Group has obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right
to payment for sales and purchase agreements.
Management uses judgements, based on legal
counsel opinion, to classify sales and purchase
agreements into those with right to payment for
performance completed to date and those without the
right.

The Group believes that its recognition basis of sales
of properties held for sale as set out in note 3.6 is
appropriate and is the current practice in the PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision of taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in periods in which such determination are made.

4.

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

EREFHE R R H B (&)
HESEMEZBAER

ESERTYRZIEHER  HEMRKA
REER - DR EAKEROYEELHA
LEERARZEERAKERECSETKE
Z R ER R BIAITHERE - WA B R

tl) \tﬂﬂ -LI+ S

J %HF /> ED}C
© X B Y

27

HRERZFPZANRSY  NREETFERIEHRY
XEBN > AWNEVEBEMRS  FALZVEBUSH
AEEMFHERZ - A - FEEEETEEX
HIETABEE RSB @B AITHENKECS B EKE
KB D 2 3R T BURT B B #a Ik MoE A
RERNZEERE BRANEEHEES A AR
MITEMKEGIR ARECEREREBERER -
EEZERER  EREERABRBEERED
BREREBUCSETKBOMD 2 R EEEK
B RE -

AEERRMAS M ZHEGENREREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —F = —F=HA=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. ERETHEFTRHE(E)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax B HA 54 78 % 3 7E %6 78 14 5 ()

(Continued)

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax ANEB B E LR ER ([T ER ) -
(“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation i RS TRBWE ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂlﬁz#ﬁ&
and settlement of this tax varies among various tax HEEREMAR - A SR 8 AR B B A b 5
jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has REEH T HIRER 2 ERNRAE - Al + &
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with TE TR ERE R H B T R E R BER EARH
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, B o AREEREEIEERENMBEHEAZBRIED
significant judgement is required in determining the ZEEMET - BR T IGER o

amount of the land appreciation and its related LAT.

The Group recognised LAT based on management’s

best estimates according to the understanding of the

tax rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Z#MER

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and

LENHRAEEIRBRBAREEER ZEEE
B2EAKRE D AREERBRHETATESTLHRK
SEHRHAMMERERD K R BRI H 2 A B

is identified on the basis of the internal management ERERENEELESE - AAMZVFEEMmMS
reporting information that is provided to and regularly WITEENEBAEZEE  BEEEMENE
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order ERHE((WERR]) REMER(EEBECMCH
to allocate resources and assess performance of BREREEREITENREREE) ([H4]) - X5EE

the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors considered the segment from a business
perspective, including sale and leasing of self-
constructed properties (“Property Development”)
and other businesses (mainly including investment and
operation in CMC process and medical service sector)
(“Others”). The Group’s executive directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
the measure of segment result.

MBITESREDMEENFETHEED BHX
3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5.

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

2 ERE ()

=]
Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss, DEUA - B BEERBEHER
assets and liabilities:
Property
Development Others Total
L EdE HAt &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT ARETFT
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_ZT—_—F
=A=t—-HLEE
Segment revenue 2 EBUA 420,003 6,881 426,884
Revenue from external REMPEFEZWA
customer 420,003 6,881 426,884
Segment profit/(loss) AR, (EE) 149,923 (9,329) 140,594
Less: Y
Unallocated expenses* RKOEER" (23,242)
Profit before income tax RR 185t Al 117,352
Income tax expense Frisfi (66,468)
Profit for the year FRREF 50,884
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-—F
=A=+-—H
Segment assets DEEE 5,088,586 73,516 5,162,102
Other corporate assets HmpEEE 7,962
Total assets HEE 5,170,064
Segment liabilities DEEE 3,492,017 21,568 3,513,585
Other corporate liabilities HMPEaE 64
Total liabilities FES =R 3,513,649
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DWBERE)
Property
Development Others Total
LU ESEE Hts &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARMFT ARETFTT

Other segment information: HihpEER :
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-2=-—F
ZSA=+—HLEE

Amortisation of intangibles A EE = 466 466
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% « /= KR EITE

equipment 3,745 3,224 6,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEEITE - 1,341 1,341
Interest income MEKA 5,471 1,988 7,459
Interest expenses FERAX 2,934 1,074 4,008
Loss allowance of other receivables £ fth & Ug 5118 7 518 B 1 1,951 57 2,008
Net fair value gain on investment & EME 2 A A BEWR S

properties FEE 23,610 = 23,610
Capital expenditure on property, Y BEREEZ

plant and equipment BARFE 9,249 10,190 19,439
Addition of right-of-use assets FRAEEERNE = 16,496 16,496

-1162 | Sino Harbour|Holdings Group Limited < ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5.

Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities:

2 ERE ()

DEWA - HHm - EERBBEYEK

Property
Development Others Total
L E ks Hith &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFr AREFT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
C<=21l)) (& &E3) C=x1l)
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z_-ZF
ZA=+—BLEE
Segment revenue 2 ZBU A 443,251 5,169 448,420
Revenue from external REMBEFE ZWA
customer 443,251 5,169 448,420
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF,(EER) 169,902 (14,111) 155,791
Less: L
Unallocated expense* KO BR* (15,100)
Profit before income tax R B 1884 ADER F 140,691
Income tax expense Fris R (84,749)
Profit for the year FREFA 55,942
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-BHF
=B=+-—H
Segment assets DEEE 4,252,595 35,550 4,288,145
Other corporate assets EmbxEE 7,260
Total assets HWEE 4,295,405
Segment liabilities HE AR 2,670,811 5,050 2,675,861
Other corporate liabilities HmrEaE 195
Total liabilities was 2,676,056

VEEarememaRam 202001 5 1632 =




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERE)
Property
Development Others Total
LAk Efh BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARET T ARET T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& E=5) (&E51) (&=751)
Other segment information: Hit o HER :
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-ZfF
=A=t—HLEE
Amortisation of intangibles Em A EEH - 1,311 1,311
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - & E &R EITE
equipment 4,448 479 4,927
Impairment loss on intangibles | EEREBE = 9,336 9,336
Interest income FEYA 12,078 49 12,127
Interest expenses B 3,792 1,388 5,180
Loss allowance of other receivables H th f& UGB 2 &5 1B i 3,455 1 3,456
Net fair value gain of investment KEWMEZ A ERE
properties R 24,753 - 24,753
Capital expenditure on property, Y BEREREZ
plant and equipment BEARAY 550 1,516 2,066
“ The unallocated expenses mainly consist of staff costs, “ AORBATEREEINA ESMeRERLZT -
directors’ emoluments and exchange difference.
The geographical location of the specified non- TBE#ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂL‘X%Zﬁ?ﬁfrﬁﬂﬁ%
current assets is based on the physical location of the CARME  BRERERENALEEZ MM
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment, %ﬁﬁ%ﬁg RRABEZERR  AEEBRZHEER
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the ERPLREARPBIMNEAR - MR AREE
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s ZEBEMMAPE - A—EHMENVE Bt ILE
operation and centre of management are sourced ZFHIBER DT ©
from its subsidiaries in the PRC, which considered
that the operation base of the Group is domiciled in
the PRC, as one geographical location and therefore,
no analysis of geographical information is presented.
The total revenue from external customers is mainly NP ZWARBEETERGFRH - YA RTERHT
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed FIOHEEE o
in note 6.
There is no single customer that contributed to 10% BHEZ -Gk F=A=+—HL1tF
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended B WEE —FPIEAREE10% A EWA -

31 March 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA HUWAUREMKEREE
GAINS AND LOSSES
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers REEREBERBEEEMBFHRELENFE 155N K —
recognised at a point in time under HKFRS 15, REERIRBETFEA2HA - K8 H 2R
revenue from other source, and other income and Z WA A R E M A R o W R BRI T
other gains and losses recognised during the year are
as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF AREFT
(Restated)
C<=v)
Revenue from contracts with RIBE BB HRE %A
customers under HKFRS 15 FIEREETEFANZ
['ON
Sales of properties held for sale HEFEWE 385,059 416,462
CMC related service income CMCHE R AR 75 A 5,730 4,040
Consultancy service income R ARSI A 1,151 1,129
391,940 421,631
Revenue from other source REEMBFEZHWA
Rental income AN 34,944 26,789
426,884 448,420
Other income and other gains and Hi W A AR E iz &
losses &8
Exchange loss, net P& S8 F (7,119) (893)
Government grants* T & By 62 1,124
Gain on disposal of an associate HEBE QR Z = 51
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER&H
equipment 2 WEs 23 10
Interest income FEHA
~ from bank deposits - REARITERK 7,459 12,127
Impairment loss on intangibles (note 16)  EFEERMERE B (H:F16) - (9,336)
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries HHEMB AR EE
(note 35(b)) (B 7£35(b)) (3,008) (4,151)
Net fair value gain on investment properties & &Y% 2 A BN
(note 14) R 14) 23,610 24,753
Sundry income HIEULA 866 3,741
21,893 27,426

*

The Group received unconditional discretionary grants
from the relevant PRC government authorities in support
of enterprise operating in specified industry.

. AKEEWECR B AR T EBTEREHFRN S ETRE
BERZBIGHTBED - 71| =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA Httg AR HbUas R &8 (&)

GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides information about
contract cost assets from contracts with customers.

TREHREEFANZEHNRAEERB 2B -

2021 2020

—E——F —E-FTHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARBFT

Contract cost assets BHKNAEE 10,509 5,570

Contract cost assets mainly related to the incremental
cost for the sales of properties.

Contract costs capitalised related to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s
properties which were still under construction at the
reporting date. Contract costs will be recognised
as part of “selling and distribution expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which revenue from the related
property sales is recognised. No capitalised costs was
recognised in profit or loss during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020. There was no impairment in
relation to the costs capitalised during the year ended
31 March 2021 and 2020.

BRRANEETEEYEHE ZIREKNAERH -

BERMEANKRAESNTYEREZEE

HEMD

Bl WEREZHETHEREPUAKEN K

ERMDERZZMETLEE W
ERABEYEHELARERES

RIHERDHEERIZ 87

“E-TF-_A=+—BLFE"

° BRIMAHER
ErmaERER
CHE_FT-—FR
BEE A(ERA

REBERER BE_T-_—FR_T_TF=-HA=
T—HLEFE BEBBEAERANZRIE -

The following table provides information about TRERERFENIENBEEHACER -
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTF T
Contract liabilities EHBE 2,000,323 1,513,538
Contract liabilities mainly related to the deposits EHEBBETREMHEEVEARFPUNRZESE
received from customers for sales of properties. 8 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA - HUWA IR E bk K &8 ()
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Contract liabilities of approximately RMB247,088,000 RZZEZZEF=HA=+—H GHEBBEHOAR
as of 31 March 2020 (1 April 2019: RMB374,850,000) #247,088,000t(ZE—NFHHA—H : AR¥
were recognised as revenue during the year from 374,850,00070) R AEF AR AR BRI 2 M
acceptance of properties by customers and the A MRZEZ—FR_FE-_FTF=A=+—HZ
contract liabilities as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were SHBABERERE P IE Z FERRE -
arising from the advance considerations received from
customers.
As at 31 March 2021, contract liabilities or the RZEZ_—F=ZA=+—H aNBEXIBRER
aggregated amount of the deposits received from SEREEARBTREANEERR I ESETER
the remaining performance obligations under the B ARM2,000,323,000L(ZE=FF : AR¥
Group’s existing contracts was approximately 1,513,538,0007T) ° W& REIETAEIAE R RIS
RMB2,000,323,000 (2020: RMB1,513,538,000). A HER 2 WA » RERK R B 1% (FAFH 7 AR K 361H
This amount represents revenue expected to AEA)ERIEHBA o
be recognised in the future from approximately
acceptance of properties by customers. The Group
will recognise the expected revenue in future, which is
expected to occur in the next 36 months.
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®BMERE
2021 2020
B ZEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARBTFT
Interest charges on financial liabilities ZE#EK ARz SHER
stated at amortised cost: ZRABERX :
Bank loans RITER 22,060 34,740
Other loans HEMER 4,317 1,754
Lease liabilities HEBRE 270 -
26,647 36,494
Less: amount capitalised in properties B BREREERFAEF
held under development MEZ R (22,639) (31,314)
4,008 5,180

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 4.82% (2020: 4.14%) per annum for the year.

FR - EEZNEFHERMEETFL482% (=
ZEHE 1 414%) o

VEERrememaRam L 202001 w5 1672 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. MRATEHAIEF
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after B FT 5% Al s £ Jh 48 0Bk

charging/(crediting): GEAVA T BIERBER
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B AT BN < 909 959
Cost of properties held for sale recognised FE:R &5 % 2 135 & W3R

as expense 245,387 245,536
Amortisation of intangibles (note 16) mLEEME (16 466 1,311
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEREETE

equipment (note 13(b)) (Bt7E13(b) 6,969 4,927
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENTE(Wit15)

(note 15) 1,341 -
Impairment loss on intangibles mLEERERE - 9,336
Loss allowance on other receivables HoAth f W R IE 2 B 1R B R 2,008 3,456
Short-term lease expenses HHHEERY 949 630
Outgoings in respect of investment HFRNEARSWALZ

properties that generated rental income R EMEBFE X

during the year 425 127
Employee costs, including directors’ EERT(BIEESHS)

emoluments (note 12) (Hiat12)

- Wages and salaries -TEKES® 34,345 32,761

- Retirement benefit scheme —RIREFE MR- T8

contributions - defined contribution HEGETE
plans 2,880 5,416
Less: amount capitalised in properties W BWEREERFAER
held under development Y2 S5 (4,935) (9,698)
32,290 28,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE TS
2021 2020
—E_—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARKEFr
Current tax - the PRC BNERFLIE —
Current year KEE
~ Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) - EMER
([EFRBH)) 24,509 32,804
~ LAT - T IE(ER 35,246 45,554
59,755 78,358
Deferred income tax (note 26) BT Fr 88t (f1 7t 26) 6,713 6,391
Total income tax expense FrieBip X % 66,468 84,749

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25%
(2020: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2020: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost of land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred
upon transfer of property ownership. There are
certain exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

CEMSBHOMETELE ZMB QR 2 AT ER
Bis M R25% (—F T F : 25%)fE L -

RIEBFRTCEMSTE  HINEREERRINGE
TEMEEZEMNDRZEEHRKCEENAS
Mo AEEBRAZENAERHER B (ZE_F
&1 5%) o

THEREREIHEEZIBENREREI0%E
60% =M - L EEZIBERHEEWEXMEHER
AHRFAY - BFRLHEREREN - FERAE - &
EVEFANEREREAS - BARYMERAERER
REL - HE-—REETMEAELSTHL - HEEE
B ARE R IR R (E& RERT B R BE 2
20% - SHEBMEMEABERESEERR -

A B EEARAT ¢+ 2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on
the first Hong Kong dollars (‘“HK$”) 2 million of
the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million (2020: 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million).
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and

Fri8ip X (4])
mﬁﬁa%%mﬁ%uzgﬁ%’i%ﬁ(r%ﬂ)tAs 25%xt
BEBANEBH - M2E BB LA LN bR SR
LA16.5%T EBABFEH(ZE_FF : B2AEATT
THET IR R A LA8.25% AT Hi 2 B B /S JT LA E A&t
FERR TR F LA 16.5% 5T ) o B AN 5 B A 52 W fE 4F
RN EEFBELESEST G ERTER -
WA EEH BB RIS HRE -

BRERREFEMSHRA B a2 ¥k

accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: ™
2021 2020
:g: o ﬂi — ? — E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Profit before income tax B P15 15 A& A1 117,352 140,691
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated & BT 15554 A4 K 8528
at the rates applicable to profit in the LBEBRERR RN 2
jurisdiction concerned BAREE 29,338 35,173
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBRWAZHIBTE (1,385) (1,809)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 REE 3,524 7,193
Provision of LAT for the year FALHIZEREE 35,246 45,554
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FEAT L IR ER 2 (B3
Frigfiz I E (8,812 (11,389)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERBIBEE c MIBARE 8,557 6,052
Tax effect of withholding tax AR BIE 2 - 3,975
Income tax expense Y P 66,468 84,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year 5t = —F E IR G T @AX
at HK$0.01 per ordinary share 0.01B L 2 REBRR B 22,531 =

11.

On 29 June 2020, the directors declared a first
and final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share,
amounting to approximately HK$24,640,000
(equivalent to RMB22,531,000) for the year ended 31
March 2020, and formal approval by the shareholders
was obtained at the annual general meeting held on
21 August 2020.

On 25 June 2021, the directors proposed a first
and final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share,
amounting to approximately HK$24,640,000
(equivalent to RMB20,779,000) for the year ended
31 March 2021, and the resolution will be submitted
for formal approval by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 20
August 2021.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RMB57,544,000
(2020: RMB56,958,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,464,000,000 (2020:
2,464,000,000) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

11.

RZEBE-_TFEXA-TNH BEERHE_ZT=
TE-A=+—RHBULFEVHERRERESRESR
f%0.0178 7T » & H#724,640,00058 7T (FHE N AR
22531,0007T) ' WER-_ZE-_FENA-_+—BL
TZREAFRE FEERBEIENXIE -

R-TE-—FEXA-+HB  BEEHRNEE—
T FZAZ+—HUEFEVHERERESR
BAR0.017B T+ A H4924,640,000/8 ¢ (FHE R A
R#20,779,0007T) © MRHRRB TFIREURER =
S FNA-THETZERERERFERE LR
BIEIEXE -

BRER

ERERBANDIBREAQRATHEEAFEHEER
WA ANRES7 544 000 (ZEZFF : A
R #56,958,000 ) & & A & &A% hn & F 19 &
2,464,000,000f% (=Z == : 2,464,000,000/%) 5+

e

= o
o

AR ASEEAFEREBEFEALEEEHETR
7 BEREERNBGRERRFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFH  EEESFMATIRSREEENS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=M2
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the Bi% F TR RES D TED 2 B E TR
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements BoESMRMT
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
§e 2R BINER
ik At fE A BiEEA HE e by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT AEETT ARETT AEETT AEETT
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E--F
ZAZT-HLEFE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Lam Ping (‘Mr. Wong’) ~ JE#ksc A (DE%4 ) 875 = 217 = 1,092
Mr. Shi Feng REfE 201 = = 28 229
Mr. Wong Lui AREE 567 - 131 16 714
Ms. Gao Lan BEZT 180 = - 25 205
Non-executive diectors FHTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (‘Ms. Chan’)*  BEmn% &+ (Rt ) = = = = =
Mr. Chan Kin Sang® PREEE 247 = = = 247
Independent non-executive directors  BUHHITEE
Mr. Lee Man To" THELE 22 = = = 2
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 105 = = = 105
Mr. He Ding Ding ETTHAE 105 = = = 105
Mr. Wong Ping Kuen® BMELE 131 = = = 131
2,433 - 348 69 2,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFH  EEESFMATIRSREEENS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (%)
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=ME (@)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e RER RN
e Etbian Fbipgzan BELa3s @t

RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETE

Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-ZCZF

=A=+-HLEE
Executive drectors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng hELE 181 - - 19 200
Mr. Wong Lui TREE 577 145 188 16 926
Ms. Gao Lan mEZT 157 = = 16 173
Non-executive director FHTEE
Ms. Chan* Rat 770 217 160 - 1,207

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHITEE

Mr. Lee Man To" THELE 160 = = = 160
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 107 = = = 107
Mr. He Ding Ding ETTHAE 107 = = = 107

2,059 422 348 51 2,880
& Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive director & AZEZTFMNA—H IRERZEARNTE

and the chairman of the Board on 1 April 2020 as
well as the chief executive officer and the general
manager of the Company respectively on 22 May
2020. Mr. Chan Kin Sang was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 1 April 2020.

- Ms. Chan resigned as the chairlady of the Board
and the non-executive director of the Company as
at 1 April 2020.

Mr. Lee Man To resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 May
2020 and Mr. Wong Ping Kuen was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 June 2020.

There is no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2020: nil).

B EmERAT ¢ 2020/01
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFM  TEBEEFMATRSREEEHNE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR ()
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b) EEESFMAL
The five individuals with the highest emoluments rEBEREAERaTWALIRERA(ZEZE
in the Group include two (2020: two) directors, FMB)EST HMeH R EX2BE - &
whose emoluments are included in the BT FRETFTF=A=F+—HILF
disclosures above. The emoluments of the B 8B8T=%2CE2_2F: ZZ) e A
remaining three (2020: three) highest paid T2 Me (FHESHENFZE1,000,000/8 7T .2
individuals, whose emoluments fell within the M :
salary band of nil to HK$1,000,000, for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 were as
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F T EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REMEF 1,684 1,010
Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAL 397 308
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K& FI5T 214 7% 30 47
2,111 1,365

()

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2020: nil).

Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members of
non-director senior management were within the
following bands:

(c)

FR - AEERERTONESSEZSFTMAL
SAERIB S ER A INARE B 1R 2 22D
KEERAECT_FF 8 -

EREEEMNS
ENSENEEESRERERE 2 W BE
T -

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ T2

2,000,000/ 7T 1 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -  BERRE
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings  improvement Total
Bk R
Hith e B BT HENERE Fob

RMB00O0 ~ RMBOO0  RMB'000 ~ RMBOO0  RMB'000
ABKTT  AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETET

At 1 April 2019 RZZE-hEWmA-A
Cost B% 15,538 5,018 56,434 11,244 88,234
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (6,661) (4,310) (5,636) (781) (17,388)
Net carrying amount IREFE 8,877 708 50,798 10,463 70,846
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_Z_ZE=R

=+-HLEEE
Opening net carrying amount HOERFE 8,877 708 50,798 10,463 70,846
Additions NE 2,063 3 = = 2,066
Depreciation ne (892) (285) (1,422) 2,729) (5,328)
Disposal & 1) = = = (11)
Deregistration of subsidiaries EHEMBLE ) = = (225) 231)
Exchange realignment BT E 1 - - - 1
Closing net carrying amount HREHFE 10,032 426 49,376 7,509 67,343

VEameremaRLzs 2o2os F6| ATE = =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRME )

(CONTINUED)

Computers

and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total
ElK
Hith % e AE BF HEWEEE “@st
RMB000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ANREFT AREFT AREFr AR%Trn ARETFrx

At 31 March 2020 and R-E-ZF=AH
1 April 2020 =t-BR=-Z-%E
A—H
Cost %S 17,17 5,021 56,434 10,345 89,217
Accumulated depreciation ZANE (7,385) (4,595) (7,058) (2,836) (21,874)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,032 426 49,376 7,509 67,343
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZE-_Z--%=8
=+—HILEE

Opening net carrying amount HMEmFE 10,032 426 49,376 7,509 67,343
Additions RE 3,046 = = 16,393 19,439
Depreciation e (2,094) (145) (1,422) (3,692) (7,353)
Disposal & (5) (141) = = (146)
Deregistration of subsidiaries BEEVNG (1)) = = = @
Closing net carrying amount BRREFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281
At 31 March 2021 RZE--$=A=1+-H
Cost %S 20,410 3,878 56,434 26,737 107,459
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (9,433) (3,738) (8,480) (6,527) (28,178)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s certain buildings
of RMB47,954,000 (2020: RMB49,376,000) were
pledged for bank loans (note 25) of the Group.

RZE-_—F=ZA=+—H AEBARE
47,954,000t (ZE =—ZF : AR¥49,376,0007T) 2
ETEFIRAER ZIRTER (I E25) (B o
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13.

14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

13. 3% - BFE R RE @)

(CONTINUED)
Notes: Htat -
(@) Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. ()

(b) Depreciation charges have been included in:

) WERAXZEFA:

AEBERFAZEFURPE -

£t

—F=ZA=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—B-_—F ZE-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FTT ARBFT
Consolidated statement of financial position RAEMBHRRE
- capitalised in properties held under development - EAb e ARZ % 384 401
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income REEHEKER
- selling and distribution expenses - HERDIHER 23 39
— administrative expenses -EHER 6,946 4,888
6,969 4,927
7,353 5,328
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYxE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
At beginning of the year RE] 849,218 547,379
Transfer from properties held for sale BiSEMEE R 280,035 314,262
Net fair value change charged to the miramezEkER S
consolidated statement of comprehensive NABEEE)FE
income (1,929) (12,423)
At end of the year RER 1,127,324 849,218

—EaemsmsRan 200001 58 | METEE =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2054 (2020: from 2043 to 2054). As
at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group,
the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2021, investment properties
of approximately RMB409,149,000 (2020:
RMB413,943,000) were pledged against bank loans
of the Group (note 25).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 30).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, properties
held for sale with carrying value of approximately
RMB254,496,000 (2020: RMB277,086,000) (note 21)
were transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business of
the Group. The fair value of these properties upon
transfer to investment properties was approximately
RMB280,035,000 (2020: RMB314,262,000). The
total net fair value gain of investment properties
of approximately RMB23,610,000 (2020:
RMB24,753,000) was credited to profit or loss for the
year.

14.

REME (R
REMEBR/UNPEz LY FE#EE - HEHR
—EON=FE_FHANFZEA(CE_TF: —_FTX

SFEE_TIAMFZMEER R-TF-_—FKk=
777¢ A=1+—0 AEEETREMERRK
SEEMAER - AKREZBTBEEAZERNR
7% AEEFEDRS %Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁfﬁgﬂﬁ
THERFERNAEZMAEBMERRENE -

RNRZE-——F=A :Jr* B BREWEHDARE
409,149,000 (ZE =FF : AR¥413,943,0007T)
THEAARER 2 RITER 2B (E25) °

WEMEDHET
30) ©

REMERTHIERET (M

BHE-_ZTZ-—F=ZA=Z=+—HLFE KEE
W ARE254,496,000L (ZE_FF : ARM
277,086,000 0) FFEWIE (121 BB =R EME -
REABZEWEDIREBEFANEE -SRI 2&EHR
EERRAS  MERLIEERAETEBBEPD
B REEBEREMEMELRBHNAEARE
280,035,000 (ZZE=FF : AR¥314,262,000
JT) ° B ARE23,610,000C(ZZE-T4F : A
R#24,753,0007T) 2 W E YR BWEF B IET
ARFE 2 BN

e HHES i =
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the investment properties at 31
March 2021 and 2020 was revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
who have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale
of the property interests in their existing state with
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; the income approach by taking into
account the net rental income derived from its
existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been
then capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate; and the discounted
cash flow analysis that requires periodic net cash
flows to be forecasted over the life of the investment
and discounted at a risk-adjusted opportunity cost
of capital to arrive at a project value, taking into
consideration the year by year net cash flows, and
having regard to the assumptions made relating to
rental growth projections, vacancies and rent free.

14.

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

BREYE(E)
BEYMER_ZE_—FR_ZT-_FF=H=+—H
ZARBEINHEEGEBBEEGEYEMBLAE RER
IR s B A AR EEANSMITHERITE
HETERBEAEBRARETETGHE - HENNE
BHEBERKE  BREVEREZZER SR RENE
RELRE  W2EHETMB IS ELBRBEER
5 HAUBELNEMFEEEEMELANE  RERE
HFHETE s Z2EREEFABRDHT LKA
BiRE FTREEREHEMERE, SKERKT
BEARBzZHSRAFE  URBEEZAEEE
FRAELBEERE  HESHSRAKREEZECE
T EREREUBBEMSEE  ARLRRES
MENN  EERXRNEEFHRBARHERS R
EFE - WEEARARFAER SN ARG D
HEEE EFoZEpHAcREEN TEXR
GHEEZ B -

ABeEENERAT

2020/




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWHE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEYMHEZ ARBEBIREEERARETE - 7]
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of NRERRAELEHRZ HRHTIMT -
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) ~ F ¥4 & (E3LEHE M AL E) 849,218 547,379
Transfer from properties held for sale ERSR-7/E =¥ 280,035 314,262
Change in revaluation of investment REMEEHFE T AEHAMIKRA
properties included in other income (1,929) (12,423)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — F R4 (EIREEH AL E) 1,127,324 849,218

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the  FIR =B =+—HFFEE

year included in profit or loss for assets FFABmZ FARSRIKE
held at 31 March (note 6) s EEE B (ft6) 23,610 24,753
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 —F = —F =H=+—HI- FZ

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWE(E)
The following table shows the significant unobservable TRINRGEEBERRAANERNT B R A
inputs used in the valuation model. 1% o
Fair Significant Range of Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs to
Properties hierarchy  technique inputs inputs  fair value
AE EXFUBE TABERA FUEERAHERY
L/ES EBR RERN WAHE BECEE 2QAENEBR
Commercial offices in 3 Direct comparison Discount on quality of (15.2)% —13.9%  The higher the discount, the
the PRC approach the property (2020: 5.2%) lower the fair value
hECEERLE BERLEEA NEBERE (152%-13.9% HEER - DABME
(ZZZZF :5.2%)
Commercial offices in 3 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 8%  The higher the discount rate,
the PRC approach (2020: 8%) the lower the fair value
RECEERLRE KURBEREE  URE 8% MEXHE ARESE
(ZZZZF: 8%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/ premium (22.9% = (15.5)%  The higher the discount, the
approach on quality of the (2020: (22)%-(6.5)%) lower the fair value; the
property higher the premium, the
higher the fair value
hE EREN BRLBA MEBZ2FE),/ (229%-(155% WFELS  DAELE: EE
H{E (ZZ22%%: BE - AnEES
(22)%-(6.5)%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.0%  The higher the term yield, the
(2020: 2.0%-4.5%) lower the fair value
hE HREN WANE HEKEE 20% MHEENS  DAEBE
(ZZ22%%:
2.0%-4.5%)
Reversionary yield 2.5%  The higher the reversionary
(2020: 2.5%-5.0%) yield, the lower the fair value
Bl % 25% BRNREMS  RAEBE
(ZZ2-%F:
2.5%-5.0%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques FAGERMTI EEE -
during the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above ARBEFEDNER LRV E SR k&ERGR(EE

properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ
from their actual use.

BRI EER) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. FHEEE
Premises leased
for own use
BEREEYE
RMB’000
AREFIT
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 R-B-NFHOA—-BRK

—E-_EF=AH=+—H -
Additions NE 16,496
Depreciation e (1,341)
As 31 March 2021 R-EBE-—F=H=+—H 15,155

At 31 March 2021 R-B=-—F=A=+-—H
Cost %N 16,496
Accumulated depreciation R2FHhE (1,341)
Net carrying amount REFE 15,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INTANGIBLES

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

16. EFREE

Customer
Copyright relationships Total
hi 4 EFBR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 April 2019 R-ZZE—hFNA—H
Cost (DN 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation REHHEEE (1,400) - (1,400)
Net carrying amount BREFE 10,600 5,105 15,705
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE_T_%F
=A=t+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HAWI R FE 10,600 5,105 15,705
Amortisation s (800) (511) (1,311)
Impairment losses REEE (6,356) (2,980) (9,336)
Closing net carrying amount HRIREFE 3,444 1,614 5,058
At 31 March 2020 and R=B=%F
1 April 2020 ZA=+-BR
R=ZB=%F
mA—H
Cost BN 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and Rt MORE
impairment (8,556) (3,491) (12,047)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,444 1,614 5,058
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-—F
ZA=+—BHLHE
Opening net carrying amount B9 EREFE 3,444 1,614 5,058
Amortisation B 55 (287) (179) (466)
Closing net carrying amount HRERME R E 3,157 1,435 4,592
At 31 March 2021 R=B=—%
=A=+-—H
Cost AR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and Rt MORE
impairment (8,843) (3,670) (12,513)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 3,157 1,435 4,592

VE=aersrsRam| 202001 55| 183 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

16.

INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangibles
with definite useful life are allocated to the CGU in
relation to the Group’s provision of the pharmaceutical
inspection services. During the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2021, management identified impairment
indicator on the intangibles due to decline in financial
performance in its pharmaceutical inspection services
caused by tighter market condition. The Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
copyright and customer relationship were allocated
and the CGU has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of approximately RMB15,326,000 as at 31
March 2020 and impairment losses of approximately
RMB6,356,000 and RMB2,980,000 were recognised
on copyright and customer relationship respectively in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2020. No impairment
was made for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The recoverable amount of above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculation, which
is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent
financial forecast approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%)and an
estimated pre-tax discount rate of 21.7% (2020:
18.3%). The growth rate do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates.

16.

| EE (B
%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ% EBEBRAERFHETLEE
PEREEEAEEREHERBAIRSEBEZREES
By -HE_ZT-_TFR_T_—F=ZA=+—H
IEFE - AR E R AT 5N & BB & %08 R 7%
ZHBRETE BEECHINHENEEZRE
BE - AEEEHHESREREREFBEREZES
EAXBMuzAREEHE MBESELEMERER
R-ZE_TFZA=Z+—HANAIREESBEBOAR
#15,326,0007C * YREBE T -_TF=AF=+—
BIFEZHGA2ARZIRADRRERES
BEERBERBENARKEG,356,0007T kAR
2,980,000 - WAMEBE T -_—F=A=+—H
I FEERERE -

tLﬁ%FiﬁhZTW@%ﬁﬂ@ﬁ@%f@ﬁ
HEx MEARBENENREBEBE L EEMHEME
TZHERE - ZFTETIREAR QR EZFTHER
ERFHMzEOHAMKENERREESRETEA -

BARAFHZREREFEAMTEREIR(ZEZ
TF 3%) RAFHABIE RN 7%(ZZE_ZTF :

18.3%)IE - WERTHBBIREELEMUKLLER
TEHEHEER .

e Ll HHES i =
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

17. RMIB QA 2R

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2021, were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

£t

—F=ZA=+—HIFE

R-—F-—F=A=+—0 TEWEAA
(BaABRATY EERIIMT ;

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
MBI/ BIR BRIRBREER
NAER BENE Bx/EREE EE B TEXHR
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin Islands ~ United States dollar 100% = Investment holding
Limited (“BVI) (‘US$")1
RERUHES IESH(ESH) BH 2100 REER
(RBEZEE)
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
RBRAEES IE BH 2100 REEKR
Sinotech International Holdings BVI US$1 100% = Investment holding
Limited
ERERRERERAT RBRAES E A2:2100 REER
Sino Harbour Technology BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
EANMBRARAR RERUEHE e B52100 REER
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ERERAR &t 10,000 7T BAZ100 REERR
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
BHEBREARAR 0 100/87T BA2100  REER
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IREMNAEREREERAT  F 25,000,000% T BAZ100 FHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
WINENREHEREARART & AR #100,000,0007T AHZ100 FHERE
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(“Nanchang Dingxun”)
HESAEXARAR i AR #100,000,0007C AR5 RBHERE

(mESR))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —F = —F=HA=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHBE QR 2Bz (&)

(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MN-ZEBE-_—F=A=+—H TEWBAT
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (BRERBRAB)ZFBEEHIIWMT : (8)
March 2021, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
MBI/ BIR BRIRBREER
DAL BENE BA/EMER EE B TEXHR
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Fenghuang
Jincheng’)
SITEEEHEXBRAA & AR #24,500,00070 ARZ51 BHERR
(BE£H))
Leping Runze Real Estate PRC RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LYMEEEHEREARLA  F AE 6,000,000 BAZ51 BHERE
Leping Runfeng Real Estate PRC RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LYTHLEHEREARAR  F AR 6,000,000 BAZ51 RHERE
Leping Runhe Real Estate PRC RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LITRNEHEREARAR  F AE#6,000,0007C AAZ51 RBHERE
Sino Harbour Development Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
HERRBRLA &h 1AL BAZ100 RERK
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Group
Limited
PEREEREEFRAA 0 100/ 7T BA2100 REER
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited
ERRRREABRAA 0 1% BAZ100 EEEE
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co., PRC RMB420,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Limited
MMAEREEXBRAA i A& #420,000,0007C BAZI00 RBHERE

-1186Sino Harbour Haldings Group Limited < ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 —F = —F =H=+—HI- FZ

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R E .z = (&)

(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ RZZEZ—F=A=+—H XZMNREBEARA
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (ZERERAR) ZFBHIIAT (&)
March 2021, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
MBI/ BIR BRIRBREER
NAER BENE B/ EMER EE B TEXHR
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co., ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 - 50%  Property development
Limited (“Jiangxi Ganghong’)
(note (})
IRBREEXERAT hE ARH100,000,0007C AR50 BHERR
(BT (W)
Capital Manager Investment Limited BV US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
RBRAES 50,000% 7 AHZ100 REER
Sino Harbour Bio Technology Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Dormant
Limited
ERENRRBERAA 3 1% BAZ100 EEEE
Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (2020:
RMB10,000,000)
IREANMRARAT i AR¥30,000, oooﬁ BHZ100 RERR
(G St 335
AR #10,000,0007T)
Sinotech Digital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EWEEBRAF BE 1% BAZ100 REAER
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
IREBERERAT i AK#10,000,0007C BAZ100 EEEHK
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Transfer and
Limited consultation services
BREBEMENERAT i AKH10,000,0007 AHZ0  ENREBARE
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC RMB60,000,000 - 75%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited inspection, CMC
related service
AL RIBERRER i AR60,000,0007C BAZTS  Bmighl (2.
HEREI B
%

',:e%ma%lﬁrsﬁf\a ot




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —F = —F=HA=+—HIF F/Z

17. KRB R Az (E)
R-_EBE-_—F=A=+—H TEHNERA
(ZERERAR)ZFBHIIAT (&)

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2021, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
MBI/ BIR BRIRBREER
RNAER BENE Bx/GREE EE B IEXHK
Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited
MLERENRMARAA G AR 30,000,007 BAZ100 EELK
Irvine Pharmaceutical Technology ~ PRC RMB3,000,000 - 0%  Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited (note (i) (2020: 75%) inspection
MM mEENEERAF G AR#3,000,0007C BAZ0  Emill
(Hietay) (Z2-%%:
BAZ75%)
Jiangxi Ganghua Medical PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited
TREEERERERAH " AR %10,000,0007 AHZ51  REER
Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry PRC RMB8,000,000 - 51%  Provision of
Hospital Co., Ltd dental services
SHBENRERRERAA hE AR #8,000,0007C AR5l REOBRRYE
Forest Construction Technology HK HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RAREENMRERAT & iy BAZ100 REEK
Hangzhou Gangze Enterprises PRC RMB100,000 - 51%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. management
MMEREEERERAF " AR#100,00070 ARZ5l HEEE
Hangzhou Sino Harbour DOF PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Commercial
Commercial Management Co., management
Ltd.
MMERBLHBZERARAR P& AK#10,000,0007 BAZ51 WEER

-1188Sino Harbour Haldings Group Limited « ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2021, were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi
HongKelLong Industrial Limited (“diangxi
HongKelLong”), which held the remaining 50%
equity interests in Jiangxi Ganghong, entered
into a designated operating agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions, Jiangxi HongKelL.ong
designate all the rights and responsibility of the
management, operation and financing of the
Yichun Elderly Apartment undeveloped project
(the “Undeveloped Project”’) to the Group and
all the future costs and revenues in relation to the
Undeveloped Project will belong to the Group with
a compensation of RMB244,000,000 payable by
the Group to Jiangxi HongKelong.

All conditions under the Agreement had been
fulfilled in prior years. The Agreement became
effective and all assets and liabilities of the
Undeveloped Project are beneficially owned by the
Group and Jiangxi Ganghong ceased to be a joint
venture of the Group after the completion date.

(ii) Pursuant to approvals of deregistration issued by
the local authority, this company was deregistered
during the year ended 31 March 2021. Details of
deregistration were set out in note 35(b).

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

17. REB AR 2% (E)
@ M-ZEBE-_—F=A=+—H TEHNERA
(ZERERAR) ZFBHIIAT (&)

Kt

(i

| Il E |
ERBREREERAR |20

RZZE—N\EFE=ZA=1+H AEEETIELEERE
BEARAR(CIARER)GFEIASERT
50%A%4%) 5T 3 5 TE 45 & ik ([ D) - &t -
BFETHREERE  THAERBEEEEZFAE
KEAZEE ((REREBEBDHERE  GELRE
WATEEFRETEETFTAER - MARRAKRE
BEHMMERREARKRAEBRAER A&
E 78 M) I AR RRE X+ AR 244,000,0007T &)1

18 e

SR T 2 A B3 6 S R - 1
B4 MAMIBOEE FEAERA EHAE
EERES - RRERESE OTEARTEA
AEBAELE -

REE R R 2 S - ZARREE=
T-—F-A=+—RAILFECEH - EHEE
BAKIEE35(D) °




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. KRB R Az (E)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial ) TX&RI—FEHEEEAEEMEBEBEACZAR
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary R ER 2B A R E RN MBERS
that has a non-controlling interest which is o
material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position BBEMRRREE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-— —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTF T
Current B
Assets BE 609,177 606,790
Liabilities afE (116,318) (111,735)
Total net current assets REBEEFEARE 492,859 495,055
Non-current EFE
Assets BE 35 50
Total net non-current assets EREBEEFELE 35 50
Net assets EERE 492,894 495,105
Accumulated non-controlling interests ZE&tIEiE R ER 237,544 238,539
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R E .z = (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial ) TX&EI—FEHEEEAEEMEBEAZAR
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary R ER <M E A R E RN MBERS
that has a non-controlling interest which is G C))

material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HWERBE
income

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT AR®TT

Revenue WA 20,408 30,183
Profit before income tax B TS T A4 A 3,747 4,179
Total comprehensive income EHEREEHERE (2,211) 2,472

(Loss)/profit allocated to a non-controling 2k T JE1R RG2S 2
interest (&518) & A (995) 1,112

Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest 37 i F JE# ficAgE 25 2 AL & - -

VEERreremaRam 202001 5 1012 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(o) Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary

17. RKE 2Rz (&)
b) TXHIN-—HHEREHAREMEBEAZAR
FEREE B RRRESRA B ERS

that has a non-controlling interest which is G C))
material to the Group. (Continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows ReERERHBE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—-HBL=EFE

2021 2020
B —E-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Cash flows from operating activities K& TEFIELRSRE

Cash generated from operations KEESFEARS 10,608 93,434
Interest received BB 123 381
Income tax paid BAATSH = (2,358)
Net cash generated from operating AEE LB EL T 2 ) FER

activities 10,731 91,457

Cash flows from investing activity RETBMELRERE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BB RITIE SR

Net cash generated from investing activity 1% ZZ BT E 3 & F58

Cash flows from financing activity METEBFELERESRE
Repayments of bank loans EEBRITERN
Net cash used in financing activity BEEB TR FE

Net increase/(decrease) incashand BRERBEEEYE M,

cash equivalents (R A) F58

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ F#3E & RKIREZEEY
of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at end FERBEERBEESEEY
of the year
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6,753 3,845
6,753 3,845
- (180,000)

- (180,000)
17,484 (84,698)
2,014 86,712
19,498 2,014




18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

18. REELE 2 ER

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AE¥FT AREFT

Unlisted investment, at cost FEEMIRE - HEKA - -
Share of post-acquisition loss UL B 1R - -

* Represented the amount less than RMB1,000

Under HKFRS 11, this joint arrangement is classified
as a joint venture and has been included in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had interest
in the following joint venture:

* EBOMAREA,000c 2 £ 58

RETEHBREEANE 1R LAERHHEA
AEPEREREDEITASANHRE - N2
——F=A=t+-0 AEEEATALCETH
B -

Issued and fully

paid ordinary Percentage

share capital/ of equity

Place of Principal activities and registered interests held

Company name establishment place of operation capital by the Group
ERITRAR

EERRE S ARERERE

DRIEE B 3 B TEEBRREELH EMER BOW

Sino Grace Holdings Limited Hong Kong General trading, HK$2 50%

Hong Kong (2020: 50%)

EaREEFRAF HB —MRE5  BE 2T 50%

(ZZ2=FF:
50%)

VEERrememaRam 202001 5 1032 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18.

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not
individually material:

REghE e

TRETAEBEITESBEEATEZAELEZ
MBEERBE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Share of loss and total comprehensive FARMEELEBFER
income of a joint venture for the year FHEHREBRE - -

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REEREGE

interest in a joint venture REE

N Represented the amount less than RMB1,000

Except for above, at 31 March 2021 and 2020,
neither contingent liabilities nor capital commitments
are shared by the Group.

19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

ERERL

= —%

‘ LR ARK1,000t 2 &5

B EiEIN RZE——FR_TE-_FTF=A=+
—B > AEBVEREGIAREBEREAKIE -

BARERAMZEKRESIR2EREE

2021 2020
e == s
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFTT ARETFT

Equity instruments measured at FVOCl  #ZAAERHZE KSR
FTEZKRETAR

Unlisted equity investments RETMRERE

At 31 March 2021, within financial assets at FVOCI,
balance of approximately RMB10,297,000 (2020:
RMB5,786,000) represented carrying amount of
5.24% of equity interest in Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited shares held by the Group.

The unlisted investments of the Group was irrevocably
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

Fair value of the equity instruments has been
measured as described in note 33(f).

10,297 7,665

RZZE-—_—FZA=Z+—8B REAAEBERE
tEEmWREIECERMEET  BHROVARE
10,297,000t (ZE=_ZF4F : AR¥5,786,00070)%
REERHFENIAEFEERMHER D RS.24%% 1
ZBRTEE -

RRARERSZEIFLTREBRE ML - K
B ZERESTAREMIEERRALERE
2RI

&

g T AR A ECIRM 33N £ -
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 82 —F = —F =H=+—HI- FZ

20. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. FAEPYE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥FT AREFT
Leasehold interests in land T SR 810,756 810,756
Development costs B R AR 1,049,460 627,497
Finance costs capitalised B & AR 43,056 20,417
1,903,272 1,458,670
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and T EREE T_LB/\EP B HEHR-_ZTN_F=
have lease terms expiring from 2042 to 2077 (2020: E+H+F(CTTF  ZEN_FE-F tt&)z
2042 to 2077). fEEim ©
Right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?éﬁiifﬁﬂ ERRAR HPtiiEas
land where the interest in the land is held for ERZEEFEE Ut NMBEEEEARZHAE+RY
development of inventories and included in the same E
line as properties held under development as that
within which the corresponding assets.
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21, FEYE
Properties held for sale included property interests HEVELEETRE T2 'WJ % T%E @ HEHR
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring —EN=FE_ENEF(ZE_2F: _FHWY=
from 2043 to 2080 (2020: 2043 to 2080). As at 31 FEZZENEF)HER RZTEZ—F=H=

March 2021, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB184,750,000 (2020:
RMB378,744,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, properties held
for sale with carrying value of RMB254,496,000 (2020:
RMB277,086,000) were transferred to investment
properties as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental (note 14).

+—B Lt ERES KL HERNKERE
BB ARE184,750,000t(ZE-TF : ARY
378,744,0007T) °

HE-_ZTZ-_ =A==+ BLEE KEE
BAR®E254,496,000(ZZE=_FF : ARK
277,086,00070) 2 A EMHEBEZIREYE - RAA
ZEMEDRBEFRNEE = ST L2 KEHERH
BRENFA 2 (B5E14) o

',:e%ma%lﬁrsﬁf\a ot




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22, FNRERHMERKIE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Hat AE¥FT AREFT

Prepayments TEfTFRIE (@) 1,032,914 151,969
Other receivables Ho b e W sk I8 (b) 48,648 47,843
1,081,562 199,812

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group made
successful bids for the land use rights of four land
parcels located in Leping City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC.
Deposits in total of approximately RMB887,010,000
(2020: nil) were paid by the Group to relevant authority
to secure the land grant contracts and included in
prepayment as at 31 March 2021.

None of the other receivables is either past due or
impaired. The other receivables related to counterparties
for which there was no recent history of default.

The Group recognises loss allowance for other receivables
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 respectively
based on the accounting policies stated in note 3.11.
Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from other receivables are set out in note 33(b).

Kt

HE_ZT-—F=A=+—HILFE FTEEXD+EF
L7 R BT 788 2 1 PO ) B2 O + b 8 4 - A&
A8 RS X T A ET O AR 887,010,000 L (=T =&
FHBNES  URTHHRSREERTLFA-ZT
—F£=ZA=+—BNRMNFERA -

LR Eo At R U FOR B B SR (B - E B WRIR B A
BENRBZZFGHFTER -

AEBERBMEAS A G BRI N ERBE-F
TFRIZ-ZEF=A=+ B ILFEEMERA
ZEEEE AEBREEBRRREEMERRIBEEE L
ERRERZE—TFBRANKMEI3D)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

EEAREFERUARRERBITHELR

BALANCES
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT AREFT
Cash and bank deposits Re MIRTTFER 339,452 596,846
Less: Ve
Deposit pledged against banking MIRIBERIRITRE MK
facilities granted to the mortgages 2 7R @ (34,574) (36,111)
Deposit pledged for bank loans PERITE IR 273K (b) (5,500) (193,482)
Deposit restricted for construction MELETERHZFR
works (207,166) (150,979)
Cash and cash equivalents for the MZEBEESRERMS 2
purpose of the consolidated statement & RIREEEY
of cash flows 92,212 216,274

Notes:

(a) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security
in the PRC as detailed in note 31. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period
from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the
date when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. Such charges will be
released upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.

(b) As at 31 March 2021, the bank deposit of RMB5,500,000
(2020: RMB5,500,000) was pledged against bank loans
due to be settled over twelve months after the reporting
period (note 25). The effective interest rates of this deposit
was 2.11%.

As at 31 March 2020, the bank deposits of
RMB187,982,000 were pledged against bank loans due
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period (note 25). The effective interest rates at the
deposits was 3.80%.

At 31 March 2021, approximately RMB247,240,000
(2020: RMB404,569,000) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

Bt

(@)  BMEESTATA AL - ZEFERAE TRITEARERRK S
Bz iR G o RERITAMBAREY X 2 BREHRIZ
BEX - EREHRERRBERANENXERERT
FEMBRERERRLN AHERHIRDEERER T
= PG R B AR R o

) RZTEZ—F=A=+—H " AR%5,500,0007t(=F
—ZTF : AR¥5,500,0007T) ZIRITEREREBHE T
—EABBHEE 2 RITER(HFE25) (EHER - ZHEK
ZEBBRFER/211% °

R-ZE-_ZTF=-A=+—8  AR¥187,982,000;t 2R
TERAREPE T —EARIBEE 2 BTERFFE
25)EHRIR o ZET R B FIE B3.80% °

RZE-_—F=A=+—8 " HAR®247,240,000
TT(ZZEFF : AR®404,569,0007T) BIFERF
Bl 2iRITHHEMERMEEB RS - ZFEHRAAR
BeEtE - AR B HEBAINE o RIFEH IS
FEEHIED AR  SERNEEERTE  ~A5E
AE BN BIEREETINEEL 2 IRITBARE
HHAINEE o

B EmERAT ¢ 2020/01



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND 24. ENERN  EitRERAMEMRIE
OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARMTF T ARET T
Accounts payable FEFBRTR @) 33,182 35,154
Accruals and other payables FEST FRIE R H At PE {3 7K IB (b) 667,014 373,545
Notes: Hfat -
(@)  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice @ ENRREBZAHFECRESITOT
date, is as follows:
2021 2020
—B-_—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBEFT
Less than 3 months LHR=MEA 15,082 1,741
3-6 months Z@EAENMEA 59 15,713
6 months — 1 year NMERE—F 250 1,550
More than 1 year —F A E 17,791 16,150
33,182 35,154
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24, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)
Notes: (Continued)

(®)

Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB276,780,000 as at 31
March 2021 (2020: RMB326,602,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2021, other payables included an amount
of approximately RMB222,760,000 (2020: nil) collected
from Leping City Natural Resources and Planning
Bureau (the “Local Authority”) in connection with a
land resumption agreement (the “Land Resumption
Agreement”) dated 26 March 2021 and entered into
between Fenghuang Jincheng and the Local Authority
under which Fenghuang Jincheng shall surrender its
land parcel located at the Hushan Meiyan Reclamation
Farm, Leping City, Jingdezhen City, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC (the “Resumed Land”) with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB22 million and included in property
held under development of the Group as at 31 March
2021, to the Local Authority at a consideration by way of
cash compensation of RMB222,760,000, subject to the
passing of resolution by the shareholders of the Company
to approve the Land Resumption Agreement. In the event
that the resolution is not passed, the Land Resumption
Agreement shall be terminated, all payments received
by Fenghuang Jingcheng from the Local Authority in
connection with the Land Resumption would be refunded
without interest to the Local Authority and the land use
rights of the Resumed Land remain under the Fenghuang
Jincheng. The resolution was passed and the Company
obtained the approval from its shareholders at a special
general meeting held on 21 May 2021.

As at 31 March 2021, other payables included an
amount of approximately RMB141,490,000 (2020:
RMB490,000), which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing
Property Development Limited (LPER S EHEMES
R 2 &) which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s
subsidiary, Fenghuang Jincheng. These payable balances
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand
in cash.

)
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

24. EMARR - EFHRRRE b e 5K0R ()

Hret - (%)

RZZE=Z—F=A=+—H8 st AEBHEREMRE
NHREZETREXNAREMIBEAERAZOARKE
276,780,000T(ZE =T : AR#326,602,0007T) °
EETRIBRBERE G E 2GR RBEEEE
HREHRE A EER -

R-ZTE-—F=ZfF=+—RH  HitbENZRERFEA%
FHERERMAER((HAHE ) KRN EERERA
T —FZ BB (R
BN ARYE222,760,000C(Z B T4 « £) » %
R B SE R T BT - REZ DS BES
BAG I TS E R EM R RBI Y SEEMEEN
BT L A 3R 5E 45 ) o A5 (R WA 1 3t |) BREEOARE
22,000,000 T Bt ARSEER — T ——F = A=+ BB+
%%vﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁEAEMﬂzmomnﬁ BEAR
ARREBBIE T R EARERE T SEE -

iR RAERB - A L UE R EEHRLE BB
B3 B b 5 S B UER R A BE L i R RE RS SR AT
BIRE T 8 - MR i EREDSER
BEHAE R_E-_—FRA-+—BRTHRES
BAEE RBREBBAARAFEHBRRESIE -

RIE-—F=ZA=+—0 EMENFESEHAR
#141,490,0007T (ZE =T F : AR¥490,0007T) &S
IR SEMERBEERARZNE  HEEAEHE

b /8 X BB 2 749 % A HE EZ%*)EH%’KIE%%%#HE
- B RARERFIAR S E)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

25. WITREMER

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TFT AREFT
Bank loans — secured and guaranteed  $RITE R — A KR & ER (@) 449,550 461,384
Other loan — unsecured and guaranteed  E it B 3 — S48 [
BHER (b) 142,490 62,000
592,040 523,384
The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and BITREMERREEITOT :
other loans is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—5 2T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT
Current TRED
Portion of bank and other loans due for AR—FREHEENIREKE
repayment within one year or on demand BZRITREMERE S 240,690 273,834
Non-current IR ED
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after 7% —F % B HEE 2 R1TEX
one year =i 351,350 249,550
Total borrowings wiE 592,040 523,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 25. BITREMERE)
The Group’s bank and other loans are repayable as AEEEEEREZRITRAMERAT :
follows:

2021 2020
—EB-— —EFTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT ARETFT

Within one year or on demand —FERHIRENR

In the second year REZFNR

In the third to fifth year RE=ZZFRFNA
Total borrowings BEE

Notes: Bfet -
(@) As at 31 March 2021, the effective interest rates of the (a)

Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 7.50% to
10.55% (2020: 2.72% to 7.50%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2021, bank loans were:

(i) secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB47,954,000
(2020: RMB49,376,000) (note 13);

(ii) secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB409,149,000 (2020:
RMB413,943,000) (note 14);

(iii) secured by the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately RMB5,500,000 (2020:
RMB193,482,000) (note 23);

(iv) secured by entire present and future issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group; and

(V) guaranteed by Mr. Wong, the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company.

B EmERAT ¢ 2020/01

240,690 273,834
170,525 34,550
180,825 215,000
351,350 249,550
592,040 523,384

R-TB-—F=A=+—8 FAEEFKBPRTERE
BRI RN FEET7.50%E10.55%( " FE -FF : 2.72%F
7.50%) °

R-B-—F=F=+—0 " BT8R :

0] AAEEYE  BERREHARKA7,954,000
T(ZE=FF : AR¥49,376,0007T) {EHK 17 (F
£$13)

(ii) AAEBREMENHARYE409,149,0007T (=
T -TF : ARM413,943,0007T) B (M 5%
14)

(i) ABAARNEERITERLHARYES,500,000T(ZF=
T ARH193,482,0007T) {EHE 3 (i 5£23)

vy BHAEEETHBARZAEESE KRS ET
AR &

V) BARFRERERERERTIEEER -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(®)

(Continued)

On 10 January 2020, the Group has entered into a
RMB150 million revolving loan facility agreement with
Huzhou Pan Hong Runhe Property Development Limited
of which Mr. Wong, the controlling shareholder and a
director of the Company is a beneficial owner. As at 31
March 2021, the outstanding balance of RMB142,490,000
(2020: RMB62,000,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Wong,
interest-bearing at a fixed interest rate of 9.35% (2020:
9.35%) was repayable within one year (2020: two years)
after the reporting date and subject to a repayment on
demand clause.

25. WITREMER(E)

Hiat : ()
b RKZE-ZTF—-A+H AEEEHNNEBNE

ERZEERATR(ARAERBRERESTIALEREE
=HEA N)ET M AR #150,000,0007T 2 fEERE B E
HFoNZTE-—F=-A=1+—H REBEHARE
142,490,0007t (= ZF =Z 4 : AR#62,000,0007T) HE
SR RETHNEIIB%(ZFE-FF : 9.35%) it
B ARRERHE—F(CE_ZF  ME)NEE -
WBR ESKIEB K -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other AEBRITREAMER ZREEBU TEBE -
loans are denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB AR 592,040 345,750
HK$ BT - 177,634
592,040 523,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 8 B R R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E
26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 26. EEHEEE (BF)
At 31 March 2021, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RZT=Z—F= ﬂ =+—H BEHRELEE (B8F)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2020: 25%). The AR R 25% (T =T 4F : 25%) TG - HER=
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising BMEAZEEHBEEE (AR Z2ZEHHOT
from temporary differences are as follows:
Deferred tax
Deferred tax liabilities in
assets in Deferred tax  respect of fair
respect assets in value change
of provision respect  of investment
for LAT of tax losses properties Total
RREME
81 it 8E HEHEBR ARELE
HEHEEEZ BRZEL BEZELT
BEHEEE HEEE REEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZTFMA—A 10,168 2,384 (84,773) (72,221)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ RIBHET A/ (F1B) 2
the profit or loss (note 9) EREBIE(W719) 1,010 (1,214) (6,187) (6,391)
At 31 March 2020 and RZEZZ
1 April 2020 ZA=+—Bk
—T-TEMA-H 11,178 1,170 (90,960) (78,612)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to A 1B2E(HIK) /3t A2
the profit or loss (note 9) EREBIE W 729) (1,762) 952 (5,903) 6,713)
At 31 March 2021 R-Z2--f=A=+-H 9,416 2,122 (96,863) (85,325)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31
March 2021 and 2020.

EEVABEIEE 2 HIABETIARER - 1N
AREEBRRERTENER 2 BRARENE R/
R-R_F_—FR-_F_FF=ZA=+—H XK
B B ACKTER IR B8 M E A B 3R R e
RN

EEeREmaRAT 202001 #5203 = =




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 26. EEHBEEE (BE) (&)
(CONTINUED)
Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends DR FINEIREE 2R E TR TENH RS %R
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2021, K-MR-ZTE-_—F=ZA=1+—8 HEBRAAEXD
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately IREF B B =B B ARK526,867,000
RMB26,343,000 (2020: RMB24,337,000) in respect TT(ZZEZFF : AR¥486,741,0007T) 2 IEEFLTE
of aggregate amount of temporary difference BEHARE26,343,000L(ZE_FF : ARK
of approximately RMB526,867,000 (2020: 24,337,0007T) [ AR T LARERR o R A& B A RSl
RMB486,741,000) associated with undistributed ZEMBRARAIZKREBREK  BERBEERAETE
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised. No RA] R AR ERE MW ERZEERERELERE
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect BfE -
of these differences because the Group is in a position
to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries
and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BX
Number of
shares RMB’000
ROEE AREFT
Authorised: JATE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREE0.ONE L TimAR
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 and RZZBE-NAFOA—BUEK
2021 TECEFRE - —
=A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 and 2021 R=Z—NFMHA—HUK
—ECEFRZF_—F
=A=+—H 2,464,000,000 20,735

RNEBEE S - —FRK - E-_ZETF=H=+—HIE
B ARRREEAMBARMERE  HELE
EAA AEE LB -

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue of
shares of the Company at premium.

Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.

FVOCI reserve

Balance represents fair value reserve, comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

28. M
REEZ FHEE

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

HBHRNGAERZIR - [HiR

ZHERBERINT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

B EmERAT ¢ 2020/01

R0 E
AEE 2 B s EREAR AR ERITRND
PRES 2@ (E

EERE

RIEHRETERER  HBARAKRETEE
FOARPTEEE 2R BIRAENE D 10% BB E X
ERE BEERBAERERNBARGEMER
250% - RRFHRBBAND KRS THER
BIERBEA A ZAET < AERBTADIK -
MRS B8 X BB BRAF RSN o

BARBEREMZE KRS RREE
BBREARERE  BERBEHREBERE
EREMBRELENEOREERRAAEBNE
f2EREN R BERERABERFE
@JO




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

28. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28. f#E(1E)
The Company AAF
Share Retained Total
premium profits Total
BR DR 18 BaA &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 April 2019 R-ZZE—-NFEOA—H 565,212 19,525 584,737
Profit for the year and total FRRMEFAZE
comprehensive income for the Uk 4asn
year - 7,327 7,327
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 WRZ=ZT =T F
=A=+—BK
—E-ETFMUA—H 565,212 26,852 592,064
Profit for the year and total FRRMNEFAZE
comprehensive income for the Was 4858
year - 27,290 27,290
Dividend paid to owners of the SR FARRA
Company BmHAZIRE = (22,531) (22,531)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZBZ-—F
=HA=+—8 565,212 31,611 596,823
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29, BEAREIE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial BRZEUBEmEREMEBOMBTEIN  NEBEEB
statements, the Group had the following outstanding TARITEEAREIE -
capital commitments:
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFT
Contracted but not provided for BECFTHNEREBE
in respect of
- properties held under development - FERYE 229,637 156,005
- property, plant & equipment - - BEREE 4,173 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LEASES

(@)

The Group leases premises under lease
agreements. The lease agreements are between
one to fifteen years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants. Leased assets are
not used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leases. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use assets
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

- uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk of lessee; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease
terms.

None of the leases contain variable lease
payments.

30. #HE

@)

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

AR ER AR E HHEEENE - BEHHEN
NF—E+EF -

ME TR AR EEEREE - BMETRGRR
firtt - MEWRL MEREAREE - HEEE
WARAEERE ZERMR

MEMNKEREERNSHXER o MELEER
BEZME(AEEHEEBEENL) - AIZRAE
A 2 HE & 8 A = (BNME Bl A AR R
RIBRIRIEE R - FER R AR AR B
BEEEBHEEZEEMSELRESMAXN
R F ) BEIR -

REEEEERNEXE - AKED :

- B EHLEABERAEAIEERSN
FZTRMECHE  BEITHAZENUARMR
EREZFTREEREKRE 2T

- ERMEEESN - ALEEERRT
xR BRABEAZEERRIEAER &

HEMESEFIBHEENK

ABeEENERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

30.

LEASES (CONTINUED)

(@ The amount included in the consolidated
statement of financial position in respect of the
carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

30. HE#E)
@ MNRTIHEEEGEMBKARZEEEEZE
EERRFERZE

Premises leased
for own use

BH
HEWE
RMB’000
ARBTF T
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 RZZE-NFMNA—-BR

—E-ZTHF=-A=+—H =
Addition NE 16,496
Interest expenses FERZ 270
Lease payments HERR (1,493)
At 31 March 2021 R-EBE-_—=A=+-—H 15,273

Future lease payments are due as follows: Bz ARBEMZTUOT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Minimum lease payment due FHRERERRK

— Within one year - —F UK 3,141 -

- In the second to fifth years, inclusive -MEERF(BPREERE
M) 6,730 -
- More than five years -RFE 9,942 =
19,813 -
Less: future interest expenses W ARRF B (4,540) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEaECZHE 15,273 S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

30. LEASES (CONTINUED) 30. HE(E)
(o) The present value of future lease payments is (o) REREENRZBHEITWOT :
analysed as:
2021 2020
. —TFF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETFT

Current liabilities mENEE 2,465 =
Non-current liabilities EREEE 12,808 =

15,273 -
As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate RZBZ—F=A=+—0  ~X&EREHE
undiscounted commitments for short-term B2 RERIRAVEEELN A ARI31,0007T
leases of the Group was approximately (ZE2E=ZFF : AR¥412,0007T) °

RMB931,000 (2020: RMB412,000).

VEERrememaRam ¢ 202004 5 209 = =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

30. LEASES (CONTINUED) 30. HE(E)
(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease () AEEREDERBLAIBEELEHEMR R
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases RUER 2 AR E4RAFEAT -
in respect of its properties as follows:
2021 2020
—E-——F —E-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTF T
Not later than one year —&FR 32,474 19,820
Later than one year and not later than —FLNFETBBRF
five years 73,901 59,407
Later than five years AFENUE 43,806 56,522
150,181 135,749
The Group leases out its investment properties REBHBERENE  TFHRE—ZETRF
which run for initial periods of one to sixteen (ZBZEF : —ETF)  RE83HBT
years (2020: one to sixteen years), without HEEREEE  HESESAES -
option to renew the lease terms at the respective
expiry dates. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.
FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 31. HMBER

31.

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB1,164,009,000
(2020: RMB841,754,000). Such guarantees terminate
upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession
of the relevant properties; or (ii) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties.
No provision for the Group’s obligation under
the guarantees has been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

AEBEAETYEENERTHIRIBEN I
NERZSEERECREBEER RZZE=Z—F
—A=+—"8 HRBRIERBEHNABARE
1,164,009,0007t (T T4 : AR#841,754,000
T0) c ZERERBRUATRERBERILE - )VBLE
HMEMBER(—RERNEREEEBEWEEL W
FAREE  H()WEEREBZRBERR - AR
EERATAAEHHBETEEERNER - Akl
REAEE 2 EREFIELEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following material related party transactions:

BELTXS
RSV BRREMBOMBEZR S KGRI
AEBEERETUTERBETRS ¢

2021 2020
—E-——F —E-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE ARBTFT ARBTF T
Car park rental expense charged by TIATWE 2 FES
e E @)
- Spouse of Mr. Wong —EREZRS 54 54
Rental expense charged by THRFME z HE W E
- A related company - —FHEAT (b) 323 321
Decoration services provided to M TR R EEE R
- A related company - —fRI@ERT (b) = 463
Interest expense charged by TR B WELZ F B U B
- A related company - —FHEAT] (b) and
25(b)
(b) X%
25(b) 4,317 184

Notes:

(@) During years ended 31 March 2021, Ms. Chan, the
spouse of Mr. Wong, has entered into an agreement of
car park rental for HK$60,000 (2020: HK$60,000) per
year.

(b) Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan has beneficial interests in these
related companies.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
maintained a repayable on demand, interest-free
and unsecured current account due to a company in
which Mr. Wong has beneficial interests. The current
account due to this company was fully settled during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain highest paid employees, are
disclosed in note 12.

it -

@ #HEZZZ—F-A=-+—HLFE BRzt(FrtEz
B (B) sz BB ST % - F 7 A60,0008T(=F
— T4 : 60,0008 7T) °

b EERERRZINZEFHELREERES

BE_Z_—F=-A=+—HILFE AKEBA
REBRERE  2ENREEREREKEFEN—H
AICERAERNZAREEmER) R - BZER
WERBEPFRBEEREBEZE_Z-_—F=A=+—8
LHFEEEHEER -

IS

Q
N
Gl

FEETEEBASHM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33.

=P == = | =
212//|||sino'Harbour Holdings|Group| Limited <

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group currently
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes. The most significant financial
risks to which the Group is exposed are described
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks,
bank and other loans which bore interests at
fixed and floating interest rates. Bank loans
arranged at variable rates and fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 25.

33.

MHEREEBRRBER

AEEXBLAREAZZRBYKEAR - BFEMS
Rk (BIESNERR EAXRER) - EERBRERBE
TRk - AEBZBEREAREESHERSRTS
ZAREAN - YSKEHAREMERIR2E

INFERERKE  AKERK WL ETMAXZE
BEEBRKES - AN EFSeEHEREZE
VWEREBEEABETEME - UOH R E RS A
EEREEVBRR -

AEELERENREABBEZEREERE - K
SEMEY KT 2MBERBREDLNT -

(a) A=EmER
FZEEBRESHRTEZARABERBRSRERAD
BREREFHMHBRFE ZER - KEEZIKA
MELEREREEA LTINS EESH 27
2. KEBZAREREBRBIRETENER
FENF R B ZIRITER BT REMBER -
LUFBA R K EEFI R B ZRITERSAE
EoREEBRSREMNERR XA R EMNEE
B o NIERMAEBEZEEZMNEREE
&AM FE251 55 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB951,000 (2020:
RMB1,684,000) respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represent management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve-month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
has been prepared on the same basis.

33.

(a)

B EmERAT ¢ 2020/01

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

M EREE B R R BUR ()

F == [ s (78)

FIEHBE

i F) = A #3500,k 4> 1 00 1B 2 2h if BT A8 =
HEERFIAE  AEBFARB BN RBT
WA R A RB951,0007T (= F
—Z4F : AR¥A1,684,0007T) °

100fE &R 2 B MR D RERERBHMER
HANEZE MEFERS AR M TS E A gL &
B2FHE - MEMNREHHAREEMERS
DAEEE - RBBRERKMHMNR - FIRR
REBHERBEEA R - MAKREEELH N =X
RARR+—EAMEANEREAEES 2
fili o

HE_ZT-_—F=ZA=1+—HILFEVBRE
Pl 2 URE DT IR BREERH -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 31.

In respect of other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group did
not have any accounts receivable.

The Group measures loss allowances for
other receivables, bank balances and pledged
deposits at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
change for the 12 months after the reporting
date. Applying the ECL model results in loss
allowances of approximately RMB9,421,000
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: RMB7,413,000).
As at 31 March 2021, the gross carrying
amount of other receivables is approximately
RMB58,069,000 (2020: RMB55,256,000) and
the loss allowances increased by approximately
RMB2,008,000 (2020: RMB3,456,000) for other
receivables during the year ended 31 March
2021,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 B2 —F = —F=HA=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. Bt EMRERE B ERBEE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE)
Movement in the loss allowance account in FREMERGRIE 2 BIEEERERHNT
respect of other receivables during the year is as
follows:
RMB’000
ARMFT
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFMHA—H 3,957
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAER B EEE 3,456
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZEZEF=A=+—A0K
—E_TFMA—H 7,413
Impairment losses recognised during the year FAER B EREE 2,008
A 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=H=+—H 9,421
An adverse change in business, financial and X% BB REBKERRZ TS EEHE
macroeconomic conditions has resulted in an BB REE M -
increase in overall loss allowance.
In respect of other receivables, the Group is not HEMERFKIBME - AEELAREF(ATE—
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure HFEFREM—EEE R 2EF A MELE
to any single counterparty or any group of MEXEERRE -
counterparties having similar characteristics.
The credit risk on bank balances and pledged RITEBRERRFR 2 EERRER - REA
deposits is limited because the counterparties EHFHREEFRRH 2ERIT - REAEE
are banks with high credit ratings. Based on NEBEETR - WERBITEBKREERER

the Group’s internal credit rating, no material TERE AR BB o
impairment loss allowance is recognised for
bank balances and pledged deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits are mainly balances with
state-owned banks in the PRC and a reputable
bank in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had approximately 54% (2020: 68%)
bank balances placed with two banks in the
PRC.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries.
The credit risk on these financial assets of the
Company is limited because the counterparties
have no historical default record and the
directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly change for the 12
months after the reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances, other receivables, and
other payables which are denominated in HK$,
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group did
not have significant exposure to risk resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables, lease liabilities and bank
and other loans, and its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank loans is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M EREE B R R BUR ()

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d #RBESERGE
More than
On demand one year but Total Total
or within lessthan ~ More than undiscounted carrying
one year five years five years amount amount
EZX —FHE
R-FR EFEBLE EFENE  RMBEE REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFrT AREFL
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-%
=ZRA=t-H
Accounts payable JET R R 33,182 = = 33,182 33,182
Accruals and other payables JESTSRIB R H AR
IR 667,014 = = 667,014 667,014
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,141 6,730 9,942 19,813 15,273
Bank and other loans RITREMER 273,966 395,826 = 669,792 592,040
977,303 402,556 9,942 1,389,801 1,307,509
Financial guarantee issued: BEH BB ER
Maximum amount guaranteed ReEREeE 1,164,009 = = 1,164,009 -
At 31 March 2020 R=B=%F
=ZRA=+-H
Accounts payable JET R 3R 35,154 = = 35,154 35,154
Accruals and other payables JESTSRIB R H MR
IR 373,545 = = 373,545 373,545
Bank and other loans RITREMER 295,432 284,416 = 579,848 523,384
704,131 284,416 - 988,547 932,083
Financial guarantee issued: EAEE 2 BITSHER
Maximum amount guaranteed BeEReE 841,754 = = 841,754 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity

analysis of term loans with a repayment on

demand clause based on agreed scheduled

repayments set out in the loan agreements.

The amounts include interest payments

computed using contractual rates. As a result,

these amounts were greater than the amounts

disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the

maturity analysis above. Taking into account

the financial positions of the companies in the

Group, the directors do not consider that it

is probable that the lenders will exercise its

discretion to demand immediate repayment.

The directors believe that such term loans will

be repaid in accordance with the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

33.
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(d)
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TR A R ERKEE RRZERERRE
ERGREAE 2 HERAFRERELZEHA
o FRSRERERSONRFEZNE
5% e Bt - WESBESN EAB A DT
RER|GEAR T RELLRE - EREIASK
BETREZMBENN - EFR/EKI K
AIREITE R BRERAEER - EFMRE -
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KA HMEE

Maturity analysis -

Bank and other loans subject to a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

AR - RITREMER
(ZRREZREBRARRBEATER)

Total
undiscounted Carrying
Within one year  Over one year amount amount
—FR —FHE REREHE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTT ARETT AEETT AEETT

31 March 2021 —E--%¥=H=1+-H

31 March 2020 TE-TFE=-A=+—H

154,308 - 154,308 142,490

178,128 77,957 256,085 239,634
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Company held
no material financial liabilities and the Company
ensured that it maintains sufficient financial
support from Group’s subsidiaries to meet its
liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R M B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

e | evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

33. MBEMEEBRSERBEEGE

( RESHBRARBRZAAETEGE)

REEMBRARNKBAABAEZCREED

consolidated statement of financial position are HAWNTARBEER
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
15 $2M R Foh
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TFT ARETFIT ARETFL
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z--F
ZA=t-ALEFE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREREMZE
WassliR s e RAE
- Unlisted equity investments - REMBRERE - - 10,207 10,297
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-%F
ZA=t-ALEE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOC BROA @BAHWEEE
WSR2 RAE
- Unlisted equity investments - R ETAREE T“iéf = S 7,665 7,665
There were no transfers between levels during FRERZEWLEER -
the year.
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried R IR E AR B 2R A BUR (B35 IR A R B
at fair value based on significant unobservable RreBmT AHERNOT
inputs (Level 3) are as follows:
Unlisted equity investments KETRERE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTFT
At the beginning of the year NG 7,665 33,422
Total gains or losses: Was sk BEREE
= in other comprehensive income -REMEEKE 2,632 (25,757)
At the end of the year REFR 10,297 7,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Unlisted equity investments

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using market approach of
comparable companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount.

Significant unobservable input

33.

M EREE B R R BUR ()

( RESHBRARBIZAAETEGE)

AETRERE
AEMBRERTAZAABEERBAILRRMESEE
BEE - WRRZ TSR R LA -

FETHBSREASIE

2021 2020

—B-—& =

Discount for lack of marketability = mismmEiTE 25% 25%
The fair value measurement is negatively AREFEERE TG RAENER R -

correlated to the discount for lack of RZBZ—F=A=+—8 - hsEMBEM

marketability. As at 31 March 2021, it is BERBTIENBELT - ﬁﬁ’@%( S BT

estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in the discount
for lack of marketability by 5% (2020: 5%) would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by RMB687,000 (2020:
RMB686,000).

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
period.

BRALEINE%(ZE_ZF 1 5%) 0 AEE
ZEMEEWREE BN, AR 687,000
T(ZEZZFF : ARK686,0007T) °

FIRAET B A (B2 ok R (T BRLDA (2 4R 4
EAR AL 3 Mk o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. Bt EMRERE B ERBEE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(90 Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9 =RMEERARRENESZHE
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities UThEREGRalBiizkcemEERE
included in the consolidated statements of EERARBEEMAZIEE -

financial position and the headings in which they
are included are as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Financial assets measured at fair value AR BN EZERMEE

Financial assets at FVOCI BAnEREMEE ks
PR S BEE 10,297 7,665
Financial assets measured at REBERTTTECEREE
amortised cost
Other receivables H b fE U kIR 48,648 47,843
Pledged deposits BEEBER 40,074 229,593
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTA 299,378 367,253
388,100 644,689
398,397 652,354
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#EHKAEZSREE
Accounts payable FERTER X 33,182 35,154
Accruals and other payables FERTRRIA N E b FE < 5B 667,014 373,545
Lease liabilities HEAE 15,273 =
Bank and other loans RITRHEMER 592,040 523,384
1,307,509 932,083
At the end of reporting period, the carrying RIWERR - REEKAAEZeMEERS
values of financial assets and financial liabilities BEEZREEREAARERES -
at amortised costs are approximate to their fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 {2 —F - —#F =H=+—HIF F/Z

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 34. EXEHE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

@iy To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,

AEEEREAZBER

() HEAEEFELEZRS  NBERERR
BN RE R R

(i) ZBEAKREZRBERER: R

(i) REERIBAEEZRABREEES o

AREBEE N E SR REREEERNEE - AR
BEEREEARBRRARERRD®R - X E BN
SERKRESFTEREARKY - B KIAR B F 5
N FRRAKERSRE - BB AR RIERRE
HREH S - ANKRE B A E SRR A ARSI

projected operating cash flows, projected capital &Ko
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt

any formal dividend policy.
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34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Management regards total equity as capital. The
amount of capital as at 31 March 2021 amounted
to approximately RMB1,656,415,000 (2020:
RMB1,619,349,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity

34.

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

BEAREE(H])

EEESHRBERAEER NZE-_—F=f=
+—H  BEERLHEL A AREA,656,415,0007T (==
—T4F : AR#1,619,349,0007T) - BEEKLEETE
FTEAMT RTEFRBHEREKER  REFHED
HERE R E-_—FR_ZF_TF=-A=+—
Az BB FEE S ENT

ratios at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

2021 2020
—EB-— =

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARMFT

Accounts payable FERTER X 33,182 35,154
Accruals and other payables FERTRIA R H b FE S 5IR 667,014 373,545
Lease liabilities HEAE 15,273 =
Bank and other loans RITREAMER 592,040 523,384
1,307,509 932,083

Less: Cash and bank balances W BRe RIRITER (299,378) (367,253)
Pledged deposits BEEBER (40,074) (229,593)

Net debts (T 968,057 335,273
Equity e 1,656,415 1,619,349
Net debts to equity ratio B F R ER = 58% 21%

—ErrmamERAT 202001 55227 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

35. GEREREBRME

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BREeRBELEEYEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TF T ARMFT
Cash and cash equivalents for REEEHEMERME 2
the purpose of consolidated ReRBeEEY
statement of cash flows 92,212 216,274
(b) Major non-cash transaction b) FEXBRERH
Deregistration of subsidiaries TN E A
2021 2020
—B-—% —E-EF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Assets/(liabilities) disposed of: BEHRELE (AR
Properties, plant and equipment M - BE KRB 2 231
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE - e kA
receivables fth FE UL SR IR 3,010 4,451
Accounts payable FERTER X = (358)
Accrued liabilities and other FEET B E R H A ER
payables IR (4) (173)
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries T $4 i B A &) 2 518 6 3,008 4,151

There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the deregistration
of subsidiaries during the years ended 31 March

2021 and 2020.

BE-_T-_—4R-_T-_FF-A=+—ALt
FEHEAAFEMNBATIZRSRRASEE

MR RHFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 8 B R R M B

At 31 March 2020

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E
35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GERSRERMEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) BMETBFEEZEEYHE:
financing activities:
Dividend Lease Bank and
payable liabilities  other loans
(note 30) (note 25)
RITR
ERRE HEEE HiER
(H12£30) (Htzt25)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFT ARYTFT
At 1 April 2019 R-E—NFNA—H - - 1,165,233
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Proceeds from new bank and FBIRIT R EMERZ
other loans Fri3 5118 - = 68,000
Repayment of bank and EERITREMER
other loans - - (723,080)
Interest paid EENEAES] - - (34,949)
Total changes from financing cash REE IR &R E & Eh1a%8
flows - - (690,029)
Other changes: H fth B &)
Interest expenses FERX = = 5,180
Exchange difference fEHZER - = 11,686
Capitalised borrowing costs EEREEENAR - - 31,314
Total other changes Hith ZEh4azE - - 48,180

523,384

EremEEERAT 202000 g 22IEE L =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e WRM

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z =% =

—FZA=F—HIFEE

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c)

financing activities: (Continued)

RERTREBRMEE

METHFEEZEEHKR - (B

Dividend Lease Bank and
payable liabilities other loans
(note 30) (note 25)
HBITR
ENRE HEEE Hith &R
(K1z%30) (Btat25)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARKEFT
At 1 April 2020 RZZFE_TFMA—H - - 523,384
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Dividend paid EfTHE (22,531) = =
Proceeds from new bank and FTERITREMER 2
other loans Fri3 5818 - - 280,490
Repayment of bank and BERITREMER
other loans - - (211,834)
Repayment of principal portion of {EEHE&EARE IS
lease liabilities - (1,223) -
Interest paid B E = (270) (26,377)
Total changes from financing MERSREZBERE
cash flows (22,531) (1,493) 42,279
Other changes: HEmEs)
Dividend declared EEIREE 22,531 = =
Interest expenses FER - 270 3,738
Additions of lease liabilities REWMEARE - 16,496 =
Capitalised borrowing costs EEREERA - = 22,639
Total other changes Hith #Eh4azE 22,531 16,766 26,377
At 31 March 2021 RZZBE-Z—F=A=1+—H - 15,273 592,040

-1230Sino Harbour Haldings Group Limited « ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F - —F=F=+—HI F&E

36. AR HBEARRE

THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—EB-—F —TZF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥For ARBFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries ESIENGIPA: $ 17 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A SR8 B E b B YRR 932 580
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE S 339,141 334,734
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E 8 180 180
340,253 335,494
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRI8 I H 4t FE A5 5B 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A B FA 8,083 8,083
8,147 8,147
Net current assets RBEEZFE 332,106 327,347
Total assets less current liabilities @AEERKEBE G 617,558 612,799
Net assets EEFE 617,558 612,799
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners AATEB AEERER
of the Company
Share capital % < 27 20,735 20,735
Reserves f# 28 596,823 592,064
Total equity EREE 617,558 612,799
On behalf of the Board REEES
Wong Lam Ping Shi Feng
SEMOK aig
Director Director | |||| =
E2 '

BB AT 2020/01 5

_EF

aelE=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z - F - —F =F=+—HIFF&

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 37. HLEREIE
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to ETHREBFEENSE  UREAFEZ2IA
conform with current year’s presentation. % °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REEE

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t—HLEFE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
2+ T\ ZE-NFE C"ZT_TF ZB--F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(&E71) (&E71) (KE71) (KE71)

Revenue ['ON 716,345 158,675 412,826 448,420 426,884

Profit before income tax BR TS T AL 122,964 41,302 67,928 140,691 117,352

Income tax expenses SR> (49,290) (40,114) (35,292) (84,749) (66,468)

Profit for the year FERBEF 73,674 1,188 32,636 55,942 50,884

Attributable to: AT AL

Owners of the Company E/NSIEZZS N 52,364 4,883 20,730 56,958 57,544

Non-controlling interests IR 21,310 (3,695) 11,906 (1,016) (6,660)
73,674 1,188 32,636 55,942 50,884

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND REBE  BEZkEaE

LIABILITIES

As at 31 March

R=B=+-—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“E—+F —E-N\F —T-NF —ET-EF —E-—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AR¥TT AR¥TT  ARETFE

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets ERBEE 817,209 873,765 690,201 947,132 1,253,687
Current assets MEEE 2,350,437 2,641,379 3,135,881 3,348,273 3,916,377
Total assets MEE 3,167,646 3,515,144 3,826,082 4,295,405 5,170,064

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREaE

Total equity ERBRE 1,597,254 1,602,106 1,602,182 1,619,349 1,656,415
Non-current liabilities FERBARE 684,601 767,785 561,273 340,510 461,021
Current liabilities mENEE 885,791 1,145,253 1,662,627 2,335,546 3,052,628
Total liabilities wa| 1570392 1913038 2223900 2676056 | 3,513,649

Total equity and liabilities BERBaGERE 3,167,646 3,615,144 3,826,082 4,295:405 5,170,064

VEERrememaram 202001 5| 2832 =



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M BHE

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO TEMKLE 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Tt - \& CZT-NF i St 322 ZB--F%
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(= E=5) (F=E=5) (F=E5) (&E75)
Gross profit margin (%) EH%E (%) 21.9 437 238 430 39.7
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 10.3 0.75 79 12.5 11.9
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BAEE G R %)
(Hrit1) 424 59.9 61.7 204 35.4
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) ML E (15)
(Hrit2) 27 2.3 1.89 1.43 1.28
Earnings per share BREN (ARES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (Hii23) 2.1 02 08 2.3 2.3
Net asset value per share ARERERFEA
attributable to owners of EhERFEE
the Company (RMB) (Note 4) (AR®) (Kizt4) 0.6 06 0.6 0.6 0.6
Notes: Hfaz -
1. Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank 1. BAREBEHRUEEERTREME KAL) FMABEBER
and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity. MrAfEs B ERRTE -
2. Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total 2. MBI RN EELERINBERAFERNREAELHETE -
current liabilities as at the end of the year.
3. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit 3. BRERBFIZAFENRNRRREREABRERNRAFE
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average NEEITEBRINETEREGE -
number of Shares in issue during the year.
According to the ordinary resolution approved by the BERZE-—R"FLtAZT BRI ZREBFASER
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of RENEBARZR RZ2TE-—X"FNA+=H - &H#
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant 1,232,000,0000% $7 Ax AR 45 AT AR B 1T E AL 35 Je B 9T © ALRRBETT
to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The weighted average RZZE—ARENATZBAREKE R EEE=T—+tF=
number of Shares for the purposes of calculating basic A=+ —BUEFESRERRRN 2 LB INETDEENH
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 had been B ZE2,464,000,000R(BE=—T—A"F=A=1+—HIEFE :
retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (for the year 2,446,338,798/1%) ©
ended 31 March 2016: 2,446,338,798 Shares) after completion
of the bonus issue on 12 August 2016.
4. Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company 4. AABHEEABEERFEEERRARER ABLERERUR

al 1, == S
-1234!!| | sine'Harbour Holdings|Group Limited <

represents equity attributable to the Company’s owners divided
by number of Shares in issue as at the end of the year.

FERDBTEAERE -
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sqm) (sq.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 LE] FEHEE BEEE 9 HEREE AE
(F5x) (F54)
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 2 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, RC 80,521 R 1711 R:Expiing on 100%  Completed
Honggu Tan Central District, G: 445 16 September 2073
Nanchang City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
BELAY—E HEIRERETIAR RIZZL=f BRI
fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
CRZZm=fF
AATREER
Various office units of Sino Harbour No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C 80,621 219 C:Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Honggu Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BELATRER L TEIREREMIAR CRIZH=% BRI
ETRTREM LA RE568% AATREER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,548 C:6,174  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 1~ Low rise residential annexed Road, Nanchang Economic
with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEEEdiEAE - BELE HEIEERETHELE CRIZHZfF BRI
ERE RiTREEER R608% RATN\BER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R C 719,548 R:815  R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 56%  Completed
Zone 2~ Part A-Town house Road, Nanchang Economic C:644  C: Expiring on 18 May 2062

BEERTEN2AE - ARR
~BRAE

and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
TEIREEERESEE
RUTRZREZARE006%

RI-E+=&
RATN\RER

CR-ER-%
EATNRER

BAT




PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
I3

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
(sq.m) (sg.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 LE] FHEE BEEE 9 HEREE AE

(Fr#) (Fik)

COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)

BRTINEE)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,648 C: 1,676 C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 3~ High rise residential annexed ~ Road, Nanchang Economic
with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
mEERIENcAE - REEE TEIRERETREEEE CRZBRz% BAT
EfER RTREBER R666% EATNBER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 1 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 C:1,925  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
INERER -5 MR YN CRZZN%E BAT
766% —A=t+-RER®
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,758 C:5674  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
INERER =5 HEIELEN T2 ENE CR-ZN%E BAT
766% —A=t+-RER®
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R 23489  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, G536 C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BED -5 HEIEEHETRME RIZZLtE BRI
HFA18209% ZAZThRER
CRZZmtE
ZAZTNBER

_ il e M=t
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M=ES

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sqm) (sq.m)
BEEAN RE/BH ARE BRI
k3 £l EHER BEER FH tEBEE AE
(F5x) (Fr)
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRTINEE)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R 719,648 R 2,705 R Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zone 2, Part B~ Town house Road, Nanchang Economic
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BRI ERYA - B TEIRERETRESEE R:MZZLCE BRI
ik RURERERIRR TATNBER
888%
Sino Harbour  Wu Lin Hui Southwest junction of G 20,482 (G:21,009  C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R E R AN THERE T CR-ZHME BRI
BREERERD mARBER
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
b
Sino Harbour  Guan Lan Phase 1-2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R 517,231 R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, (:3,082  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEBER-E28 HEIEEHETRNE RIZZLLE stEld
HEA#8299% ZAZThRER
CRZZmtE
ZAZTNBER

B R WA RAT ) 2020/




PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
I3

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
(sq.m) (sg.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 LE] FHEE BEEE 9 HEREE AE

(Fr#) (Fik)

FUTURE PROJECTS
ARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R: 746,425  R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Under planning
Zong 413 Road, Nanchang Economic (G: 156,472 C: Expiring on 18 May 2042
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEEE 1388 TEIRERETRESEE L 2 stal
RRERER IR RATNBER
888%: CRZEM-&
BATNBER
Sino Harbour » Guan Lan Phase 3-4 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R C 607,084 R C: 417536  R:Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
R EF-ENE HEIREREETRNE RRZBtE B
B AB299% ZAZTNBER
CRZZmtE
ZAZThBER
Leping Project Hushan Meiyuan Reclamation R, C 202,356 R, C:492,086 R Expiring on 27 April 2074 51%  Under planning
Farm, Leping City, C: Expiring on 27 April 2061
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
SVER HEIREETH RIZZtRE stEld
FIEEEES MA=TLRER
CRZEN-F
BAZT+RER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M=ES

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sqm) (sq.m)
BEEAN RE/BH A%E BRI
k3 £l EHER BEER FH tEBEE AE
(FK) (Fr)
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
REREENR
Levels 1and 2 of Block 2, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A C:4,652  G: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Units 02 to 06 on Level 1 of Block 6, Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Unit 105 and Level 1 of Block 7 of Nanchang City,
Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center and Jiangxi Province, the PRC
a 3-storey kindergarten of Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
MEAATE_B-R-F" TEIREREMIAR PR CR-ZM=% BAT
NE-E0Z06E - PLEAAAIE1568% NATARER
ERI SO LE-E105ER
~E=EREE
Various retail units on Levels 1-4 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;26162 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
and various office units on Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Levels 6-24 of Sino Harbour Nanchang City,
Kaixuan Center, Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
BEL A g R TR0 14E HEIRERETAAR NER CRZEm=% BAT
ATTEERRO2E hORAAKE1568% NATRBER
ATBFRE(
Various retail units on Levels 1 and 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A C:4,381  G: Expiring on 29 March 2047 100%  Completed
of Blocks 1103, 6,7,9,10, 11,12 Yuanzhou District,
and 35t0 37 of Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
Yichun Royal Lake City the PRC
BEHEREIE3 6-7-9:100  FEIRLEETRNE iyl CHZZmtE BRI
1 12RBETRE-RZE HEAB209% ZAZThRER
ATERERES
Sino Harbour W Lin Hui Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:34,9%  C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road,
Gongshu District,
Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
B o BAE R AN TS ERE T CR-BLMEMARBER BRT

RRETEARED




PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sqm) (sq.m)
2EEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 LE] FHEE BEEE 9 HEREE AE
(F5x) (F54)
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HAERLEE IR
Various retail units on Levels 1-4, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;6,909  C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang City,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEL A EERT TR0 I4E HEIRERETIAR NER CRZZm=f% BRI
ATTEERROR6E fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R:166  R:Expiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Bulding of Minshi Garden Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
ZETEBERETI60E TEIREAETRAAR iyl RRZZ NESAER B#I
Il EA285
R:  Residential R ZF
C:  Commercial and other C: EERAM
CY:  Calendar year cy: JEBF

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on the
best estimate by the management. These figures may change as the

projects progress.

EAl == = | =
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